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On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of China
Chengtong Development Group Limited (“Company”), | hereby present to
all shareholders the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“Year").

In 2020, the Group attached great importance to the prevention and control
of the novel coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19"), adopted various anti-
epidemic measures, and coordinated various tasks in the prevention and
control of COVID-19 and business operations.

During the Year, the Group continued to pull resources together to
vigorously expand its core leasing business, leading to new heights in the
scale and profitability of the leasing business. During the Year, the Group
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$931.69 million (2019:
approximately HK$1,110.60 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 16% as compared with that of last year. Profit before tax
recorded during the Year amounted to approximately HK$158.08 million
(2019: approximately HK$90.01 million), representing a growth of
approximately 76% as compared with that of last year. During the Year,
there is a decrease in turnover as compared with that of last year, mainly
because the Group restructured its trade business and withdrew from
domestic trading of coal business. The main reasons for the significant
increase in profit before tax are as follows: firstly, the profit contribution of
the leasing business has increased significantly as compared with that of
last year, with segment profit before tax of approximately HK$121.64
million, accounting for nearly 77% of the Group's profit before tax;
secondly, the Group achieved non-recurring profit before tax of
approximately HK$50.23 million by the disposal of equity interests in
subsidiaries; and thirdly, the Group recorded exchange gain of
approximately HK$39.46 million for the year.

The Group is currently principally engaged in leasing, bulk commodity trade,
property development, property investment and marine recreation services
and hotel. For leasing, the Group continue to devote resources mainly to
the principal business of leasing and the scale of the business greatly
expanded with loans receivable exceeding HK$2 billion for the first time,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 84%, and segment
profit before tax amounted to approximately HK$121.64 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 82%. Meanwhile, the
Group increased the number of professional staff, improved the
organisational structure and business processes, and identified
development positioning and business directions, laying a good foundation
for the subsequent rapid development. As for bulk commodity trade, the
Group withdrew from its domestic trading of coal business and formed an
offshore trading joint venture to mainly carry out cross-border and
international trade business. For property development and property
investment, the Group speeded up the withdrawal from this business by
completing the transfer of the Dafeng project to its controlling shareholder
in July 2020 in return for cash resources for the development of its principal
business. In respect of marine recreation services and hotel, the business
recorded loss for the year as tourism in Hainan underwent unprecedented
setbacks owing to COVID-19. As follow-up, the Group will promote the
restructuring of the business of marine recreation services and hotel.
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Looking ahead, the Group will further strengthen its strategic directions
and leverage the resource advantages of its controlling shareholder to
quickly optimise and expand the scale of its leasing business, and build up
brand influence in the industry under the premise of strict control of risks
and based on the feature of professional development.

DIVIDEND

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK 0.9 cents per
ordinary share of the Company (“Share”) in respect of the Year (2019: nil),
and also to recommend the offer to the shareholders the right to elect, as
an alternative, to receive such final dividend wholly or partly by allotment of
new Shares credited as fully paid in lieu of cash. Subject to the approval by
the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual general
meeting ("AGM"), it is expected that the total amount of final dividend will
be approximately HK$52.28 million.

At last, |, on behalf of the Board, would like to express my sincere gratitude
to all shareholders, business partners and communities for their continuous
support and care to the Group. | would also like to thank all the
management and employees of the Group for their hard work during the
Year.

Zhang Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 February 2021
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group realised a
consolidated turnover of approximately HK$931.69 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 16% as compared to
approximately HK$1,110.60 million last year. The global economy
was severely impacted by COVID-19 which led to a decrease in the
Group's turnover from bulk commodity trade business by
approximately 22% as compared to that of last year to approximately
HK$677.89 million; a decrease in the turnover from marine recreation
services and hotel business by approximately 48% year-on-year to
approximately HK$16.83 million; and a decrease in the turnover from
property development business by approximately 32% year-on-year
to approximately HK$89.71 million. As the Group expanded its
leasing business timely by increasing several new finance leasing
projects, and commenced operating lease business during the year,
the turnover from leasing business increased by approximately 96 %
as compared to that of last year to approximately HK146.27 million,
partially offsetting the negative impact of the COVID-19 on the
Group’s consolidated turnover.

During the year under review, the Group realised a consolidated
profit before income tax of approximately HK$158.08 million,
representing an increase of approximately 76% from approximately
HK$90.01 million in last year, mainly resulted from (i) an increase in
consolidated gross profit by approximately 20% year-on year to
approximately HK$186.22 million (2019: approximately HK$154.66
million) as a result of the increase in revenue from leasing business;
(ii) the recording of a gain on disposal of subsidiaries during the year
of approximately HK$50.23 million (2019: nil); and (iii) the recording
of a net exchange gain of approximately HK$39.46 million (2019: a
net exchange loss of approximately HK$11.21 million) under other
income benefiting from the appreciation of Renminbi (“RMB").

The Directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HKO0.9 cent per Share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 7 July 2021 and also to
recommend the offer to the shareholders the right to elect, as an
alternative, to receive such final dividend wholly or partly by
allotment of new Shares credited as fully paid in lieu of cash (“Scrip
Dividend Scheme"), subject to the approval of the shareholders on
the payment of final dividend at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company and the granting by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) of the listing of, and permission to deal
in, the Shares to be issued pursuant to the Scrip Dividend Scheme.
The final dividend is expected to be paid on Friday, 13 August 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Shares to be issued pursuant to the Scrip Dividend Scheme wiill
rank pari passu in all respects with the Shares in issue on the date of
allotment and issue of such Shares, except that they will not be
entitled to the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.

On condition that the payment of the above final dividend is
approved by the shareholders at the AGM, a circular containing
details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme will be despatched to the
shareholders shortly after the AGM.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Segment Revenue and Results

The revenue of the Group was derived from five business segments,
including leasing, bulk commodity trade, property development,
property investment and marine recreation services and hotel. The
details of segment revenue and results are as follows:

(1) Leasing

The Group has formulated leasing as the direction of the future
development of its principal business, and has resolved that
the Group’'s wholly-owned subsidiary, Chengtong Financial
Leasing Company Limited (“Chengtong Leasing”), is to
feature professional development based on strict risk control,
with the initial business focus on expanding the scale of
finance leasing, exploring the development of other leasing
business, and establishing the brand and market influence of
Chengtong Leasing. During the year under review, despite the
impact of COVID-19 on the overall environment of the global
economy, the Group leveraged on the existing resources
timely to rapidly expand the scale of its leasing business,
increased a number of professional staff, commenced
operating lease business and completed a number of new
finance leasing projects under strict risk control. In the
meantime, in response to the operational risks brought by the
epidemic, the Group has reorganised and formulated new
strategic development plans and business strategies. In the
future, it will focus on developing business sectors that have
stable cash flow and are less affected by the epidemic such as
energy saving and environmental protection, new
infrastructure (focusing on Internet data centres), high-end
equipment manufacturing, public utilities, and mass medical
healthcare, to reduce the impact of the epidemic and to focus
on business opportunities in national strategic areas such as
new urbanisation, Made-in-China 2025, new infrastructure, and
the “Belt and Road" initiative.
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The Group completed a number of sale and leaseback projects
based on strict risk measures during the year and recorded
loans receivable from finance leasing of approximately
HK$2,072.70 million as at 31 December 2020, which
accounted for approximately 53% and approximately 69% of
the Group's consolidated total assets and consolidated net
assets respectively and represented a significant increase of
approximately 84% from finance leasing loans receivable of
approximately HK$1,126.82 million as at 31 December 2019,
thereby achieving a profit before tax of approximately
HK$121.64 million, which represented an increase of
approximately 82% from approximately HK$66.77 million last
year. The profit increase was mainly attributed to the combined
effect of (i) a year-on-year increase in the turnover from leasing
business by approximately 96% to approximately HK$146.27
million (2019: approximately HK$74.47 million) as a result of a
year-on-year increase in finance lease interest income and
rental income from leasing out owned machineries and
equipments by approximately 105% to approximately
HK$104.53 million (2019: approximately HK$50.91 million) due
to the addition of several new finance lease and operating
lease projects during the year and a year-on-year increase in
consultancy service income by approximately 77% to
HK$41.74 million (2019: approximately HK$23.56 million) due
to the completion of several finance consultancy projects
during the year; (ii) a year-on-year increase in administrative
expenses during the year by approximately 108% to
approximately HK$20.15 million (2019: approximately HK$9.68
million) , mainly due to a year-on-year increase in staff cost of
approximately HK$9.23 million as a result of an increase of the
number of professional staff by 29 to 47 in the year arising
from an expansion of the scale of leasing during the year; (iii) a
year-on-year increase in the finance costs by approximately
88% to approximately HK$4.52 million (2019: approximately
HK$2.41 million) resulting from increasing bank loans for the
expansion of the finance lease business; (iv) a year-on-year
decrease in interest and other income by approximately 54 %
to approximately HK$2.04 million (2019: approximately
HK$4.39 million) as a result of a decrease in bank deposits to
increase loans receivable with a higher yield; (v) an increase in
cost of sales of approximately HK$2 million (2019: nil) due to
the recording of a depreciation provision in respect of owned
machineries and equipments for operating lease and related
insurance expenses in the aggregate amount of approximately
HK$2 million which was brought by the addition of new
machineries and equipments of approximately HK$123.30
million (2019: nil) for leasing to the lessees under the operating
lease projects in the second half of the year.
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(2)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Bulk Commodity Trade

During the period under review, as affected by the COVID-19
epidemic, the turnover from bulk commodity trade business
segment was only approximately HK$677.89 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 22% as compared to
approximately HK$870.15 million last year. Segment profit
before tax decreased by approximately 41% year-on-year to
approximately HK$2.07 million (2019: approximately HK$3.51
million). The results recorded according to the types of bulk
commodities traded under international trade and domestic
trade in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") are as follows:

2.1

International Trade:

During the year under review, the Group has
commenced international trading of bulk commodities.
Given the uncertainties during the epidemic, the Group
tightened trade risk management, strictly selected
upstream and downstream customers and required
customers to make payment by letters of credit issued
by banks to reduce credit risks. During the year, the
sales volume of chemical products, steel and coal was
approximately 150,000 tons, 100,000 tons and 30,000
tons respectively. The turnover of chemical products,
steel and coal was approximately HK$180.68 million,
HK$232.15 million and HK$27.84 million respectively,
which brought about the total turnover of approximately
HK$440.67 million and gross profit of approximately
HK$3.66 million. Taking into account interest and other
income of approximately HK$0.25 million and deducting
selling expenses, administrative expenses and finance
costs of approximately HK$2.10 million in total, the profit
before tax was approximately HK$1.81 million.
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2.2 Domestic Trade:

(i)

(ii)

Trading of Steel:

The COVID-19 epidemic had a negative impact on
steel trade business in the PRC during the year,
which resulted in the decrease in sales volume of
domestic steel from approximately 110,000 tons
last year by approximately 55% to approximately
50,000 tons this year. In addition, the average unit
selling price of steel decreased by approximately
4% from approximately RMB3,190 per ton last year
to approximately RMB3,056 per ton during the year
under review, resulting in a year-on-year decrease in
turnover by approximately 58% to approximately
HK$170.78 million (2019: approximately HK$402.33
million). Due to the decrease in turnover, the gross
profit decreased by approximately 77% year-on-year
to approximately HK$3.20 million (2019:
approximately HK$14.09 million) while the selling
expenses accordingly decreased by approximately
64% year-on-year to approximately HK$2.87 million
(2019: approximately HK$7.95 million). The profit
before tax was approximately HK$0.33 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 95% as
compared to approximately HK$6.18 million last
year.

Trading of Coal:

On 28 February 2020, the Group completed the
disposal of 41% equity interest in FREERERA
R A A (unofficial English translation being
Chengtong Energy Guangdong Company Limited)
(“Chengtong Energy”) and exited from the
domestic trading of coal business. For details of
the aforementioned disposal, please refer to note
37(a) to the financial statements and paragraph (1)
under the sub-section headed “lll. DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES” in this annual report. The sales
volume of coal was approximately 82,000 tons
(2019: approximately 710,000 tons) only during the
year under review. The turnover was approximately
HK$66.44 million (2019: approximately HK$467.82
million). The average unit selling price was
approximately RMB726 per ton (2019:
approximately RMB580 per ton). However, due to
a decrease in the sales volume, gross profit
decreased by approximately 66% year-on-year to
approximately HK$0.48 million (2019:
approximately HK$1.43 million). Loss before tax
was approximately HK$0.07 million (2019: loss of
approximately HK$2.67 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Property Development

On 24 July 2020, the Group completed the disposal of
Chengtong Investment Group Limited ("Chengtong
Investment”), thereby indirectly disposing of the Group's
interest in “Chengtong International City" located in Dafeng
District, Yancheng City of Jiangsu Province of the PRC. During
the year under review, the Group's revenue from property
development was only derived from the “CCT-Champs-
Elysees” project located in Zhucheng City of Shandong
Province of the PRC. The turnover from the property
development business segment decreased by approximately
32% year-on-year to approximately HK$89.71 million (2019:
approximately HK$131.93 million) as affected by the COVID-19
epidemic. Segment profit before tax decreased by
approximately 41% year-on-year to approximately HK$24.90
million (2019: approximately HK$41.82 million). Details of the
Group's property development business are as follows:

(i) Zhucheng City of Shandong Province — CCT-Champs-
Elysees

The CCT-Champs-Elysees project, which is wholly
owned by the Group, is located at the northern side of
Eastern Section of No. 1 Mizhou West Road, Zhucheng
City, Shandong Province, the PRC (Lot No. 01213003).
The project has a total site area of approximately 146,006
square metres and was developed in three phases. The
project is located in a county level city. During the year
under review, the average unit selling price per square
metre of residential area of the project rose by
approximately 0.7% from approximately RMB5,866 last
year to approximately RMB5,908 this year. As affected
by COVID-19 epidemic, the residential area sold for the
project decreased by approximately 34% year-on-year to
approximately 13,419 square metres. The sales revenue
of the project was approximately HK$89.71 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 32% from
approximately HK$131.93 million last year, and resulted
in a decrease in gross profit by approximately 37% from
approximately HK$48.79 million last year to
approximately HK$30.76 million for the year. During the
year under review, interests and other income decreased
year-on-year by approximately 31% to approximately
HK$1.19 million (2019: approximately HK$1.72 million)
and selling and administrative expenses was
approximately HK$5.96 million in aggregate (2019:
approximately HK$6.13 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 3%. The profit before tax
was approximately HK$25.99 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 41% from approximately
HK$44.38 million last year.
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As at 31 December 2020, the completed and unsold area
of the CCT-Champs-Elysees project included residential
area of approximately 36,214 square metres (as at 31
December 2019: approximately 10,483 square metres)
and commercial spaces of approximately 1,410 square
metres (as at 31 December 2019: approximately 1,410
square metres) (excluding the leasable area of
approximately 7,565 square metres (as at 31 December
2019: approximately 7,565 square metres)). The Group
will strengthen the development and marketing of the
CCT-Champs-Elysees project as planned. It is expected
that the entire project will be completed and delivered in
2024.

(i)~ Dafeng District, Yancheng City of Jiangsu Province
— Chengtong International City

On 24 July 2020, the Group, through completing the
disposal of the entire interest in Chengtong Investment,
indirectly disposed of its interest in “Chengtong
International City”, which is located at North Portion of
Lot No. 2, Port Serviced Area, Dafeng Ocean Economic
Development Area, Dafeng District, Yancheng City,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC and with a total site area of
approximately 118,974 square metres. For details of the
said disposal, please refer to note 37(b) to the financial
statements and paragraph (2) under the sub-section
headed “Ill. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES” in this
annual report. No sales revenue was recorded for the
project for the period under review. The loss before tax
amounted to approximately HK$1.09 million (2019: loss
of approximately HK$2.56 million).

Property Investment

The rental income from the property investment of the Group
was generated from the commercial properties of the CCT-
Champs-Elysees project in Zhucheng City, Shandong Province,
the PRC. The leasable area of the properties was
approximately 7,565 square metres. As affected by the
COVID-19 epidemic, as at 31 December 2020, the actual
leased area of the properties was approximately 5,122 square
metres, representing a decrease of approximately 23% as
compared to approximately 6,680 square metres as at 31
December 2019. The rental income decreased by
approximately 50% year-on-year to approximately HK$0.99
million (2019: approximately HK$1.97 million). The profit before
tax was approximately HK$0.87 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 49% when compared to that of
approximately HK$1.70 million last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Marine Recreation Services and Hotel

The marine recreation services and hotel business in Hainan
Province, the PRC mainly consist of: (i) marine recreation
services; (i) hotel operation; and (iii) travelling agency business.
The turnover and results of the three businesses for the year
under review are set out below:

(1) Marine Recreation Services

As affected by the COVID-19 epidemic and extreme
weather (hurricane), the operation of marine recreation
business was facing an extremely difficult environment
during the year. The Group granted appropriate rental
reduction or concession, resulting in a decrease in
turnover by approximately 65% year-on-year to
approximately HK$10.21 million (2019: approximately
HK$29.32 million). The Group recorded a loss before tax
of approximately HK$37.59 million (2019: loss of
approximately HK$3.92 million), representing a significant
increase in loss by approximately HK$33.67 million year-
on-year, the main reasons of which include the following:
(i) as affected by the COVID-19 epidemic and the
extreme weather, the tourism market suffered severe
setbacks, resulting in a year-on-year decrease in turnover
by approximately HK$19.11 million; (ii) the Jialong
submersible equipment for marine tourism has not been
approved for launching operations and further adjustment
to the operation plan and modification before using are
needed, resulting in an impairment provision of
approximately HK$19.01 million after evaluation by an
independent professional valuer; and (iii) an increase in
selling expenses of approximately HK$3.09 million
resulting from the repair of coastal equipment which
were damaged by hurricane. The Group has
implemented appropriate measures to respond to the
change in operational environments resulting from the
epidemic, effectively reducing selling and administrative
expenses by approximately HK$3.42 million. In addition,
the Group disposed part of equipments during the year,
resulting in an increase in other income of approximately
HK$4.09 million year-on-year, thereby reducing the loss
of the year.
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(i) Hotel Operation:

The sales revenue of the hotel operation amounted to
approximately HK$5.14 million, representing an increase
of approximately 227% as compared to approximately
HK$1.57 million last year, which was mainly because
only five months’ sales revenue was recorded last year
following the completion of renovation of hotel rooms
and trial operation in August. The loss before tax
decreased by approximately 8% year-on-year to
approximately HK$8.36 million (2019: loss of
approximately HK$9.04 million), the main reasons of
which include the following: (i) the tourism business has
gradually returned to normal due to the control of the
epidemic in the second half of the year, leading to a
rebound in sales revenue; (ii) compared to the
suspension of business for renovation for seven months
last year, the number of business days increased during
the year and the total cost and expenses of sales and
administrative expenses increased by approximately
28% year-on-year to approximately HK$13.58 million
(2019: approximately HK$10.63 million).

(i) Travelling Agency Business:

During the year under review, the travelling agency
business recorded turnover of approximately HK$1.48
million (2019: approximately HK$1.19 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
24%. The profit before tax amounted to approximately
HK$0.03 million, representing a turnaround from loss to
profit when compared to last year.

The above three businesses contributed to a total segment
turnover of approximately HK$16.83 million to the Group (2019:
approximately HK$32.08 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 48%. The segment loss before tax
amounted to approximately HK$45.93 million (2019: loss of
approximately HK$13.04 million), representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately HK$32.89 million.
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Other Income

Other income mainly included a net exchange gain of approximately
HK$39.46 million (2019: a net exchange loss of approximately
HK$11.21 million), interest income from deposits and other financial
assets of approximately HK$20.80 million (2019: approximately
HK$52.75 million), and a gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$3.35 million (2019: approximately
HK$0.68 million). Other income amounted to approximately
HK$70.04 million (2019: approximately HK$59.01 million) in
aggregate, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
19%. RMB continued to appreciate against Hong Kong Dollars
("HKD") during the year, resulting in a net exchange gain of
approximately HK$39.46 million recorded on RMB-denominated
assets held by the Group in Hong Kong. The Group reduced other
financial assets so as to increase receivables from leasing business
that generate a higher yield in the year, resulting in a decrease in the
interest income from deposits and other financial assets by
approximately 61% year-on-year to approximately HK$20.80 million.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

During the year under review, selling expenses increased year-on-
year by approximately 15% to approximately HK$23.53 million (2019:
approximately HK$20.52 million), mainly due to an increase in selling
expenses of approximately HK$3.09 million resulting from the repair
of coastal equipment for the marine recreation services which was
damaged by the hurricane.

During the year under review, administrative expenses increased by
approximately 15% year-on-year to approximately HK$105.53 million
(2019: approximately HK$92.08 million), which was mainly
attributable to an impairment provision of approximately HK$19.01
million in respect of the Jialong submersible equipment for the
marine recreation services and an increase in labour costs as a result
of the increase of a number of professional staff for the leasing
business in the year.

Finance Costs

During the period under review, the finance costs consisted of
interest on bank borrowings of approximately HK$10.21 million
(2019: approximately HK$10.09 million), interest expenses on loans
from related parties of approximately HK$1.10 million (2019: nil), and
interest on lease liabilities of approximately HK$0.44 million (2019:
approximately HK$0.44 million). Total finance costs amounted to
approximately HK$11.74 million (2019: approximately HK$10.53
million), representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 11%,
mainly as a result that the Group has increased bank loans for
expanding finance leasing business in the future. Having capitalised
the finance costs of approximately HK$3.53 million (2019:
approximately HK$4.52 million) during the year under review, the net
finance costs were approximately HK$8.21 million (2019:
approximately HK$6.01 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 37%.
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year under review, the Group had completed the
following material disposal of subsidiaries:

(1)

The Group gradually exited from the domestic coal trading
business through the disposal of 41% equity interest in
Chengtong Energy. On 12 November 2019, 78 % & & 5 A IR
/~H) (unofficial English translation as Chengtong Development
Trading Co., Ltd.), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an equity transfer agreement with A B 3538 BB
B 5827 (unofficial English translation being China
Chengtong International Co. Ltd.), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of China Chengtong Holdings Group Limited
("CCHG"), to dispose of 41% equity interest in Chengtong
Energy for a consideration of approximately RMB24.66 million.
Upon completion of the equity transfer on 28 February 2020, a
gain of approximately HK$7.48 million was recorded from the
disposal of the equity interest in Chengtong Energy. The Group
only retained 10% equity interest in Chengtong Energy which
has ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 12
November 2019 and the circular of the Company dated 6
December 2019.

The Group aimed to gradually exit from the existing property
development project. On 5 May 2020, the Company entered
into an equity transfer agreement with China Chengtong Hong
Kong Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHG,
to dispose of the entire equity interest in Chengtong
Investment for a consideration of approximately RMB241.19
million, thereby indirectly disposing of the Company’s interest
in sl K M BHEE A R ] (unofficial English translation as
Chengtong Dafeng Harbour Development Limited) (“Dafeng
Harbour”), which owns the project of “Chengtong
International City” in Jiangsu Province of the PRC. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 5
May 2020 and 24 July 2020 and the circular of the Company
dated 10 June 2020. The above equity transfer was completed
on 24 July 2020 upon which Chengtong Investment and its
subsidiaries including Dafeng Harbour ceased to be the
subsidiaries of the Company. A gain of approximately
HK$42.75 million was recorded from the disposal of the equity
interest in Chengtong Investment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK

Internationally, COVID-19, dealt a heavy blow to the global economy
in 2020, leading to severe economic recession, industrial chain and
supply chain disruptions, and shrinking of international trade. With
the commencement of the use of vaccines for COVID-19, the
epidemic is expected to be under control, and the global economy is
expected to recover steadily. Domestically within the PRC, the
epidemic was well-contained during the year and did not affect the
foundation of China’s long-term economic development. In 2020,
China was a major economy that has recovered relatively rapidly
under the influence of the epidemic. The long-term economic
prosperity of China will continue to be in the direction of steady
development.

Looking to the future, the current development environment in China
and abroad is complex and difficult. The China economy will be
supported by the dual-circulation strategy of “internal circulation as
the primary structure, supplemented by domestic-and-international-
dual”. The internal circulation refers to the main deployment of
promoting the domestic economic growth in China by the expansion
of domestic demand and consumption in China. The domestic-and-
international-dual refers to strengthening foreign and international
trade by expanding opening to other countries. The dual circulation
can optimise the composition of China's various industries, the
connections and proportional relationships between industries, and
the structure of the supply chain, and promote the economic
development of China, through supply-side structural reforms,
including reducing production capacity and inventories, de-leveraging,
cost reduction, and quality assurance.

The Group will continuously and closely monitor the complicated and
volatile situations that present both opportunities and challenges.
While maintaining its epidemic prevention and control efforts, the
Group will focus on the principal business of leasing, deepen reform
and seize opportunities, thereby creating greater value to its
shareholders.

As for leasing business, the Group will continue with its operational
goals and positioning of business, further increase business
expansion in professional fields such as energy conservation and
environmental protection, public utilities, high-end equipment, and
new infrastructure, and strengthen business collaboration with other
central enterprises to achieve professional development. Meanwhile,
the Group will further advance cooperation with financial institutions
such as banks to enhance financing arrangement and scale, and
achieve breakthrough in the work of financing, such as the issuance
of asset-backed securities (also known as “ABS"). In terms of bulk
commodity trade, the Group will continue to prudently develop
business related to bulk commodity trade under strict risk control.
For property development and property investment, the Group's
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overall strategy is to phase out property development business and
ramp up marketing efforts for its Zhucheng project so as to obtain
cash resources for the strategic transformation of the Group. As for
marine recreation services and hotel business, the Group will
intensify its marketing efforts to respond to the impact of COVID-19
while exploring and promoting further asset restructuring.

CCHG, being the controlling shareholder of the Group and a state-
owned operating company, has been rapidly expanding its
development scale, strength and market influential power in recent
years, and it will play a greater role in the optimisation and structural
adjustment of the landscape of the state-owned sector. The Group,
being CCHG's only platform listed overseas, will fully leverage
resources brought by its controlling shareholder and will further
reinforce its strategic guidance and devote resources to focus on the
rapid development of its core leasing business, so as to create
greater value for shareholders. The Board is confident about the
future development of the Group.

ASSET STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As the COVID-19 pandemic has a relatively small impact on the
Group's asset quality and capital liquidity, the Group continues to
maintain a sound financial position. As at 31 December 2020, the
equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,979.64 million, representing an increase of
approximately 7% from approximately HK$2,780.84 million recorded
as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the total assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$3,906.75 million, representing a rise of
approximately 9% as compared to the total assets of approximately
HK$3,600.66 million as at 31 December 2019. The total current
assets of the Group was approximately HK$2,022.71 million,
accounting for approximately 52% of the total assets and
representing a decrease of approximately 22% as compared to the
total current assets of approximately HK$2,575.93 million as at 31
December 2019, which was mainly due to the Group's reduction of
other financial assets during the year for an increase of approximately
HK$753.64 million in high-yield loans receivable of finance leasing
business under non-current assets. The Group's total non-current
assets amounted to approximately HK$1,884.04 million, accounting
for approximately 48% of the total assets and representing an
increase of approximately 84% as compared to the total non-current
assets of approximately HK$1,024.73 million as at 31 December
2019, which was largely because of a growth in loans receivable
under non-current assets from the expansion of the scale of the
Group's leasing business.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group's total liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$921.48 million, representing a rise of
approximately 34% as compared to the total liabilities of
approximately HK$686.45 million as at 31 December 2019. The total
non-current liabilities of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$49.88 million, accounting for approximately 5% of the total
liabilities, which approximated to the total non-current liabilities of
approximately HK$50.41 million as at 31 December 2019. The
Group's total current liabilities amounted to approximately HK$871.60
million, accounting for approximately 95% of the total liabilities and
representing an increase of approximately 37% as compared to the
total current liabilities of approximately HK$636.04 million as at 31
December 2019, which was mainly due to: (i) a rise in customers’
deposit received from newly transacted finance lease projects during
the year; (i) an increase in bank borrowings for the expansion of the
leasing business; and (iii) an increase in trade payables related to the
commencement of international trading of bulk commodities during
the year. Although the current ratio (calculated as total current assets
divided by total current liabilities) as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately 2.3 times, representing a decrease of approximately
1.7 times as compared to the current ratio of approximately 4.0
times as at 31 December 2019, the liquidity of the assets of the
Group remained sound. The Group expects to have adequate
financial resources to cope with the commitments and liabilities in
the coming year and the possible impacts on its financial position
from the ongoing COVID-19 epidemic.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and deposits (including
pledged bank deposits, and bank balances and cash) of
approximately HK$865.17 million, which were primarily denominated
in RMB, HKD and the United States dollars (“USD"), accounting for
approximately 22% and 29% of the total assets and the net assets
respectively, and representing a growth of approximately 17% as
compared to approximately HK$738.98 million recorded as at 31
December 2019. This is mainly because the Group completed the
sale of the entire equity interest in Chengtong Investment for a
consideration of approximately RMB241.19 million on 24 July 2020.
As at 31 December 2020, the bank borrowings of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$338.42 million, representing a rise of
approximately 22% as compared to the bank borrowings of
approximately HK$277.70 million as at 31 December 2019. Bank
borrowings of approximately HK$178.42 million were denominated
in RMB with a term of three years with the final repayment date to
be due within 2023 and the remaining balance of HK$160.00 million
was a revolving loan denominated in HKD with the final repayment
date to be due at the end of June 2021. The effective annual interest
rates of the bank borrowings ranged from approximately 2.11% to
approximately 4.5%. For the year under review, the interest
coverage ratio (as calculated by dividing consolidated profit before
income tax and finance costs by finance costs) was approximately
20.2 times, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
26% as compared to the ratio of approximately 16.0 times recorded
as at 31 December 2019, which indicated that the Group's finance
costs still remained at a low level relative to the profit for the year
under review.
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DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

The debt to equity ratio (calculated by dividing total interest-bearing
loans by total equity) as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
12.1%, representing an increase of approximately 2.6% as compared
to the debt to equity ratio of approximately 9.5% as at 31 December
2019 and the liability remained at a low level which indicated a stable
financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group had no significant investment exceeding 5% of the total
asset value of the Group as at 31 December 2020.

For details of the Group's other financial assets, please refer to note
25 to the financial statements in this annual report. Looking ahead,
the Group has determined that leasing is the main direction of
business development and will reduce investments in other financial
assets to increase high-yield business of finance leasing and
operating leasing so as to maximise shareholders’ value.

TREASURY POLICIES

The business activities and operation of the Group are mainly carried
out in Mainland China and Hong Kong, with transactions
denominated in RMB, HKD and the USD, which exposed the Group
to foreign currency risks. The Group’'s HKD-denominated bank
borrowings of HK$160 million were based on floating interest rates,
which exposed the Group to interest rate risks. The Group will use
interest rate and foreign currency swaps and forward foreign
exchange contracts, when appropriate, for risk management and
hedging purposes, with a view to managing the Group's exposure to
interest rate and foreign exchange rate fluctuations. It is the Group's
policy not to enter into derivative financing transactions for
speculative purposes. It is also the Group’s policy not to invest in
financial products with significant underlying leverage or derivative
exposure, including hedge funds or similar instruments.
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IX.

Management Discussion and Analysis

INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings were
denominated in HKD and RMB, of which both the RMB-denominated
bank borrowings of approximately HK$178.42 million and the HKD-
denominated bank borrowings of approximately HK$160 million were
based on floating interest rates. The floating interest rates were
stable at a low level because banks in Hong Kong had sufficient
capital and strong liquidity and there was no urgent need to increase
the interest rates. Although currently the Group does not have any
hedging measures against such interest rate risks, it will continue to
closely monitor the risks arising from such interest rate fluctuation.
When interest rate rises, hedging instruments may be used in due
course against the interest rate risks caused by the HKD-
denominated bank borrowings which are based on floating interest
rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

During the year under review, the Group's businesses were
principally conducted in RMB, while most of the Group’s assets and
liabilities were denominated in HKD and RMB. Any fluctuation in the
exchange rate of HKD against RMB may have an impact on the
Group’s results. As at 31 December 2020, the net assets of the
Group’s business within the territory of the PRC were approximately
RMB2,154.13 million. According to Hong Kong Accounting
Standards, such amount of net assets denominated in RMB should
be converted at the exchange rate applicable as at the end of the
reporting period. Due to the increase in the Group’s foreign exchange
reserve of approximately HK$144.03 million as a result of the
appreciation of RMB during the year under review, there had been a
rise in the Group's net assets as at 31 December 2020. Although
foreign currency fluctuations did not pose significant risks to the
Group during the year under review and the Group currently does not
have any hedging measures against such exchange risks, the Group
will continue to closely monitor the possible risks arising from such
currency fluctuations.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's pledged bank deposits
amounted to approximately HK$5.56 million, representing an
increase of approximately 25% from approximately HK$4.46 million
pledged as at 31 December 2019. The pledged bank deposits
included approximately HK$4.17 million (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$4.19 million) pledged as security for banking
facilities granted to mortgagors, and approximately HK$1.28 million
(as at 31 December 2019: nil) as guaranteed deposits to banks that
issued import letters of credit for the international bulk commodity
trade business, and the remaining pledged bank deposit of
approximately HK$0.11 million (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$ 0.27 million) was guaranteed deposit.

As at 31 December 2020, loans receivables of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$199.99 million were
charged as security for the Group's bank borrowings with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$178.42 million.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's capital commitments
consisted of purchase of property, plant and equipment, which were
funded by its internal resources. Please refer to notes 42 and 43 to
the financial statements in this annual report for details of the
Group’s contingent liabilities and capital commitments.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have any

future plans for other material investments or capital assets in the
coming year.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

No significant event has occurred after the end of the year under
review.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Mr. Zhang Bin

Mr. Zhang, aged 52, is an executive Director and Chairman of the Board of
the Company. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in July 2010. He was appointed
as an executive Director with effect from 30 January 2014 and served as
the Acting Chairman of the Board with effect from 1 December 2018 until
he was appointed as Chairman of the Board on 26 June 2019. Mr. Zhang
also served as the Managing Director of the Company from 15 June 2017
to 22 October 2019. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Zhang holds an EMBA degree from China Europe
International Business School and a Doctorate degree from Peking
University. He also undertook postdoctoral research in Rutgers University
and North Carolina State University in the United States. Mr. Zhang has
rich experience in corporate management. Mr. Zhang is currently a
chairman of China Chengtong Hong Kong Company Limited (“CCHK"),
which has an interest in the shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO") and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHG, the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

Mr. Yang Tianzhou

Mr. Yang, aged 48, joined the Group in October 2019 as an executive
Director and Managing Director of the Company and acted as a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics and a master’s degree in business administration
from Peking University. In September 2009, he was accredited as a
chartered financial analyst by CFA Institute. Mr. Yang worked in various
departments and affiliated institutions of the State Administration of
Foreign Exchange ("SAFE") of the PRC. He worked as the deputy director
of the Business Supervision Division of SAFE and the Strategic Research
Division of the Reserve Management Department of SAFE, as the vice-
representative of the Representative Office of the People's Bank of China
in America and the chief dealer of the New York Trading Office of SAFE,
and as the director of the General Affairs Division of the SAFE Investment
Centre respectively. Mr. Yang also served as the deputy mayor of Dezhou
City, Shandong Province, the PRC and worked as the vice-president of the
Hunan Branch of the Export-Import Bank of China. From July 2017 to May
2019, he worked as the general manager of Polaris Bay Group Company
Limited, whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Since
September 2019, Mr. Yang has been working as the deputy general
manager of CCHK, which has an interest in the shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. In addition, Mr. Yang is currently a
director of several Hong Kong subsidiaries of CCHK.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Wang Tianlin

Mr. Wang, aged 48, is an executive Director and a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2007.
Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor's and master’'s degrees from Beijing
Institute of Technology and in 2003, he obtained his master’'s degree in
Business Administration in Finance from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Wang was previously the secretary to the board of directors of
Sihuan Pharmaceutical Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and also was the assistant to the president
of CCHK, which has an interest in the shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO. He is currently the deputy general manager of
CCHK and an executive director and general manager of China Huandao
Group Limited (formerly known as China Huandao Group Co.), a subsidiary
of CCHG. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in corporate governance,
capital management and business administration.

Mr. Li Shufang

Mr. Li, aged 53, is an executive Director, the deputy general manager of
the Company and a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Li joined the Company in January 2005, and worked as senior manager
and the assistant to general manager of the Company. He obtained his
bachelor’s degree in investment economics management from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics, and a master’'s degree in business
administration from Tsinghua University. Mr. Li has worked in various
departments (including the finance department and the investment
department) of FEI¥ & IR E LR AT (unofficial English translation
being China Materials Development and Investment Corporation) (currently
known as P EALZEILEBR AR (unofficial English translation being China
Paper Investment Corporation Limited)), which is a wholly- owned
subsidiary of CCHG. Also, he worked as deputy general manager or
business manager in various private companies in the PRC. Mr. Li has also
been working as the deputy general manager of CCHK, which has an
interest in the shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, since September 2019.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Professor Chang Qing

Professor Chang, aged 63, is an independent non-executive Director.
Professor Chang joined the Group in January 2013. Professor Chang
studied Economics at Jilin University and obtained his master's degree in
Economics from Jilin University in 1985 and PhD degree from Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences. He has over 30 years of experience in
economic and financial field. He is currently the chairman of Jinpeng
International Futures Co., Ltd., a professor of College of Economics and
Management of China Agricultural University, supervisor of Futures and
Financial Derivatives Association of China Agricultural University and a
member of the expert committee of China Securities Journal. Professor
Chang is now acting as an independent non-executive director of Kangda
International Environmental Company Limited and Honghua Group Limited
(both companies’ shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange). He also previously served as independent directors of Tibet
Summit Resources Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Tibet Summit Industry Co.
Ltd) and TBEA Co., Ltd. (both companies’ shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) as well as Yuan Long Ping High-Tech Agriculture Co.,
Ltd., Rongfeng Holding Group Co., Ltd. and Shenwu Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. (all three companies’ shares are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Professor Chang was a council member of the
Shanghai Futures Exchange and the vice president of the expert committee
of China Futures Association.

Mr. Lee Man Chun, Tony

Mr. Lee, aged 67, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lee joined
the Group in November 2013. Mr. Lee obtained a master’'s degree in
Business Administration from Chu Hai College of Higher Education in 1981.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has over 40 years of experience in accounting, capital markets,
corporate management, finance and banking. Previously, he worked for
and held senior positions with Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited and Sanwa International Finance Ltd. Mr. Lee was an executive
director of Shenwan Hongyuan (H.K.) Limited (formerly known as Shenyin
Wanguo (H.K.) Limited) (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange) from June 2000 to June 2017, and served as its
chief executive officer during the period from July 2000 to March 2012.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
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Professor He Jia

Professor He, aged 66, is an independent non-executive Director.
Professor He joined the Group in September 2015. He holds a PhD degree
in Finance from the Wharton School of University of Pennsylvania, the
United States. Currently, he is the Dean of Shanghai North Bund Finance
Institute, a member of RIIT & ELEFRAKAZMNEZEF (unofficial English
translation being Finance Development Decision-making Consultation
Committee of Shenzhen), Cheung Kong Visiting Chair Professor of the
Ministry of Education and an executive director and academic member of
the China Society for Finance and Banking. Professor He currently acts as
a financial consultant for the Chengdu and Quanzhou municipal
governments. Professor He is currently an independent non- executive
director of Bank of Tianjin Co., Ltd., Wealthking Investments Limited
(formerly known as OP Financial Limited) and CITIC Securities Company
Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) and an independent director of Norinco International
Cooperation Ltd. and Xinlong Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. (the shares of both
companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He previously
served as an independent non- executive director of Shanghai Junshi
Biosciences Co., Ltd. (the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange), an independent director of Tibet Huayu Mining Co.,
Ltd., Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd. (the shares of both companies are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Shenzhen Xinguodu Technology Co.,
Ltd. (the shares of which are listed on ChiNext of Shenzhen Stock
Exchange), Shenzhen Soling Industrial Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Small
and Medium Enterprises Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and China
Investment Securities Co., Ltd. He was also the leading professor of the
Faculty of Financial Mathematics and Engineering at the South University
of Science and Technology of China, a jointly- appointed professor at the
Tsinghua University,a professor of the Department of Finance and a
director of the MBA program in Finance at the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He was also an editor of China Financial Economics Review, and
served as a member of the editorial boards of a number of journals,
including China Accounting and Finance Review and Research in Banking
and Finance. Professor He was a commissioner of the Planning and
Development Committee of China Securities Regulatory Commission from
June 2001 to August 2002, and a director of integrated research institute
of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from June 2001 to October 2002.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Chan Siu Kay

Mr. Chan, aged 61, is the financial controller of the Company and a director
of several subsidiaries of the Company. He joined the Company in May
2014. Mr. Chan holds a master’s degree in Business Administration from
the University of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom and a master’s degree
in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Certified Public Accountant of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. He is also a Fellow Certified Professional Economist of The
Hong Kong Society of Economists Limited. Mr. Chan has gained over 27
years of experience in audit, accounting, taxation, corporate finance and
initial public offering from working in an international audit firm and a
number of listed companies.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Poon Tsz Kin

Mr. Poon, aged 55, joined the Company in May 2019. He holds a
professional diploma in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Poon previously worked for an
international audit firm and a number of public companies in Hong Kong,
Singapore and Canada respectively. He has more than 20 years' experience
in auditing, accounting and finance, internal control and corporate
management.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Group for the Year.

The Group considers that good corporate governance is vital to the healthy
and sustainable development of the Group and the Group strives to uphold
high standard of corporate governance continuously.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with all the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) for the Year.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure those continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code, and
acknowledges the important role of the Board in providing effective
leadership and direction to the Group's business, and ensuring operational
transparency and accountability.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
during the Year are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership for the Company in the interests of the
shareholders, approves policies, strategies and plans, and oversees their
implementation to sustain the healthy growth of the Company.

The Board is responsible for all major matters of the Group, and the
approval and monitoring of all material changes in policies, including risk
management strategies, dividend policy, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company, with
a view to ensure that the Board's procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. In general, each Director can seek independent
professional advices in appropriate circumstances at the Company's
expenses, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Managing Director, executive Directors and senior
management. Approval from the Board has to be obtained prior to entering
into any significant transactions by the aforementioned personnel.
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Composition

The composition of the Board encompasses the necessary balance of skills
and experiences desirable for effective leadership of the Group and reflects
the independence in decision-making of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised the following Directors:
Executive Directors

ZHANG Bin (Chairman of the Board)
YANG Tianzhou (Managing Director)
WANG Tianlin

LI Shufang

Independent Non-executive Directors

CHANG Qing
LEE Man Chun, Tony
HE Jia

The list of Directors (by category) is disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company and on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Company has at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors representing not less than one-third of the Board, with
at least one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
existing independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and relevant experience to the Board and provide
independent opinions for decision-making of the Board. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in issues involving potential
conflicts of interest and serving on committees of the Board, all
independent non-executive Directors make positive contributions to the
orderly management and effective operation of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Board has established the nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and adopted formal, considered and transparent procedures
for the appointment and succession planning of Directors. Appropriate
candidates for directorship as properly selected by the Nomination
Committee will be proposed to the Board for approval.
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The Board and the Nomination Committee as a whole are responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. The Board reviews
its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Group.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, one-third of
the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation every year and any new
Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following AGM of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. Detailed information
of the Directors standing for re-election will be set out in the circular of the
Company in relation to the forthcoming AGM to be despatched to the
shareholders.

All independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a fixed term
expiring on 30 June 2021.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy and the Company
continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to
maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and recognises
and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board.

The Company believes that diversity of the Board can be achieved through
consideration of a number of factors when deciding on appointments of
Directors, including but not limited to skills, regional and industrial
experience, cultural and educational background, race, gender, age, length
of service and any other factors that the Board deems appropriate from
time to time. In implementing its perspectives on Board diversity, the
Company will also take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time.

The composition, experience and balance of skills in the Board are regularly
reviewed and assessed to ensure that the Board retains a core of
members with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside with new
Director(s) to be appointed from time to time who bring(s) fresh
perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The Nomination
Committee has the primary responsibility for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying out such
responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity
Policy. The Nomination Committee believes that the current composition
of the Board is based on the history and actual conditions of the Company
and demonstrates a thorough consideration of the factors for achieving
board diversity.
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The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to
ensure its ongoing effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will also
assess the merits and contribution brought by the Directors to the Board
against the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board that would complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals for reviewing the Group's financial and operating
performance, discussing and approving annual and interim results and

considering and approving the overall strategies of the Company.

During the Year, ten Board meetings were held, including four regular
Board meetings.

The individual attendance record of each Director in respect of the Board
meetings held during the Year is set out below:

Name of Directors
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Number of Board
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ZHANG Bin 10/10
RO
YANG Tianzhou 10/10
1% BN
WANG Tianlin 8/10
F R
LI Shufang 10/10
FER
CHANG Qing 10/10
I
LEE Man Chun, Tony 10/10
T2
HE Jia 10/10
CINES

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Meeting schedules and agenda of each Board meeting are normally made
available to the Directors in advance. Notices of regular Board meetings
are served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other
Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.
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Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors in a timely manner before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
development and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The company secretary of the Company assists the Chairman of the Board
to prepare the agenda for the Board meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and procedures are followed in each meeting. Draft agenda
is sent to all Directors in advance to allow Directors to include any matter
they would like to discuss in the meeting. Draft minutes are circulated to
all Directors for review and amendment as soon as practicable after the
meeting is held. All Board members will be given a copy of the finalised
minutes approved by Directors who attended the meeting.

Should a Director have any conflict of interest in any proposed transactions,
the Director concerned will not participate in the discussion and will abstain
from voting on related resolutions. Directors without any conflict of interest
will be present at the Board meetings to vote and resolve on such issues.

Chairman and Managing Director

During the Year, the positions of Chairman of the Board and Managing
Director were held by Mr. Zhang Bin and Mr. Yang Tianzhou respectively.
Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing to
ensure a balance of power and authority.

As the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Zhang Bin provides leadership to the
Board and is responsible for ensuring that relevant duties and
responsibilities are fully and appropriately executed by the Directors in
accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the support of
the senior management, the Chairman of the Board is also responsible for
ensuring that each of the Directors can timely receive adequate, complete
and reliable information and appropriate briefing on issues to be discussed
at Board meetings.

Mr. Yang Tianzhou, the Managing Director, is responsible for leading the
management to implement policies, strategies as well as all goals and
plans adopted and approved by the Board, and is in charge of the
Company's day-to-day operations.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the executive
committee (“Executive Committee”), audit committee (”Audit
Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”)
and Nomination Committee, each overseeing and being responsible for
affairs in different aspects of the Company. All Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expenses.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all executive Directors. The Executive
Committee is responsible for the daily business operations and
management of the Company, the execution of decisions and strategies of
the Board within the scope of authorisation granted by the Board. The
Executive Committee regularly reports to the Board regarding the Group’s
business operations and seeks its advice and approval on matters involving
material decision-making.

During the Year and as at the date of this report, the Executive Committee
comprised Mr. Zhang Bin (chairman of the Executive Committee),Mr. Yang
Tianzhou, Mr. Wang Tianlin and Mr. Li Shufang.

Audit Committee

During the Year and as at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprised three independent non- executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee
Man Chun, Tony (chairman of the Audit Committee), Professor Chang Qing
and Professor He Jia. Mr. Lee Man Chun, Tony is an independent non-
executive Director who possesses the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@)  to review the financial statements and reports of the Company and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the internal
auditor or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b)  to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to
the work performed by the auditor, its fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; and

(c)  toreview the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee has held three meetings during the Year to review
the audit plan, financial results and reports, capital management system,
internal control system and the re-appointment of the external auditor.

During the Year, there were no material uncertainties or events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.

There was no disagreement between the Audit Committee and the Board
in respect of matters about selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of an external auditor.
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During the Year, the Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2019 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2020 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

During the Year and as at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprised two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Professor He Jia (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Lee
Man Chun, Tony and an executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang Bin.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of
the Company as well as on the remuneration packages of individual
Directors and the senior management. The human resources department
of the Group is responsible for the collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his
associates will participate in deciding on his own remuneration. The
remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the Company
is determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company, their role and position (if any) in the group members of CCHG,
the ultimate holding company of the Company, as well as market
conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year to review
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company and the
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management. At
the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed the performance of
Directors, reviewed their service contracts, considered their role and
position (if any) in the group members of CCHG, salaries and/or director's
fees paid by comparable companies and general employment conditions
before making recommendations to the Board regarding the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

During the Year and as at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprised two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Professor Chang Qing (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr.
Lee Man Chun, Tony, and an executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang Bin.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating candidates for
directorship appointment and succession, reviewing the composition and
structure of the Board from time to time and making recommendations to
the Board in order to ensure the balance of expertise, skills and experience
among the members of the Board.
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According to the Nomination Policy adopted by the Company,
appointments of Board members will be made on a merit basis and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria. The selection
criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate include:

o the candidate’s academic background and qualifications (including
professional qualifications, skills and knowledge which are relevant
to the Company'’s business and corporate strategy);

o the candidate’s relevant experience in the industry;
o the candidate’s character and integrity;

o the candidate’s willingness and capacity to devote adequate time in
discharge of a director’s duties;

o whether the candidate can contribute to the Board a diversity of
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, race, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service;

o (where the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director) whether the candidate is in compliance with
the criteria of independence under the Listing Rules; and

° any other factors as may be determined by the Board from time to
time.

In terms of nomination procedures, any Board member may nominate or
invite a candidate for appointment as a Director to be considered by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will then evaluate the
personal profile of the candidate based on the selection criteria set out
above, undertake due diligence in respect of such candidate and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval. For
nomination of independent non-executive Director, the Nomination
Committee will also assess the candidate’s independence in accordance
with the CG Code and the Listing Rules. For re-appointment of retiring
Directors, the Nomination Committee will review the candidate’s overall
contribution and performance (including the candidate's attendance at
Board committee meetings, Board meetings and general meetings, his/her
level of participation and performance on the Board), and make
recommmendations to the Board and shareholders for re-election at general
meetings.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to review
the Nomination Policy and the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee as well as the matters relating to re-election of retiring
Directors.

TRERRS
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Board Committee Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
The individual attendance record of each Director in respect of the

meetings of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee held during the Year is set out below:

EEZE883

EBANEREFLELE
BESEUNKFEARITZEREZES - i
ZEgkREZERgRE @R L EREERTI
T

Number of Attendance/

Number of Board Committee Meetings Held

HERY BITEESREEETERY

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee
EEHE EREEY FHEES REZEEE
ZHANG Bin Not applicable 11 1
ok TE A
CHANG Qing 3/3 Not applicable il
B B TEA
LEE Man Chun, Tony 3/3 11 il
TE2
HE Jia 3/3 11 Not applicable
il TiEA

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions (“Code of Conduct”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the
Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the requirements of the Code of Conduct and the Model Code during the
Year. No incident of non-compliance of the Code of Conduct or the Model
Code by the Directors was noted by the Board during the Year.

The Company has also set out written guidelines on terms no less exacting
than the Model Code for securities transactions by the employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company due to their responsibilities and duties. No incident of non-
compliance of the written guidelines by the employees was noted by the
Board during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee. Instead,
the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions such as developing and reviewing the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of the Directors and senior
management, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. The
Board is also responsible for reviewing and has during the Year reviewed
the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
corporate governance report.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of the
company secretary of the Company with a view to ensuring that the Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. They are
also entitled to have full access to Board papers and related materials so
that they are able to make an informed decision and to discharge their
duties and responsibilities.

SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the
duties and responsibilities of being a director, the relevant laws and
regulations applicable to directors, duty of disclosure of interest and
business of the Group and the Directors have been updated by the
Company on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure
agreed by the Board to ensure that the Directors, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance, at the Company’s expenses.

EXRERHRSE

EERRAE
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ZHRE -
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According to the training records provided by the Directors to the
Company, each of the Directors has participated in continuous professional
development during the Year by attending seminars/in-house briefing/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills:

Name of Directors

REESAARRIRB IS FEFER
AFENBBHEAATI TR Z BHE, WAL
B HEMNSETA2ERBEEERR - UE
FR R BRI 2 AN B B

Topics on training covered

EEHE FriRE 2 23 £ 58
(Note)
(Ht5z)

ZHANG Bin a, b

&R

YANG Tianzhou a,b

5 E M

WANG Tianlin a, b

BN

LI Shufang a, b

AT IR

CHANG Qing a b

I |

LEE Man Chun, Tony ab,c

FE2

HE Jia a, b

CIIRES

Notes: Hiat -

(a) Regulatory matters for listed companies, Listing Rules and financial reporting (a) FARAINEEEE - EWMRRRGERE

(b) Environmental, social and governance matters (b) RE - HEREARAEH

(c) PRC financial market studies () FEEETISHR

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 67 to 71 of the annual report of the Company
for the Year.

The remuneration of the external auditor of the Company in respect of
audit services and non-audit services for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$1,070,000 and HK$360,000 respectively. An analysis of
the remuneration of the external auditor of the Company is set out below:

EXRERHRSE

B BN R B SMNIS AZ BAD S 70 EL ph B 7% ¥R 5% B B
BEFFNEBRERARRRANFR 2 FERES
67E71 BB RN RS o

RREE RINEZEAD A AN F E R BRI &
EEERE MEINME S RN AELEE
1,070,000 7T 2 75 # 360,000 7T © ANA &) IMNE#Z £
ERIEN S D ATEAN T

Amount of Fee

BA

(HK$'000)

(BEMFoT)

Audit services B R 1,070

Non-audit services: IEBIZRTS ¢
— Review of interim results — R HI AR 180
— Services in relation to the disposal of 100% — REBEN L E R EB AT 100% R 180
equity interest in a subsidiary company 2 7%

Total “Et 1,430
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL B2 EE R AP EEE

The organisation structure of the Company has defined lines of ARFIMALMLEBEEERARET 2D BHER

responsibilities and appropriate responsibilities and authority were
delegated to senior management. The Board is responsible for the
establishment and effective operation of the risk management and internal
control system. The Company has also established a risk management
department, of which one of the executive Directors serves as the general
manager, to be responsible for the internal audit function and to assist the
Board to review the risk management and internal control system of the
Group on an ongoing basis. However, such system aims at limiting the
risks of the Group to an acceptable level but not at eliminating all risks.
Hence, such system can only provide reasonable assurance that there will
not be any error in financial information and record, and there will not be
any fraud. The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established effective and operational procedures to identify,
assess and manage major risks faced by the Group. Such procedures will
be updated from time to time to reflect the changes in rules and
regulations, and serve as a guideline for updating the risk management and
internal control system in a timely manner. The Board considers that as at
the date of this report, the risk management and internal control system is
adequate and effective in safeguarding the assets of the Group and
protecting the interests of shareholders, customers and employees of the
Group.

EORBREENEEREE -EESREARE
BRAREE RGN R EB BB - AT
NERIEBEREFT BEP—BRTERE
ERIPIREE - AENBBERNERBHESE
HERIAEENRRERERABEZRL - A
M- ZESE LR AKEZERE A EZKF
B3 NEEHEBRFT B R - B - ZRREREE
BRBIMBER R E T E R MR R E
B WREER NG A EANKERMHIBRIED
BIERMIFBEERE ©

EFeCBURR  FEREEAKERENE
ZRBAERLAEFRF - ZEFATHE
¥ ARBRRRIER IR E R - I BEREEH
EBRERERABEIZERR2IES - BEFER/RN
ABREBH  EREERABEZRRTENRLE
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REERF S -
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The Executive Committee is responsible for implementing the procedures
approved by the Board to identify, assess and manage major risks faced by
the Group. Such procedures include the design, operation and supervision
of suitable risk management and internal control system to mitigate and
control risks. Major procedures established for reviewing the suitability and
compliance of the risk management and internal control system are as
follows:

o the Board is responsible for the supervision of all business activities
of the Group and the implementation of strategic plans and policy.
The Executive Committee is responsible for the effective daily
operation of the Group and for ensuring that the Group operates in
accordance with the objectives, strategy and budget of the Group;

o the Audit Committee periodically reviews the work of the risk
management department, external auditor, regulatory bodies and the
Executive Committee in respect of the risk management and internal
control system, and assesses the feasibility and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system; and

° the risk management department also formulates the annual internal
audit plan and procedures, conducts periodic independent reviews
on the operations of individual divisions and subsidiaries to identify
any irregularities and risks, develops action plans and makes
recommendations to address the identified risks, and reports to the
Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal
audit process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on
any material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of Code Provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code, the Board conducts a comprehensive review of the risk
management and internal control system on an annual basis. The review
includes an assessment of the prevailing internal control and risk
management practices of the Group and covers various aspects including
financial control, operational control, compliance control and risk
management.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the review report of the risk
management department in respect of the Group's resources, staff
qualifications and experience in accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions as well as training courses and budgets, and had
conducted a comprehensive review of the risk management and internal
control system of the Company covering the period from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020. Compared with 2019, there has been no significant
or major change in the nature and extent of the risks faced by the Group as
well as the ability of the Company to cope with the changes in business
environment. Though COVID-19 brings new challenges to the Group, the
Board considered that the internal control and risk management system of
the Company is adequate and effective and the Company has complied
with the code provisions on internal control and risk management of the
CG Code.
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In addition, the Company has formulated policies on information disclosure
and regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly comply with
relevant policies on inside information while notifying the Directors, senior
management and employees the latest guidance announced by the
regulatory body on such information disclosure from time to time to keep
all of them abreast of the latest requirements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, Mr. Poon Tsz Kin, who is a full-time employee of the
Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. In
delivering his service as company secretary of the Company, Mr. Poon has
direct contact with the Chairman of the Board, the Managing Director and
other senior management of the Company to ensure that good information
flows among the Directors and that Board policy, procedures and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. He is also responsible
for facilitating professional development training of the Directors.

Mr. Poon has confirmed that during the Year, he had taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all the resolutions of general meetings are
conducted by way of poll.

Poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company on the day of the relevant general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee or in their absence, other members
of the Board or the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer questions at the
general meetings.

EXRERHRSE
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During the Year, the Company had held two general meetings (being the
AGM and the extraordinary general meeting (“"EGM") held on 26 June
2020). The attendance records of the Directors in respect of the general
meetings held during the Year are as follows:

Name of Directors

RAEAFEAN - AR HBITRRBERAES (AR
TECEERATARASTHERRBEFRER
BREIAG(RRENAE]))  EZHER
AEERITZRRREG 2 HFEREMT

Number of Attendance/
Number of General
Meetings Held

EEnR HEREBITRRAERH
ZHANG Bin 2/2
RO
YANG Tianzhou 2/2
1o M
WANG Tianlin 0/2
TR
LI Shufang 2/2
FEF N
CHANG Qing 2/2
s B
LEE Man Chun, Tony 2/2
FE2
HE Jia 2/2
fi] 1=

The Company will continue to enhance communications and relationships
with its shareholders and investors to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with timely.

Currently, investors can access the Company’s information through

the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website at
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chengtong.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

(1)

(2)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

In accordance with sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”),
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings of the Company may require the Directors to convene an
EGM. The written requisition must state the general nature of the
business to be dealt with at the EGM and must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the principal office of the
Company for the attention of the company secretary in hard copy
form or sent to the Company in electronic form. The requisition may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more of the shareholders concerned.

If the Directors do not, within 21 days after the date on which the
written requisition is received by the Company, proceed duly to
convene an EGM on a date not more than 28 days after the date of
the notice convening the EGM, the shareholder(s) who requested
the meeting, or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM,
provided that the EGM so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which general meetings are
to be convened by the Directors.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can be directed to
the Company's share registrar and transfer office, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, by post to the address at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Other shareholders’ enquiries can be
directed to the Company Secretarial Department of the Company or
the company secretary of the Company by post to the principal office
of the Company at Suite 6406, 64/F., Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or by e-mail to public@hk217.com.

TRERRS
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(3)

Procedures for Putting Forward Resolutions at General Meetings

Shareholders are requested to follow sections 615 and 616 of the
Companies Ordinance for including a resolution at an AGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out below:

(i)

(ii)

Any number of shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all shareholders having a right to vote on
the resolution at an AGM to which the requisition relates, or at
least 50 shareholders having a right to vote on the resolution at
an AGM to which the requisition relates, may submit a
requisition in writing to put forward a resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at an AGM.

The Company shall not be bound by the Companies Ordinance
to give notice of the proposed resolution or to circulate a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution to shareholders
of the Company entitled to receive notice of an AGM unless a
copy of the requisition specifying the resolution of which
notice is to be given and signed by the shareholders concerned
(or 2 or more copies which contain the signatures of all the
shareholders concerned) is deposited at the principal office of
the Company for the attention of the company secretary in
hard copy form or is sent to the Company in electronic form
not later than (i) 6 weeks before an AGM to which the
requisition relates; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is
given of that AGM.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has not amended its constitutional documents during the

Year.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The principal business of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 72 of this annual report.

In order to enhance transparency of the Company and facilitate the
shareholders of the Company and investors to make informed investment
decisions relating to the Company, the Board adopted a dividend policy on
25 February 2019 (“Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether to declare
any dividend in the future and the amount of dividend to be declared, the
Company shall consider a number of factors, including but not limited to:

o the Group's actual and expected financial results;

o the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company;

o the Company’s business operation strategy, including expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and
future expansion plans;

° the Company’s liquidity position;
o retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the Company;

o the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends imposed by
the Company’s lenders and other institutions; and

o any other factors that the Board considers to be applicable from time
to time.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution
proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, payment and amount of
dividends will be subject to the Board’s discretion. The Board will review
the Dividend Policy on a regular basis.
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After considering the Dividend Policy, the Directors have resolved to
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKO0.9 cent per Share in
respect of the Year (2019: nil) and also to recommend the Scrip Dividend
Scheme, subject to the approval of the shareholders on the payment of
final dividend at the forthcoming AGM of the Company and the granting by
the Stock Exchange of the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Shares
to be issued pursuant to the Scrip Dividend Scheme. The total amount of
final dividend is expected to be approximately HK$52.28 million and to be
paid on Friday, 13 August 2021. Further details of the final dividend are set
out in the sub-section headed “RESULTS AND DIVIDEND" in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and investment
properties for the Year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial
statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 76 to 77
of this annual report.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company for the Year are
set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had approximately
HK$178,591,000 distributable reserves as calculated under sections 291,
297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance (as at 31 December 2019:
HK$66,430,000).

DONATIONS

The Group's donation for charitable purpose during the Year was
approximately HK$239,000(2019: HK$193,000).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in leasing, bulk
commodity trade, property development, property investment and marine
recreation services and hotel in the PRC.

A fair review of the business of the Group during the Year, an analysis of
the Group's performance using financial key performance indicators, and
an indication of likely future developments in the Group's business are set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 6 to 22 of this annual report. These discussions form part of this
directors’ report. There are no important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the Year.

In addition, description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group, the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance, and
the Group's relationships with its key stakeholders are also provided in the
following sub-sections of this directors’ report.

Major Risks and Uncertainties

The results and business operations of the Group may be affected by various
factors. The major risks and uncertainties are summarised as follows:

I Leasing

The Group successfully attained leasing as its principal business
during the Year. In addition to projects relating to local government
infrastructure and public utilities, the Group has expanded its
business to include energy conservation and environmental
protection, as well as transportation and logistics. However, there
may be some uncertainty about the development of the Group's
leasing business due to COVID-19, external economic environment,
and changes to relevant laws and industry regulatory policies in the
PRC. Besides, there is a rising credit risk in terms of the Group's
leased asset portfolio due to the active development of the Group's
leasing business, which may affect the Group’s profitability. In the
future, the Group will continue to explore opportunities to work with
state-owned enterprises and optimise the risk level of its leased
asset portfolio so as to maintain the overall business risk under
control.

l. Bulk Commodity Trade

Bulk commodity trading prices are affected by international and
domestic markets. Once there is drastic volatility in prices, the
profitability of the Group may be affected. In the future, the Group
will strengthen the development of upstream and downstream
partners for bulk commodity trade and improve business and
management models to reduce risks. COVID-19 has a negative
impact on bulk commodity trade but the overall business risk is
manageable.
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Property Development and Property Investment

The property development projects held by the Group during the
Year are “"CCT-Champs-Elysees” and “Chengtong International
City”. Interests in “Chengtong International City” were disposed of
in full in July 2020. “CCT-Champs-Elysees” project is located in
Zhucheng City, Shandong Province, the PRC and possesses a
positive brand image with stable sales. As the Group is phasing out
from its existing property development projects, the overall risks
associated with the business are not significant.

Marine Recreation Services and Hotel

The operation of the marine recreation services and hotel business is
subject to the environmental protection policies, weather conditions
and public hygiene condition. Adverse weather conditions may affect
the number of business days and the profitability of tourism
activities. The COVID-19 epidemic in the Year also led to a decrease
in the number of tourists, and the turnover under the marine
recreation services and hotel business segment decreased by
approximately 48%, while the loss before tax increased by
approximately 252%. The epidemic is expected to continue in 2021,
making the operation still difficult. The Group will optimise the
tourism projects and related facilities from time to time according to
the actual market conditions and intensify its marketing efforts in
order to maintain the market competitiveness of its marine recreation
services and hotel business.

Economy

During the year under view, COVID-19 dealt a severe blow to the
global economy, leading to severe global economic recession,
industry chain and supply chain disruptions, and shrinking
international trade and investment. Uncertainty about the prospects
of global economic recovery will also have a profound impact on the
global economic landscape. The businesses of the Group are
concentrated in the PRC, though the PRC loan interest rates
remained relatively stable during the Year and had a slight impact on
the Group's loan interest expenses, assets and liabilities
denominated in RMB held by the Group in Hong Kong are exposed
to foreign currency exchange risk. The fluctuation of exchange rate
and the adjustment of loan interest rate in the future may have an
impact on the results of the Group. Although foreign currency and
interest rate have not posed significant risks to the Group, and the
Group does not currently have any hedging measures against such
exchange and interest rate risks, the Group will continue to closely
monitor the risks which may arise from such currency and interest
rate fluctuation.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group constantly monitored the operation of its principal businesses in
the PRC to ensure compliance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations.

I

.

Leasing

During the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report, the Group
has been in compliance in all material respects with the laws and
regulations in the PRC that have a significant impact on its finance
leasing business, including the Civil Code of the People's Republic of
China (Order No.45 of the President of the People’s Republic of
China) ( (FREARIEMBERZEM) (PEARLNEEFSELL5))
(“PRC Civil Code"), the Contract Law of the People's Republic of
China (Order No. 15 of the President of the People’'s Republic of
China) ( (hEARKMBEERZE) (FEARLMBEFESE155)
("PRC Contract Law"), the Interpretations of the Supreme People's
Court on Issues relating to the Application of Laws in the Trial of
Disputes over Finance Lease (Court Interpretation 2020 No. 17) ( {&
BARERARESEMEESERUNRTERZERBENRE) 0F
#£2020 175%)), and judicial interpretations, other regulations, local
regulations and regulatory documents issued or promulgated
according to or in relation to these laws and regulations. These laws
and regulations aim to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
the contractual parties, maintain social and economic order, guide
the business activities of the finance leasing industry, promote the
economic development of the finance leasing services, and guide
the judicial authorities on hearing the contractual disputes in respect
of finance leasing.

Bulk Commodity Trade

During the Year, the bulk commodity trade business of the Group
mainly comprises trading of chemical products, steel and coal.
During the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report, the Group
has been in compliance in all material respects with the laws and
regulations in the PRC that have a significant impact on its bulk
commodity trade business, including the PRC Civil Code, the PRC
Contract Law, the Property Right Law of the People's Republic of
China (Order No. 62 of the President of the People’'s Republic of
China) ( (PEARKFMBYEL) (PEARKMBEEESE625)),
the Negotiable Instruments Law of the People’'s Republic of China
(Order No. 22 of the President of the People’'s Republic of China)
((REARLMBEIZR L) (PEARKMEEFSE225)), Special
Provisions on Trading in Commodities on the Spot Market (for Trial
Implementation) (Order 2013 No. 3 of the Ministry of Commerce of
the People's Republic of China, the People’s Bank of China and the
China Securities Regulatory Commission) ( { BmIREMH T HHEAI
REBT)) RFEARKENMBEHBEL - PEARRT PEESEE
BEIEZE2<2013%835%)), and judicial interpretations, other
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regulations, local regulations and regulatory documents issued or
promulgated according to or in relation to those laws and regulations.
These laws and regulations are applicable to the production and
business activities in relation to chemical products, steel and coal
which are conducted in the territory of the PRC and other maritime
areas under the jurisdiction of the PRC, as well as to regulate the
national and industrial standards of the quality of the above
commodities, the supervision and management of the industry and
the standards of punishment for violation of relevant laws.

Property Development and Property Investment

During the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report, the
Group has been in compliance in all material respects with the laws
and regulations in the PRC that have a significant impact on its
property development and property investment businesses, including
the Law on the Administration of Urban Real Estate of the People's
Republic of China (Order No. 32 of the President of the People's
Republic of China) ( {HEARKMBIMTREMEERE) (FEAR
HMBEEFESE325%), the Law on Land Administration of the
People’s Republic of China (Order No. 32 of the President of the
People’'s Republic of China) ( (R ARAFE T EIRE) (FEA
RHEMBE = F < 5325%)), the Law on Urban and Rural Planning of the
People’s Republic of China (Order No. 29 of the President of the
People’s Republic of China) ( {HFZE AR MBI HEE) (FEA
REMBEEESE299)), the Administrative Regulations on
Development and Operation of Urban Real Estate (Order No. 710 of
the State Council of the People’s Republic of China) ( {7 5 i Z&E 5
B E B IRAEO) (R ARFLMEE B2 %7105%)), and judicial
interpretations, other regulations, local regulations and regulatory
documents issued or promulgated according to or in relation to these
laws and regulations. These laws and regulations aim to strengthen
the management of urban real estate, maintain the order of real
estate market, protect the legitimate rights and interests of the
parties interested in the real estate, and regulate the infrastructure
and housing construction on the state-owned land within the urban
planning area as well as the transfer of real estate development
projects or the sale or leasing of commercial flats conducted by real
estate development enterprises.
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IV. Marine Recreation Services and Hotel

The Group is also engaged in marine recreation services and hotel
business in Hainan Province, the PRC. During the Year and up to the
date of this directors’ report, the Group has been in compliance in all
material respects with the laws and regulations in the PRC that have
a significant impact on its marine recreation services and hotel
business, including the Tourism Law of the People’s Republic of
China (Order No. 16 of the President of the People’'s Republic of
China) ( {fpEE ARIMBIREEE) (FEARKME EESZE1658)),
the Law on Maritime Traffic Safety of the People’s Republic of China
(Order No. 57 of the President of the People’'s Republic of China)
((REARKMEG FBLRE) (FEARKEMEFELEL75)),
the Administrative Measures for Public Security in the Hotel Industry
(Order No. 588 of the State Council of the People's Republic of
China) ( IREEZEALEBIE) (AR LMEB LT < 285885%)),
and judicial interpretations, other regulations, local regulations and
regulatory documents issued or promulgated according to or in
relation to these laws and regulations. These laws and regulations
aim to protect the legitimate rights and interests of the tourists and
the operators of the travelling activities, maintain the order of the
tourism market, and specify the rules governing operators of the
hotel industry, vessels, seamen and operators that sail, berth and
operate in coastal area of the PRC, and the relevant supervision and
management system and the standards of punishment.

The Group has established various management systems and ensure the
compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the Group's businesses
and operations through measures such as internal control and staff training.
As at 31 December 2020 and the date of this directors’ report, no material
breach of laws and regulations that has a material impact on the Group's
business and operation during the Year was noted by the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is fully aware of the impact of environmental factors on its long-
term development and therefore has actively formulated various corporate
development strategies related to energy conservation and environmental
protection. In addition, the Group has also formulated and implemented
environmental management policies and measures, such as water and
electricity conservation, wastewater treatment and reduction of air
pollutants and waste emissions corresponding to different business areas,
so as to minimise the negative impact on the environment during the
process of business operation and commit to implementing sustainable
development.

In order to reduce the negative impact of the supply chain on the
environment, the Group will give priority to purchasing environmentally-
friendly materials. In addition, we have incorporated environmental
protection requirements into contract clauses, and requested our
contractors and suppliers to strictly comply with the relevant requirements
of environmental protection when performing their contractual obligations
so as to promote the sharing of responsibility for sustainable development
in the supply chain. In the future, the Group will continue to improve its
environmental policies to enhance the Group’'s performance in
environmental protection.
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Further details of the Group's environmental policies and performance,
together with the relevant key performance indicators, will be set out in
the environmental, social and governance (“ESG") report of the Company
to be published in due course in compliance with the provisions set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

Key Relationship with Customers and Suppliers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with customers and provide them with quality products and services. The
Group enhances the relationship through continuous interaction with
customers to gain insight on the changing market demand so that the
Group can respond proactively. The Group actively listens to the views of
its customers and has established various communication channels to
strengthen its communication with customers to collect their opinions,
while establishing a system in place to protect customers’ privacy.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the five
largest customers represented approximately 32.9% of the Group’s total
turnover. Sales to the largest customer accounted for approximately 9.7%
of the Group's total turnover. One out of the five largest customers
commenced trading with the Group since the year 2019 and the remaining
four commenced trading with the Group during the Year. The Directors
consider that there is no significant risk associated with reliance on major
customers. During the year under review, 0-90 days’ credit period was
granted to customers of bulk commodity trade business (2019: nil). As at
31 December 2020, trade receivables of the Group was approximately
HK$32.78 million. The Directors are of the view that the amount can be
fully recovered notwithstanding a loss allowance of approximately
HK$5,000 was made against the trade receivables. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances
are regularly reviewed by senior management.

The Group is also dedicated to maintaining good relationship with suppliers
and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the
Group's business. In addition, the Group has established a strict supplier
management and evaluation system to control procurement risks and
costs.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases (which means the
amount of purchases included in the costs of sale but does not include
purchases of items which are of a capital nature) attributable to the five
largest suppliers represented approximately 50.8% of the Group's total
purchases. Purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 22.5% of the Group’s total purchases. The five largest
suppliers came from the bulk commodity trade business and they have
established trading relationship with the Group for a period ranging from 1
to 4 years. As at 31 December 2020, trade payables of the Group was
approximately HK$19.89 million, which will be due within one year. The
Group has established a supplier evaluation system with standardised
tender and bidding procedures for the selection of suppliers. The Directors
consider that there is no significant risk associated with reliance on major
suppliers.
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None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and any shareholders which to the best knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the Year.

Human Resources and Emolument Policy

The Group understands its employees are important assets and well-
established human resources management system helps to attract and
retain outstanding talents. In this regards, the Group has established and
implemented relevant human resources management policies to
systematically manage human resources functions, to protect employees’
rights, to provide appropriate staff development and training, and safe and
healthy work environment to enhance the Group's sustainable
development.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 288 employees
(as at 31 December 2019: 291), of which 12 (as at 31 December 2019: 12)
were based in Hong Kong and 276 (as at 31 December 2019: 279) were
based in the PRC. During the Year, the total staff costs of the Group
(including directors’ emoluments and provident funds) were approximately
HK67.00 million. Employee’s remunerations are determined in accordance
with their experiences, competence, qualifications, nature of duties, and
current market trend. Apart from basic salary, discretionary bonus and
other incentives are offered to employees of the Group to reward their
performance and contributions. The emoluments of the Directors are
determined having regard to the Company's corporate goals, the individual
performance of the Directors and their role and position (if any) in the
group members of CCHG, the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) under which the Company may grant options to Directors and
eligible employees to subscribe for Shares. The Company has also adopted
a share award scheme (“Share Award Scheme”), under which Shares
will be awarded, with the approval of the Board, to selected employees
and directors of the Group to recognise their contribution and to give them
incentives thereto in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group, as well as to attract suitable personnel for the
growth and further development of the Group. Details of the Share Option
Scheme and the Share Award Scheme are set out in the section headed
“Equity-linked Agreements” in this directors’ report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this directors’ report are
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Bin (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Tianzhou (Managing Director)
Mr. WANG Tianlin

Mr. Li Shufang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor CHANG Qing
Mr. LEE Man Chun, Tony
Professor HE Jia

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 23 to 26 of this
annual report.

Detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company will be set out in the circular in relation
to the forthcoming AGM to be despatched to the shareholders. No Director
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Company has received from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to the Listing Rules and considers that each independent non-executive
Director is independent of the Company.

Four executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Bin, Mr. Yang Tianzhou, Mr.
Wang Tianlin and Mr. Li Shufang have waived their directors’ emoluments
of approximately HK$760,000, HK$240,000, HK$240,000 and HK$240,000
respectively during the Year. For further details, please refer to note 11(a)
to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report, each of the
executive Directors named above holds directorship in certain of the
Company’s subsidiaries. Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin Islands include Zhang
Yongqing, Chan Siu Kay, Liu Wendong and Li Rui. Other directors of the
Company's subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC include Zhang Chuanyi, Li
Rui, Jiang Wenjie, Huang Maozhu.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities
which he may sustain or incur in the execution of his duties or otherwise in
relation thereto pursuant to the articles of association of the Company.
Such provisions were in force during the course of the Year and remained
in force as of the date of this directors’ report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director (including any person who at any time
during the Year was a Director) or an entity connected with a Director had
material interest (whether directly or indirectly), was subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

During the Year, none of the Directors and their respective close associates
had any business or interests in business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company who had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code are as follows:

Long Position

EERTHRAREERG - HEKRS

REFZERRAR

RZZE-ZF+-_A=+—RB ARESEER
TE2TBABRARRREBREE(EERE
R EERPIEXVER) 2 Bty - AR RES
BAERBIEFNPEGIEIRGETHEEZE
MACE: - IRBERETFAERITHEARF R
MR Pz EESORRIAT ¢

®R

Approximate
percentage of

Interest in the Company or Number of issued share

Name of Director its associated corporation Nature of interest Class of shares shares capital

HIRE 81T

s RAARREHEBEENERE ERMEE IR A% 5 5l RHEE & N=

Zhang Bin The Company Beneficial owner Ordinary 300,000 0.0052%
9RO ZAN/NE] BERBEAA EiE

Wang Tianlin The Company Beneficial owner Ordinary 400,000 0.0069%
TR RAF] BEmia A B

Li Shufang The Company Beneficial owner Ordinary 200,000 0.0034%
FER ZIN/NC] E=fAA B

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons, other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company, had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long Position
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Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of the

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Class of shares shares Company
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World Gain Holdings Limited Beneficial owner (Note) Ordinary 3,022,154,119 52.03%
("World Gain") BRBEA A (M) B

CCHK Interest in controlled corporation (Note) Ordinary 3,022,154,119 52.03%
MIREE A EE R (H 7T ) i@

CCHG Interest in controlled corporation (Note) Ordinary 3,022,154,119 52.03%
A R R AEE R (7 i

Note: The entire issued share capital of World Gain is beneficially owned by CCHK, which
is in turn wholly-owned by CCHG. Both CCHK and CCHG are deemed to be
interested in all the shares of the Company held by World Gain under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no other person, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had any interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into by the Company
during the Year or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the AGM of the Company held
on 27 June 2013, the Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme
which shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the date it was adopted and will end on 26 June 2023. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (a) any employee
(whether full time or part time, including any executive director but
excluding any non-executive director) of, or any individual for the time
being seconded to work for, the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity"”) or any employee or officer of the controlling shareholder of the
Company; (b) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary of the Company or any
Invested Entity; (c) any suppliers of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group or any Invested
Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued or proposed to be issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to the Group relating to any area
of business or business development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (h) any joint venture or business partner of the Group
who have contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of
the Group.

Ordinary shares of the Company may be allotted and issued upon the
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme. The total
number of shares of the Company which may be allotted and issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date on which the
Share Option Scheme was adopted, which was 484,073,477 ordinary
shares, representing approximately 8.33% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report. The maximum number of
shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company (or the
subsidiaries) from time to time.
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The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised,
cancelled or outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for
the time being. Any further grant of options in excess of such limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant shall be
subject to shareholders' approval in general meeting of the Company with
such participant and his/her associates abstaining from voting.

An offer of the grant of an option under the Share Option Scheme may be
accepted within 21 days from the date of grant together with a remittance
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof. An option may
be exercised during such period as the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine, save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the
date of grant.

Unless the Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer to a
grantee, a grantee is not required to hold an option for any minimum period
nor achieve any performance targets before any options granted under the
Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company on the exercise of
the option shall be determined at the discretion of the Board which shall
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company's shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the Company's shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company's shares™®. Holding period will be determined by the Directors
upon granting.

Please refer to the circular of the Company dated 28 May 2013 for more
details of the Share Option Scheme.

During the Year, no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme. There was no option outstanding at the
beginning and at the end of the Year.

Note: Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, which came into operation on 3 March
2014, the shares of the Company have ceased to have nominal value.
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Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme which became effective
on 1 July 2017, for a term of five years. The purpose of the Share Award
Scheme is to provide a means to (i) recognise the contributions by certain
full-time employees and directors (including executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors) of the Group
selected by the Board for participation in the Share Award Scheme
(collectively, the “Selected Employees”) and to give incentives to them
for the continual operation and development of the Group; and (i) attract
suitable personnel for the growth and further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, Shares will be awarded, with the
approval of the Board, to Selected Employees based on, inter alia, their
work performance and such other matters that the Board considers
relevant. Shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme will be offered
to the Selected Employees for no consideration but subject to certain
conditions (including vesting conditions) to be decided by the Board at the
time of grant of the Shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme. A
Selected Employee shall be entitled to receive the awarded Shares in
accordance with the vesting schedule upon the Selected Employee having
satisfied all vesting conditions specified by the Board at the time of making
the award. Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, awarded Shares and the related income (if any) shall vest in the
Selected Employee on the first anniversary date of the date of award,
provided that the Selected Employee remains at all times after the date of
award and on the vesting date a full-time employee or director of the
Group. Vesting of the Shares will also be conditional on the execution of
the relevant documents by the Selected Employee to effect the transfer
from the trustee of the Share Award Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further award which will result in the total
number of Shares awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
representing in excess of 1% of the issued Shares as at 1 July 2017 (being
58,087,347 Shares, representing approximately 1% of the issued Shares
as at the date of this annual report) unless the Board otherwise decides.

During the Year, no Share was purchased by the trustee for the purpose of
the Share Award Scheme and no award of Share was granted under the
Share Award Scheme. As at 31 December 2020, the trustee held
11,750,000 Shares for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.

Please refer to note 35(b) to the financial statements for more details of
the Share Award Scheme.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Year was the Company, or
any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 29 December 2017, the Company and 3@ 81 7% B R & £2 7 (unofficial
English translation being China Chengtong Finance Corporation Ltd.)
(“Chengtong Finance”) entered into a financial services agreement
(“Financial Services Agreement”), pursuant to which Chengtong Finance
agreed to provide the Group with a range of financial services (including
deposit services, loan services and other financial services) for a term of
three years from 1 January 2018. The Financial Services Agreement has
expired on 31 December 2020 in accordance with its terms.

According to the terms of the Financial Services Agreement, the daily
balance of the Group's deposits (including any interest accrued therefrom)
with Chengtong Finance for each of the three years ended 31 December
2018, 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 shall not exceed an
amount equivalent to RMB116 million. Such maximum daily balance of
deposits had not been exceeded during the Year.

The interest rates payable by Chengtong Finance to the Group for any
deposits made with Chengtong Finance shall (i) be 20%-50% higher than
the deposit interest rate prescribed by the People’s Bank of China for
deposits with the same term and of the same type; (i) not be lower than
the interest rates offered to the Group by the major commercial banks in
the PRC for deposits with the same term and of the same type; and (iii) not
be lower than the interest rates offered by Chengtong Finance to any third
party for deposits with the same term and of the same type. Further
details of the Financial Services Agreement are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 29 December 2017.

As Chengtong Finance is a subsidiary of CCHG, which is the ultimate
holding company of the Company, Chengtong Finance is therefore a
connected person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules
and the transactions contemplated under the Financial Services Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2020, the Financial Services Agreement has expired
and no deposits were remained with Chengtong Finance.
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The Company has established certain internal control procedures to ensure
that the transactions with Chengtong Finance were conducted in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Financial Services
Agreement. For example, before entering into individual transaction for the
deposit services with Chengtong Finance, the finance department of the
Group will compare the interest rate offered by Chengtong Finance to the
Group with the corresponding deposit benchmark interest rates prescribed
by the People's Bank of China and the interest rates offered by leading
independent commercial banks in the PRC. The Company has followed the
above policies and guidelines when determining whether to enter into
individual transaction for the deposit services with Chengtong Finance
during the Year.

The Group's risk management department has conducted reviews on the
above continuing connected transactions during the Year and issued an
internal control review report in relation to the Group's continuing
connected transactions. All independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed the internal control review report of the risk management
department and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c)  in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them, and on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors also confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Company’s auditor, BDO Limited, was engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BDO
Limited has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and
confirmed that:

(@) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the above continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board;

(b)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions;
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(c)

with respect to the aggregate amount of the above disclosed
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Connected Transactions

(1)

On 18 March 2020, Chengtong Leasing, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a finance lease arrangement
(“Finance Lease Arrangement”) which comprises:

(i) the finance lease agreement (“Finance Lease Agreement”)
pursuant to which Chengtong Leasing has agreed to purchase
certain solar photovoltaic modules and equipment used in a
photovoltaic power station located in Ningxia, the PRC
(“Facilities”) at the purchase price of RMB40 million
("Purchase Price”) from EEFIAEFEHMEIRER A A
(unofficial English translation being Ningxia MCC Meili Cloud
New Energy Co., Ltd.) (“Lessee”), and lease the Facilities back
to the Lessee for a term of five years (“Lease Term") at a total
amount of lease payment which is estimated to be
approximately RMB46.03 million; and

(i) the guarantee agreement pursuant to which A EF|ZE K
AP AEMR AT (unofficial English translation being MCC Meili
Cloud Computing Industry Investment Co., Ltd.) (“Guarantor”)
has agreed to provide a guarantee in favour of Chengtong
Leasing for all amounts payable by the Lessee under the
Finance Lease Agreement.

Pursuant to the Finance Lease Agreement, the total amount of lease
payment shall be paid by the Lessee to Chengtong Leasing in 20
equal instalments on a quarterly basis during the Lease Term and a
service fee of RMB1.60 million shall be payable by the Lessee to
Chengtong Leasing on the date of commencement of the Lease
Term.

The Lessee is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Guarantor, which is
indirectly held as to approximately 33.17% by CCHG, the ultimate
holding company of the Company. Therefore, the Lessee and the
Guarantor are connected persons of the Company and the
transactions contemplated under the Finance Lease Arrangement
constituted connected transactions of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Further details of the Finance Lease Arrangement are set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 18 March 2020.

(c)
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(2)

(3)

On 5 May 2020, the Company and CCHK entered into the equity
transfer agreement (“Equity Transfer Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to transfer and CCHK
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Chengtong Investment (“Equity Transfer”) at the consideration of
RMB241,185,500 which shall be paid by CCHK as to 10% within 5
business days from the date of signing of the Equity Transfer
Agreement and as to the remaining 90% on the completion date (i.e.
24 July 2020). Pursuant to the Equity Transfer, the Company
indirectly disposed of Dafeng Harbour, which was indirectly owned
as to approximately 66.67% by Chengtong Investment and owned
the Group’s property development project “Chengtong International
City" to CCHK.

As CCHK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHG, the ultimate holding
company of the Company, CCHK is therefore a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Equity
Transfer constituted a connected transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

Upon completion of the Equity Transfer, each of Chengtong
Investment and its subsidiaries, including Dafeng Harbour, has
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. Further details of the
Equity Transfer are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 5 May 2020 and 24 July 2020, and the circular of the Company
dated 10 June 2020.

On 3 September 2020, /B R BEEIREREFRAF (unofficial
English translation being Hainan Huandao Hotel and Travel
Investment Co., Limited) (“Huandao Hotel Investment”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan agreement
with FEE B EEHFR A7) (unofficial English translation being China
Huandao Group Limited) (“Borrower”), pursuant to which Huandao
Hotel Investment agreed to provide a loan in the principal amount of
RMB30,000,000 to the Borrower for a term of one year at an interest
rate of 6% per annum (“Loan Arrangement”). The Borrower is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHG, the ultimate holding company of
the Company, and is therefore a connected person of the Company
and the Loan Arrangement constituted a connected transaction for
the Company under the Listing Rules. Further details of the Loan
Arrangement are set out in the announcement of the Company dated
3 September 2020.

The Directors confirm that the related party transactions during the Year as
disclosed in notes 38(a) to the financial statements fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm
that the Company has, where applicable, complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Directors confirm that the related party transactions during the Year as
disclosed in notes 38(b) and 38(c) to the financial statements do not fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, (i) no contract of significance was entered into
by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its subsidiaries with
the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (ii)
no contract of significance in relation to provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group was entered
into and/or subsisted during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, based
on information that was publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company had
maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results and its assets and liabilities for the Year
and the past four financial years is set out on pages 183 to 184 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year have
been audited by BDO Limited.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to
re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zhang Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 February 2021

Directors’ Report
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111 Connaught Road Central
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA CHENGTONG DEVELOPMENT GROUP
LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Chengtong
Development Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 72 to 180, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Impairment assessment of loans receivable

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on note 4.9.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had gross loans receivable of
approximately HK$2,073,634,000 and impairment loss allowance of
approximately HK$931,000.

Management performed periodic assessment on the recoverability of the
loans receivable and the sufficiency of impairment loss allowance based on
information including credit profile of the borrowers, historical settlement
records, subsequent settlement status, ageing of the loans receivable,
value of the collaterals and expected timing and amount of realisation of
outstanding balances. Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the ability of the borrowers to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected credit losses for
the impairment assessment.

Due to the significance of loans receivable to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and the use of judgement and estimates by
management in assessing the recoverability of loans receivable, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the management’'s impairment
assessment on loans receivable included:

—  Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s expected credit loss
policy and methodology for impairment assessment;

— Reviewing the reasonableness of management’s estimation in
expected timing of collection and the credit quality of individual
borrowers, including the background of the borrowers and their
credit worthiness, collection history and value of collaterals; and

—  Checking the accuracy of the ageing classification of the loans
receivable balances on a sample basis.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the

other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lui Chi Kin

Practising Certificate Number: P06162

Hong Kong, 26 February 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement

maE =R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —Z _ZF+_A=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
—2oEH —ENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HaE BT T B F T
Turnover EEGR 6 931,688 1,110,598
Cost of sales SHE A (745,472) (955,942)
Gross profit ER 186,216 154,656
Other income EaA 7 70,038 59,006
Selling expenses HEEBR (23,534) (20,519)
Administrative expenses THER (105,532) (92,076)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR Z W 37 50,229 =
Fair value loss on investment properties KREMEZ N FEEE 16 (11,125) (5,051)
Finance costs A& A 8 (8,212) (6,007)
Profit before income tax B Fr 8B A 158,080 90,009
Income tax expense FrFiMA = 9 (37.119) (45,909)
Profit for the year FREFA 10 120,961 44,100
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: {5 & REF(EE) :

Owners of the Company ViN/NETE 2SN 121,372 47,539
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R (411) (3,439)
120,961 44,100

Earnings per share FRAEF 13
— Basic — EK HK2.09 cents il HK0.82 cent &1l
— Diluted — e HK2.09 cents &1l HK0.82 cent /1l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HGeaZmiak

T-TE+ - R[=+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z=—

2020 2019
—2oEH ZENEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Profit for the year FERER 120,961 44,100
Other comprehensive income Hib 2w
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to EgBIAENR»BEEER Y
profit or loss: BE :
Net change in fair value of equity investments at fair BATEFAEMEEEED
value through other comprehensive income BRI EN QT EFEY (71,811) 29,893
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profitor HEA[geEFHHDEEIBFH AR ¢
loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation to WEE2INEKEANER =5
presentation currency 144,020 (61,823)
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or loss on HEMBARIKRENSEZRE
disposal of subsidiaries = A IE L ERE 5,209 -
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEHEWREEEE 198,379 12,170
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FE{EEmEREREEE
Owners of the Company VNN 2SN 198,801 19,134
Non-controlling interests FEERE R (422) (6,964)
198,379 12,170
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE M FEAR R

As at 31 December 2020 R=ZZE-ZFTF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EHF ZE-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hat BT T BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ES N 15 344,673 241,834
Investment properties AW 16 89,143 93,939
Deposits paid BNES 18 700 -
Loans receivable EUE K 23 1,438,325 684,689
Other financial assets HEhemEE 25 11,200 4,267
1,884,041 1,024,729
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale FHELEME 19 180,364 128,655
Properties under development BRERPYE 19 90,325 205,688
Properties held for development FHERRYIE 20 = 260,661
Inventories FE 21 4,756 4,036
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H Ab FEW IR 22 101,775 136,054
Loans receivable FEUE K 23 634,378 442,135
Amount due from a related party FEN — & R E T 3R 24 36,404 34,431
Other financial assets HEemEE 25 107,736 544,816
Taxation recoverable AT EI B TR 1,794 1,846
Pledged bank deposits EEAIRITFR 27 5,556 4,462
Deposits in other financial institution REAth & RS 1T X 26 - 2,157
Bank balances and cash RITHETFRRS 27 859,618 732,356
2,022,706 2,497,297
Assets classified as held for sale DEARBFEREZEE 37 - 78,635
2,022,706 2,575,932
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B R EAM IR 28 349,524 173,648
Contract liabilities A& 29 124,420 134,637
Lease liabilities HEBRE 30 3,729 3,628
Taxation payable FERHLIR 31,318 25,877
Bank borrowings RITEE 31 338,420 277,700
Unsecured other loan IR EMER 32 600 600
Amount due to a related party FEfT— R REE T FIA 24 23,592 =
871,603 615,990
Liabilities associated with assets classified D EAFEHEEEEHZ AE 37
as held for sale - 20,049
871,603 636,039
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Consolidated Statement of Fincmcial Position

RE AR R

As at 31 December 2020 R—Z=-TF+-F=+—H
2020 2019
—2oEH ZENEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HfeE BT T B FT
Net current assets RBEEFRE 1,151,103 1,939,893
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBES 3,035,144 2,964,622
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 3,311 7,353
Deferred tax liabilities BEXERIBEE 33 46,564 43,053
49,875 50,406
Net assets EEFE 2,985,269 2,914,216
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the AATEEAELZER
Company
Share capital %N 34 2,185,876 2,185,876
Reserves #iE 793,764 594,963
2,979,640 2,780,839
Non-controlling interests iR ER 5,629 133,377
Total equity HERER 2,985,269 2,914,216
The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 180 were approved # 72E180 A2 EMBHEREN T - —F—
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 February 2021 and A= 173H Eﬁ%Aﬁt/E&T"f&ﬁ‘ P EHIAT
are signed on its behalf by: EERXREFERE
Zhang Bin Yang Tianzhou
FRAE =HEM
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HeREEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —Z _ZF+_A=+—HILtFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ARARR AR BE
Financial
assefsat
Sharesheld ~ Employee  fairvalue
forshare  share-based  through other Non-
Share Capital ~ Statutory award compensation comprehensive Other  Exchange Accumulated controling
capital reserve reserve scheme reserve income reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests Total
RATE
TALM

ARNER MEORN  2EkE

HiEE WER REZ
B RARE  GERR BB MERR  GBRE O AMRE  EXRE  2HE B HRES ait
SO0 HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSOOO  HKSOOO
#ETT  ERFT BRTL BRTT BRTn BMTR BETT BfTn #RTn BRTn BMTn BRTR

(ote36)  (note 36]  (note 6] (note 36) (note 6] (note 36)
(Wis)  (Wds)  (Wdw) (i) (W) (W)
At 31 December 2018 R=2-NE128
=t+-f 2,185,876 2814 59,248 6,494) 702 91,650 29 138,362) 749275 2,761,705 135,439 2897144

Profit/loss) for the year FRET/(BR) = = = - - - - - AR 4753 8439 44100
Other comprehensive income: Eprmbs
Exchange differences arisingon ~~ TE2FIERELH

translation to presentation ERES

currency - - - - - - - (68,298) = (68,298) (35625) (61,823
Net change in fair value of financial  RATE T AEM2ER

assets atfairvalue through other %7 $BARZ ATE

comprehensive income 729 - - - - - 988 - - - 988 - 988
Total comprehensiveincome £ R2ERELR

for the year - - - - - 298% - (58,298) 47539 19134 6,964) 12170
Capital injection by non- FERERTE

controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 4,902 4,902
Appropriation to statutory L ey

reserve - - 29,583 - - - - - 29,583) - - -
At 31 December 2019 RZF-1E+2R

=t-A 2,185,876 2814 88,831 (6,494) 702 61,757) 2% 196,660) 767,231 2,780,839 1333717 2914216

76 2020 Annual Report FERE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HReERBEIR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —Z -_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

AREEEARL RS
Financial
assets at
Sharesheld ~ Employee  fairvalue
forshare  share-based through other Non-
Share Capital  Statutory award compensation comprehensive Other  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital reserve reserve  scheme reserve incomereserve - reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
ROYE
itALf

RRGED ARG 2ENE

i NER iz
Bk EsEE  ERBRE 2B MRER  SREE  BMBR  EXER  BhE & FERER i
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BT BMTn BT BMTn BRFan BRTan BEFn BRTn BT B BB BRx

[note 36)  (note 36)  (note 36)  (note 36) [note 36)  (note 36)
(W3 (W) (Wise)  (HiEss) (H#3s) (K
At 31 December 2019 R=2-nE12R
=t-A 2,185,876 2814 88,831 (6,494) 702 61,757) 29 (1966600 767,231 2,780,839 133371 2914216
Profitloss| for the year R/ (58 - - - - - - - - 23 (411 120961
Other comprehensive income: EfrEis
Exchange differences arisingon ~ TEZFIEKELH
translation to presentation EizE
currency - - - - - - - 144,031 - 144,031 (1) 144,020

Exchange differences reclassified ~ HENBAABEHIE

to profit orloss on disposal of FERNERER

subsidiaries (note 37) (H#t37) = = - - - - - 5209 - 5209 - 5209
Net change in fair value of financial  RATFEHAERZE

assets at fairvalue through other Wiz 4@ EEY

comprehensive income ATESE = = - - - (man) - - - man - _man

Total comprehensiveincome ~ FR2ERELE

for the year - - - - - (nan - 90 1312 198801 (422) 198379
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) % EMEAT(H:37) - - (192) - = - 296) - 1,088 - (12136)  (127.326)
Appropriation to statutory EReiehh

reserve - - 9174 - - - - - (9174) - - -
At 31 December 2020 w3 g

=t-A 2,185,876 2814 97213 (6,494) 02 (133568) - [4740) 880517 2979640 5629 2985269
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 T -_TF+-_A=-+—HIEFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expense
Interest on lease liabilities
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Fair value loss on investment properties
Fair value gain on other financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or
loss
Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment
loss) on financial assets

Operating profit before working capital changes

Decrease/(increase) in properties under
development

(Increase)/decrease in properties held for sale

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase in loans receivable

Increase in trade and other payables

Decrease in contract liabilities

Cash used in operations
PRC enterprise income tax paid
PRC land appreciation tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of

Purchase of other financial assets

Settlement of other financial assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Additions of investment property

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Deposit paid for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment

Loan to a related party

Settlement of loan to a related party

Increase in pledged bank deposits

Net cash generated from investing activities
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Notes
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© © \
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16

10

10

37

2020 2019
—ECRE —B-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BET T BT T
158,080 90,009
(23,129) (53,903)
7,777 5,570
435 437
23,605 19,631
11,125 5,051
(669) (858)
(3,351) (684)
(50,229) -
19,012 =
824 (46)
143,480 65,207
56,795 (54,492)
(126,756) 84,290
(403) 11,934
38,531 29,444
(821,871) (483,931)
160,521 65,063
(18,508) (67,722)
(568,211) (340,207)
(31,512) (63,526)
(1,729) (2,008)
(601,452) (405,741)
25,135 50,138
319,109 -
(58,254) (255,784)
429,686 563,870
(124,359) (25,918)
(239) =
4,212 1,102
(700) =
(33,600) (33,300)
33,600 -
(810) (761)
593,780 299,347




Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

New bank loans raised

Repayment of bank loans

Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid
Capital injection by non-controlling interests
Loan from a related party

Repayment of loan from a related party

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents:

Bank balances and cash

Less: included in the assets classified as held
for sale

Bank balances and cash as presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
Deposits in other financial institution

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
as presented in the consolidated
statement of cash flows and
consolidated statement of financial
position

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=-Z =%

Notes

et

RETDEEZRERE
ENFE
MBEZRITER
ERIRITER
ENEEZERE
ENESZHE
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REDZRERREEEY

HEERSBK

RERZRERREEEY

RERREEEWIHH -
RITEFENRE
B EFADBRRFEHEZBE

3

SVIRERA T BARR K ZRTT
%T&iﬁi
REM S BT R

RERZRAERRESEEY -
2IRGEREREBERR
FREMBRRET

FHoA=+—RHIEFE

2020 2019
22 —ENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
(10,027) (9,729)
373,040 79,100
(323,516) (73,450)
(4,011) (2,846)
(435) (437)

- 4,902

69,064 -
(45,784) -
58,331 (2,460)
50,659 (108,854)
791,830 903,603
17,129 (2,919)
859,618 791,830
859,618 789,673
= (57,317)
859,618 732,356
- 2,157
859,618 734,513
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China Chengtong Development Group Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office and its principal place of business is Suite 6406,
64/F., Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in investment holding, leasing, bulk commodity trading,
property development, property investment and marine recreation
services and hotel.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). As at 31
December 2020, the Company's immediate holding company is
World Gain Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and the directors of the Company consider the Group's
ultimate holding company to be China Chengtong Holdings Group
Limited ("CCHG"), a company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$") and the functional currency of the Company is HK$.
The directors consider that HK$ is the appropriate presentation
currency since the Company is incorporated in Hong Kong with its
shares listed on the Stock Exchange.

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new standards, amendments and interpretations
(“the new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are relevant to
and effective for the Group's financial statements for the
annual period beginning on 1 January 2020:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting

The adoption of the new HKFRSs has no material impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —Z -_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.2

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not

yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendment to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?®
COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions'
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current*
Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of

Fulfilling a Contract®
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 22

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

a Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
® The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments

continue to be permitted.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new/revised HKFRSs is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far the Group is not aware of
any aspect of the new standards which are likely to have

significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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3.1

3.2

4.1

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the "HKFRS") issued by the HKICPA and the provisions
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of financial statements. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies set out in note 4 below.

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Group. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members
of the Group.
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Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (@ maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest and
the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.
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4.1

4.2

4.3

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’'s share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Foreign currencies translation

Transactions entered into by the consolidated entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”’) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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4.3

4.4

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z=—

Foreign currencies translation (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating to
those ruling when the transactions took place are used. All
assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as exchange reserve (attributed to
minority interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term monetary items
forming part of the Group's net investment in the foreign
operation concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the exchange reserve relating to that
operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or
loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the exchange reserve.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value,
unless it is still in the course of construction or development at
the reporting date and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time. Fair value is determined by
independent professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised at the
reporting date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value or
the sale of an investment property are included in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.
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4.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction-in-
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as expense in profit or loss during the year in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation on the following property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings 4%
Furniture and office equipment 10% to 33%
Motor vehicles and vessels 6.67% to 33%
Marine travel facilities and equipment 6.67% to 20%
Machineries and equipment for 16.67%
operating leases
Right-of-use assets Shorter of the assets’
useful life and the

lease term

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

The gain or loss arising from retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Construction in progress is
reclassified to appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when the construction works complete and ready
for use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6

4.7

Properties held for sale and properties under development

Properties held for sale and properties under development are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises the leasehold land (note 4.13) together with direct
costs attributable to the development of the properties and
borrowing costs capitalised during the period of development.

Properties held for development represented properties which
has not yet commenced development and mainly comprises of
leasehold land (note 4.13) before commencement of
construction.

Properties held under development for future sale in the
ordinary course of business are included in current assets and
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises the acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses and an appropriate proportion of overheads. On
completion, the properties are transferred to properties held
for sale.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion
and estimated selling expenses.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is determined using first-in first-out method,
weighted average and actual cost basis. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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4.8

4.9

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows
presentation, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, bank and cash balances comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as
to use.

Financial instruments
(i)  Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

FVPL: Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured
at FVPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVPL on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVPL, whereby changes in
fair value, dividends and interest income are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECL are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECL: these are the ECL
that result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECL:
these are ECL that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.
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4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECL based on lifetime ECL. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECL are based on the
12 months ECL. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group's historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount.
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4.

92

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at FVPL is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the
amount of the loss allowance, being the ECL provision
measured in accordance with principles of the
accounting policy set out in note 4.9(ii); and (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as
a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid and
are recognised initially and measured at their fair value
on the date the financial liability or part thereof is
extinguished. If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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4.10 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods
or service is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

—  provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

—  creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

— does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods
or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. Where the
contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. For
contracts where the period between the payment and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.
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4.10 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sales of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the
asset is transferred to the customer. Depending on the
terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the
contract, control of the asset may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. If properties have no alternative
use to the Group contractually and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the customers for
performance completed to date, the Group satisfies the
performance obligation over time and therefore,
recognises revenue over time in accordance with the
input method for measuring progress. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the completed property.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on the
Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the contract
costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

For property development and sales contract for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point in
time, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
the physical possession of the completed property and
the Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effect of a
financing component if it is significant.

Rental

Rental income from the operating leases of investment
properties and machineries and equipment is recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Sales of goods
Income from sales of goods is recognised at a point in

time when the goods are delivered to customers and
title has passed.
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4.10 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Service fees

Revenue from hotel operation and marine travelling
services fees are recognised when services are
rendered.

(v) Interest

Interest income from loans receivables and other
financial assets measured at amortised cost is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

(vi) Dividend

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the customers retain
retention money to secure the due performance of the
contracts. Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which it
is invoiced to the customer. If the considerations (including
advances received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the output method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income
earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for recognised assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is
when an investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption is
rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.12 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items recognised
directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in
net if, and only if,

(@)  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@)  the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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4.13 Leasing

Accounting as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or (ii)
leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received; (iii)
any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories. The Group measures the right-
of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that are
held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under HKAS 40
and are carried at fair value. The Group accounts for leasehold
land and buildings which is held for own use under HKAS 16
and are carried at depreciated cost. Other than the above right-
of-use assets, the Group also has leased a number of
properties under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises its judgement and determines that it is a separate
class of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost.

413 HME

EREAMAN S EE

FrBEEEARMBIRAKRE R BE
REEERMAERE  HEEEAEE
SRTERE  ERETK ) BEEEN
HER/SEBREEREEEN
HEETEXE - "AEBDEETH
BB HEROR12EANEE
HRERAEEELHEERR - Bz%E
HERBENEEMNRE RN ERNEE
BROEXH -

EHEEE

AR E R R AR AR TE R A B4R
WMTZHEHRERENEHE(RTX
EFRESEBEARNSFERE) ()
RFA%E B Bk 2 B B ERAEE
OB E WA E ] EEE (i) &
MAEERNEEMNTEZEIA : Kiv)
A ARBRE GG R E S
RN REBREEEERBELN
BETARA - BRIFRERATIREER
EMELRRIN - REBRBRAER
A EEREEE - RERAEN
ZRE BIIR R AR R EHT 8 S A7
HEBBRFEERREE  YHHEE
BENEMERAEBELRE -

AEEFEHAREANEERENE
St ETERBERETEEHE
AIE40RARL FIRAFETIR -
FAEERKEERNEELMRETS
BERBBEBSHEAF16HRAR
WEIRPTERATIRR o B _LiflfE Ak
BEIN  AEETERBEHEE
MZEYE - HhEAEEHER
EEHEBRHFEAEEL I RETIN
SNOBIMLE ERRR o Et - FHE W
BTMEREENEREEERTERX
BB o

99



For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 T -_TF+-_A=-+—HIEFE

100

4.13 Leasing (Continued)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group's incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be lease
payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (ii) variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable by
the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to
reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, e.g. a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties and
machineries and equipment for operating leases under
property, plant and equipment to a number of tenants or
lessees. Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4.14 Provisions and contingent liabilities

4.15

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which will probably result in
an outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Employee benefits

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan and contributions to the
scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’
relevant income.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
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4.16 Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (the employee share-based
compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the employee share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to accumulated
profits.

Share award scheme

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in the employee share-based
compensation reserves in equity, over the period in which the
granted conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
income statement expense or credit for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee
benefits expense.

When the share award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested
on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
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Impairment losses of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, deposits paid and interests in
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing.

All non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever
there are indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value, reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment
of time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at cash-generating unit level.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for
sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available for
sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group of
assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.
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4.18 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups

4.19

(Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date
in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale and
until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets
as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so far as
the financial statements of the Group are concerned are
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties.
These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in
note 4.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and
on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major products and service lines.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Segment reporting (Continued)

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

—  Leasing — providing finance lease services including
arranging sale and leaseback transactions and operating
lease services;

—  Bulk commodity trade — trading of coal, steel and
chemical products;

—  Property development — holding land for property
development projects;

—  Property investment — providing rental services and
holding investment properties for appreciation; and

—  Marine recreation services and hotel — providing marine
recreation and hotel services.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as
each of the products and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs. Segment
results represent the results from each segment without
allocation of results generated by head office and the inactive
subsidiaries, directors’ emoluments, fair value changes of
investment properties and gain on disposal of subsidiaries.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment assets include all assets other than assets held by
head office and the inactive subsidiaries (mainly include other
financial assets and bank balances and cash) and other
unallocated assets that are not directly attributable to
reportable segments. Segment liabilities exclude borrowings
and other unallocated liabilities incurred by head office and the
inactive subsidiaries (mainly include other payables and
deferred tax liabilities) that are not directly attributable to
reportable segments.

Segment assets of property investment segment include
investment properties but segment results exclude the related
fair value changes for the years.

Save as the aforementioned, no asymmetrical allocations have
been applied to reportable segments.
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4.

106

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.20 Government grants

4.21

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants relating
to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate. Grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are recognised as deferred
income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable and are recognised as other
income, rather than reducing the related expense.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)~ has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company'’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.21 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
Such estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

5.1 Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates of market
condition. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that
the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of the
current market conditions. Changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the Group's
investment properties and the corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated income
statement.

5.2 Estimated net realisable value on properties under
development

In determining whether allowances should be made for the
Group's properties under development, the Group takes into
consideration the current market environment and the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs to completion of the properties. An allowance
is made if the estimated selling price is less than the carrying
amount. If the actual net realisable value on properties under
development is less than expected as a result of change in
market condition and/or significant variation in the budgeted
development cost, material allowance may result.
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5.4

5.5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 T -_TF+-_A=-+—HIEFE

Estimated net realisable value for properties held for sale

Management exercises its judgement in making allowance for
properties held for sale with reference to the existing market
environment, the sales performance in previous years and
estimated market value of the properties, i.e. the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of selling. An allowance is
made based on the estimation of net realisable value on the
completed properties if the estimated market value of the
property is lower than its carrying amount. If the actual net
realisable values of the properties held for sale are less than
expected as a result of change in market condition, material
allowance may result.

Impairment allowance on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across
all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment
losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors,
changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and the date
of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis.

Valuation of financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss/other comprehensive income

The fair value of financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss or other comprehensive income that are
not traded in an active market is based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers. In determining
the fair value, the valuers have based on variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at each reporting date. In relying on the
valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used in
the valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions could affect the reported fair
values of these financial assets. Further details are contained
in note 41 to the financial statements.
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5.6

5.7

5.8

Estimated provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories, the Group would evaluate
ageing analysis of inventories and compare the carrying
value of inventories to their respective net realisable value.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in determining
such allowance. If conditions which have impact on the net
realisable value of inventories deteriorate, additional allowance
may be required.

Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 4.5. The
estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets.

Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. For the purposes of impairment testing, assets
are allocated to its respective cash-generating units.
Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether the carrying
amount of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal or
value in use; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
who are the chief operating decision makers for the purpose of
resources allocation and assessment of performance, is the financial
information of the Group as a whole as reported under HKFRSs. The
Group’s chief operating decision makers have identified the
reportable segments of the Group as follows:

(1) Leasing — providing finance lease services (including arranging
sale and leaseback transactions) and operating lease services

(2)  Bulk commodity trade — trading of coal, steel and chemical
products

(8) Property development — holding land for property
development projects

(4)  Property investment — providing rental services and holding
investment properties for appreciation

(5)  Marine recreation services and hotel — providing marine
recreation and hotel services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
commenced the operating lease to generate rental income under
operating leases in respect of owned machineries and equipment
under the reportable segment of leasing. Accordingly, the
comparative reportable segment of “finance leasing” is renamed to
“leasing” to conform to current year’s presentation.
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6.

112

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEBR®
Segment revenue and results DR EREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by INTARSBEZEREBE S 2 Wam k%
reportable segment: BT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_ZE-_ZF+-A=+—HLEFE
Marine
Bulk recreation
commodity Property Property services
Leasing trade development investment  and hotel Total
5 LRk
HE ARERES WERE  WERE REABE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYFT  BEFTT  BETT  E¥Tn  BMFr BEFx
Turnover as presented in HAEWEREI EEE
consolidated income statement 146,270 677,891 89,709 992 16,826 931,688
Results B
Segment results (note (a)) DEEE (M7 () 121,642 2,066 24,896 873 (45927) 103,550
Fair value loss on investment RENE ATERSE
properties (note (b)) (HiiE (b)) (11,125)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBE R A2 Uiz 50,229
Unallocated finance costs ROBEREMA (2,795)
Unallocated corporate expenses R DB £ T (43,945)
Unallocated corporate income AR E R EWA 62,166
Profit before income tax BRETIS BRI

158,080
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued)

o RER @)
2l a5 2 A ()

BE-_E-_SF+_A=+—HIFE(E)

Marine
Bulk recreation
commodity Property Property services
Leasing trade development investment  and hotel Unallocated Total
g
HE ARERES NELR NERE  RENERE RO it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥Ffr  BETT  BEFT BEFn B¥Tn BETn BEFx
Notes: fist -
(a) Amounts included in the (a) sTADEEEHEZS
measure of segment results #
Interest income from deposits ~~ FRLEMEHEEY
and other financial assets FIEWMA 1,264 9 326 - 21 19,174 20,800
Depreciation il (2,088) (9) (26) - (15,500) (5,982) (23,605)
Impairment losses on property, 1%+ BEREEZR
plant and equipment EER - - - - (19,012) - (19,012)
Finance costs BENK (4517) (696) - - (204) (2,795) (8,212)
Gain/lloss) on disposal of LENE  BERRE
property, plant and equipment 28/ (5548) - - - - 3,366 (15) 3,351
(b) Amounts regularly provided to  (0) BERTELEREH
the chief operating decision REEATZABRAL
maker for the analysis of the £
segment's performance
Fair value loss on investment REME ATERR
properties - - - (11,125) - - (11,125)
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6.

114

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEBR®
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PERERER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_ZE-NF+-A=+—HIFE
Marine
Bulk recreation
commodity Property Property services
Leasing trade development  investment and hotel Total
il 4
HE ATERES MEER MERE  RENBE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFrT  BEFrT  EETrT  BETT  BEFT BEFL
Turnover as presented in BAUERENZEEE
consolidated income statement 74,465 870,153 131,928 1,974 32,078 1,110,598
Results B
Segment results (note (a)) DEREE (M () 66,766 3,510 41,815 1,700 (13,042) 100,749
Fair value loss on investment RENE L ATERRE
properties (note (b)) (Fizt b)) (5,051)
Unallocated finance costs ROBEKAE (3,209)
Unallocated corporate expenses ~ ADEEHER T (52,797)
Unallocated corporate income A BEEMA 50,317
Profit before income tax BRETETL AT R A

90,009
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEBR®
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PERERER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued) HBE_Z—NFF+-A=+—HLFEUE)
Marine
Bulk recreation
commodity Property Property services
Leasing trade  development  investment and hotel  Unallocated Total
il o
HE AFERED  NEER WERE  REMEE FAR Er
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bfr B Fr  BETT B¥Tr EETr BEFL BETr
Notes: Bist
(a) Amounts included in the () AN BEEHEZ S
measure of segment results #
Interest income from deposits ~~ FRLEMEHEEY
and other financial assets GIEON 2,711 592 1348 - 85 48,016 52,752
Depreciation iE (124) (1,206) (37) - (14,486 (3,778) (19,631)
Finance costs BENAK 2,407) (94) - - (297) (3,209) (6,007)
(Loss}/gain on disposal of HENE - BERE
property, plant and equipment 7 (B18), /1 - 119) - - 692 1 684
{b) Amounts regularly provided to  (b) E T ELERRE
the chief operating decision REAMABRRL
maker for the analysis of the £
segment's performance
Fair value loss on investment RENEZDTERR
properties - - - (5,051) = = (5,051)

Unallocated corporate income mainly comprised net exchange gain
and interest income from deposits and other financial assets (2019:
interest income from deposits and other financial assets) which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment.

Unallocated corporate expenses mainly comprised depreciation,
staff costs and legal and professional expenses of the Group's
headquarter which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment.

APREFERATEBIEEN WRIFER
RKEFEREEMEREEZMERA(ZE
—hF: REFERREMCEREEZNE
WA) - ETEERBREFREDBNE
BEE -

ANECERAXTIZERENE  AKEH
MOBIRANZRRERASZ X F
ERBBRNEAREDENRBES -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) TEER @)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PERERER(E)
Segment results do not include income tax expense, while segment DEEBETBREMEHRAS  MaEEeE
liabilities include the current and deferred taxation except for those ARiEE i RRERIE - ABNEERT
recognised by the head office and the inactive subsidiaries. VERRM B N R HEREBRSN ©
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as WEDHE ST BOREM 4T AE
the Group's accounting policies described in note 4. Segment results BETBRAR - DEEEARSAIRE L
represent the results from each segment without allocation of MEREETNERWBABCEE  EEH
results generated by head office and the inactive subsidiaries, & WEMEZAFEEHRLEMBR
directors’ emoluments, fair value changes of investment properties Al WA SRz ERE  WHREE
and gain on disposal of subsidiaries. This is the measure reported to BEAREBREZTEFR  UWESERE
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource RRFHE R -
allocation and performance assessment.
Segment assets and liabilities PTEEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by NTAREENEERBBERBREDEL
reportable segment: ST
2020 2019
gt 222 —T-NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt BT T BT
Segment assets DEEE
Leasing ME 2,474,732 1,267,759
Bulk commodity trade ArEmE 5 (a) 59,479 173,417
Property development MERR 357,283 684,739
Property investment METE (b) 89,143 93,939
Marine recreation services and hotel /& _F iRz RIS AE /& 186,292 211,142
Total segment assets DIEERE 3,166,929 2,430,996
Unallocated Kok
— other financial assets — Hith e REE 118,936 549,083
— deposits in other financial institution — R E {4 B RETF R - 6
— bank balances and cash — RITEFERE 530,064 526,160
— other unallocated assets — Hiv RHBLEE 90,818 94,416
Consolidated assets RARBE 3,906,747 3,600,661
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. oEER®
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PEEEREE(E)
2020 2019
— —E-NEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HfaE BT T BMF T
Segment liabilities NIEEE
Leasing HE 383,969 166,131
Bulk commodity trade AREmE S (a) 48,201 31,921
Property development VISR 243,135 201,544
Property investment LIEZ S} 5,178 7,586
Marine recreation services and hotel & iR EERRE FIE /S 42,622 47,810
Total segment liabilities NIEBERE 723,105 454,992
Bank borrowings RITIEE 160,000 200,000
Other unallocated liabilities HEMADEEE 38,373 31,453
Consolidated liabilities REAafE 921,478 686,445
Notes: Kt -

(a) As at 31 December 2019, assets classified as held for sale of HK$78,635,000
and liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale of
HK$20,049,000 were included in the segment assets and segment liabilities
of bulk commodity trade.

(b) Segment assets of property investment segment include investment
properties but segment results exclude the related fair value loss of
HK$11,125,000 (2019: HK$5,051,000) for the year.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating
resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
assets held by head office and the inactive subsidiaries; and

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
borrowings and liabilities incurred by head office and the
inactive subsidiaries.

@ MZZE—AE+=-B=+—8H SBEARE
& 2 B E B 78,635,000 7T & 15 58 A%
EH & 2 A E MR 2 B &A% 20,049,000 7T
HFARRRRESETZABEERSHEA

&

MERBEDEZ D REEBRRENE
DHEEETEEFAMEREA ?@Eﬂﬁ/’&%

11,126,0007T (= F — /L4 : ##5,051,000
L)

S5

REESBERARROBEROEER

BeanERk NVERMBRARREZ
BEN MEEBEHOIEERED
Bk

e BRERFERTNVERMBARELZ
EERAEN  BERBEHDEER

d:/'\/i\E ®
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEBR®
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PEEEREE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE—_Z-_ZF+-_FA=+—HLEFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment assets: FFADHEENEZ S8 ¢
Marine
Bulk recreation
commodity Property Property services
Leasing trade development investment and hotel  Unallocated Total
At
HE ARERES NELR NERE  RENERE FAR &t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BETT  ERTr  BETL EMTn ERTn BETn ERTx

Additions to non-current assets  WREFERBEE
(other than financial assets) (EREERIN) 123,438 61 15 239 787 58 124,598

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HBEZE-F-AFT-A=1T-HALFE

S AN EELS &g
Amounts included in the measure of segment assets: RIADBREENEZSH

Marine
Bulk recreation
commodity Property Property services
Leasing trade  development  investment and hotel  Unallocated Total
8 Lk
HE KFEAMES WEER  MERE  REANBE LS CH)

HK$000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HK$000  HKS'000
E¥TT  ERFT ERTT  ETT ERTn ERTT BT

Additions to non-currentassets ~ REFFRHEE
[other than financial assets) (RREERIM) 44 2,544 62 = 24,240 8,686 35,576
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7EER®

Other segment information

Geographical information of revenue from external customers is
based on the location of the customers and the geographical location
of the non-current assets (other than financial assets) is based on the
physical location of the assets.

.
iE °

Non-current assets

KA EFZ RS2 WREMTIREER
FHEME @ SERSEE(SBEERI)
BN ENREZEEECERMLEM

Revenue from external customers (other than financial assets)

REIBER 2 W FRBEE (SREERM)
2020 2019 2020 2019
i —TNF —F-%HF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT BT T
Hong Kong 93,557 - 4,897 7,702
The PRC 593,370 1,103,344 428,919 328,071
Others 244,761 7,254 - -
931,688 1,110,598 433,816 335,773

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing

RIEAFEEERNEEALEEFE10% A LW

over 10% of the total turnover of the Group are as follows: EEEEIMMALT :
2020 2019
—E-ZF —ZT-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BMF T
Customer A (note) XEAME) - 237,258

Note:

There is no revenue from a customer contributing over 10% of the total turnover of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: a customer from bulk
commodity trade business).

Kt

F:RAATERBESIEBNEF)

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FRElRE R EB AR A 7
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's turnover from

major products and services:

6. 7EER®

KBZDHRR

TXEIAREREETEZERERE 2 Z

2020 2019
—E-ZF —ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BT T BT
Sales of properties HEYE 89,709 131,928
Consultancy service income from finance lease  BEHE L HE 2 A AIRIEWA
arrangements 41,736 23,559
Bulk commodity trade AREmES 677,891 870,153
Marine recreation services and hotel VB B PR A RO [ 16,826 32,078
Revenue from contract with customers REEREGH 2 W 826,162 1,057,718
Rental income from investment properties REBREMENHESHA 992 1,974
Rental income under operating leasing in respect AR BB W RRE 2 SEHE
of owned machineries and equipment HTHESWA 4,606 -
Interest income from finance lease arrangements K B gt & HE L BER A B UL A 99,928 50,906
931,688 1,110,598
OTHER INCOME 7. EHAA
2020 2019
—E-EHF —T-NEF
HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Interest income from: REATIEER ZFBHA :
— deposits and other financial assets — FRERENSREE 20,800 52,752
— a related party ——R@ER 2,329 1,151
Fair value gain on other financial assets measured ZAFEF ABZNEMESHIE
at FVPL EZ RN THEKE 669 858
Government subsidies (note) BIS ) (ffaE) 1,252 153
Exchange gain, net bE 5 Y 5 78 39,463 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment &% - BE k&R E 2 W 3,351 684
Reversal of impairment loss on financial assets BEoemEE REEE - 46
Others Hh 2,174 3,362
70,038 59,006
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OTHER INCOME (Continued)

7. HMWA @

Note: Mt
Among the government subsidies, HK$486,000 (2019: Nil) are government grants BB E B #486,000L( —E—NFE: &) A
obtained from the Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic ERFITREBIFNERESE MRIEE([R
Fund launched by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region MESE D AAEEZNREREF SR - BIE
supporting the payroll of the Group’s employees. Under the ESS, the Group had to REEFE  FEEEAEERAZSAIERTS
commit to spend these grants on payroll expenses, and not to reduce employee Y WERERERTEEERAZBRDERTE
head count below prescribed levels for a specified period of time. The Group has KFEAT o« REERBE_ZE-_ZEF+-A=+—
complied with the requirements set out in the ESS for the year ended 31 December AIEFEERITABRRETEZHAT -
2020.
FINANCE COSTS 8. ®MEMRAX
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 10,210 10,094
Interest on loan from related parties REBEFERZFE 1,098 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 435 437
11,743 10,531
Less: Amounts capitalised on properties under W BEEPYECBIEER b
development o (3,531) (4,524)
8,212 6,007
The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 3.0% (2019: EBHRACIEENEIO% (ZE—NE

3.8%) per annum.

3.8%) &AL °
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in accordance with two-
tiered profits tax rate regime, whereby the first HK$2,000,000 of
assessable profits of qualifying corporation is taxed at 8.25% and the
assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 are taxed at 16.5% for both
years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") and
Implementation Regulation, the PRC subsidiaries are subject to a tax
rate of 25%. The current tax also comprised land appreciation tax
("LAT") which is estimated in accordance with the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value,
with certain allowable deductions.

FrEBRAX<

RREFES  FEEFNESHEBRENEH
MAHIELBE AERGCEBBE
2,000,000 7T & J& iR i i 7138 3% 8.25% 2 7
R+E - MiBEE 2,000,000 7T 2 FEER
SRR 16.5% 2T RETE -

RETECEMSHR(RERBHR AR
CEMBPUEAERIGD - - EHEQ AR
KH25% - BVEARL IR 7T @ 15 £ s B (E W%
(ML BEB ) - THILEHRTIIRIBEE
T BIBOE K ARG Pl 2 SR B ET o L ig
EVNEREERCRENRTHERE B
BETHHRER -

2020 2019
—B-2HF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BMF T
The taxation charge comprises: HELZHEE:
Current tax for the year: AREZRNEAF A
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBEFEH 126 -
PRC EIT R EATIEHE 30,633 32,044
PRC LAT H Bt I E R 5,930 11,576
36,689 43,620
Under-provision in prior years: BAFERETR
PRC EIT R EATIEH - 421
36,689 44,041
Deferred tax (note 33) EIERIE (Hfa# 33) 430 1,868
Income tax expense Frisfimx 37,119 45,909
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FISHMEAXZ®

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit at BEAMERFTEZAERATHETEF
applicable tax rates: ZEERINT

2020 2019
= —TNF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BEF T
Profit before income tax B B 15 854 A E A 158,080 90,009

Tax calculated at PRC EIT rate of 25%
(2019: 25%)
Effect of different tax rates of group entities

BHRETEMBHRE25% (=
—ﬁﬁizmwﬁﬁzmﬁ 39,520 22,502
ERPRINEMDAEERE S

operating in jurisdictions other than the PRC EEEBTRMETE (8,358) 1,676
PRC LAT P Bt b I (E R 5,930 11,576
Tax effect on PRC LAT ¢Iimﬁﬁﬁ2ﬁ%%é (1,483) (2,894)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax TR A HIBR A 2 B s &

purposes 5,217 10,288
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes /BRI A 2 Fi 5 o/ 2 (16,557) (6,997)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERRIBEE 2 MIETE 6,827 4,936
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised RIERGIFIEZREZ HISTE 3,317 1,302
Tax effect of tax losses utilised during the year FREEBRRIERBBBGT2E (505) (32)
Withholding tax for undistributed profits of PRC ~ FEIKIB AR 2 A D EEF 278

subsidiaries st 3,211 3,131
Under-provision in prior years BAEFERETR - 421
Income tax expense Frigif 37,119 45,909
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10.

124

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

10. FREF

2020 2019
—B-EHF —ET-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEF T
Profit for the year is arrived at after charging/ FEREFSHR(GEA) :
(crediting):
Auditor's remuneration N
— audit services — BT AR 1,070 1,070
— non-audit services — EE AR 360 510
1,430 1,580
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BEMEBZIE 23,614 19,639
Less: Amounts capitalised on properties under B BRAPMEIBIEERMEZ
development k= (9) 8)
23,605 19,631
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes BB FFT B LK
(including directors’ emoluments) (BIEESHS) 6,902 9,423
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) EIRA(BHEEEMNE) 60,093 49,635
Total staff costs 8 TRA4RE 66,995 59,058
Less: Amounts capitalised on properties under B BRAPMEZBIEEREZ
development ek (1,622) (2,204)
65,373 56,854
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRAERAIZ 2 FEKAE 725,344 955,101
Exchange (gain)/loss, net & (W), B8 558 (39,463) 11,214
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment &M% - BE k& 2 W (3,351) (684)
Impairment losses on property, plant and Yz - BREMEBZBERE
equipment 19,012 -
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment losses) & @& E 2 MEFIE, CRES
on financial assets BREE) 824 (46)
Direct operating expenses arising from investment FEi& B EES 2 HEKL LR
properties 119 274
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) and the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G) (the Regulation) are as

follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

11. EENSREEEMS

(a)

ESME

RIFEBENE 622 EEFB RN THED
F 383G R BB EDIFE622GER A
(BEESANZERROELZ2ES
MERBLT -

BE—F_ZF+-A=F+—HIFE

Lee Man
Zhang Wang Li Yang Chang Chun,
Bin Tianlin  Shufang Tianzhou Qing Tony He Jia Total
IR EPN M wEEM BB FE2 i &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BYFr BEFrT BEFTT BT BETr BYFr BETr BETr
Fees we = - - - 360 360 360 1,080
Salaries e - - 1,036 - - - - 1,036
Contribution to RIKEHEE
retirement R
benefits schemes - - 18 - - - - 18
Total emoluments 8% - - 1,054 - 360 360 360 2,134
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T NEFEF+-A=+—HIEE
Zhang Wang Li Yang Chang  Lee Man
Bin Tianlin ~ Shufang  Tianzhou Qing Chun, Tony He Jia Total
(note(a))  (note(b))
R BN FHN BEM BB *E2 (EIfES Gl
(Bizt(@)  (MiEwm)
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
BETT BT BETrT B¥TT BT EETrT  B¥TT BEFIL
Fees e - - - - 360 360 360 1,080
Salaries E2n - - 220 - - - - 220
Contribution to RIKBHEE
retirement %
benefits schemes - - 3 - - - - 3
Total emoluments ~ #2Fi& - - 223 - 360 360 360 1,303
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11.

126

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Mr. Li Shufang was appointed as executive director with effect from
22 October 2019. Mr. Li Shufang was an employee of the Group
before appointment as executive director. The remunerations as
disclosed in the table only included the remunerations for the period
from 22 October 2019 to 31 December 2019. For the period from 1
January 2019 to 21 October 2019, an aggregate amount of his
emoluments as an employee of the Group was HK$827,000.

(b) Mr. Yang Tianzhou was appointed as executive director with effect
from 22 October 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an executive
director of the Company, Mr. Zhang Bin, had waived his salary
of approximately HK$400,000. Four executive directors of the
Company, namely Mr. Zhang Bin, Mr. Wang Tianlin, Mr. Li
Shufang and Mr. Yang Tianzhou, had waived their directors’
fees of HK$360,000, HK$240,000, HK$240,000 and
HK$240,000 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, two executive
directors of the Company, namely Mr. Zhang Bin and Mr.
Wang Tianlin had waived their salaries of approximately
HK$800,000 and HK$496,000 respectively. Four executive
directors of the Company, namely Mr. Zhang Bin, Mr. Wang
Tianlin, Mr. Li Shufang and Mr. Yang Tianzhou had waived their
directors’ fees of approximately HK$360,000, HK$240,000,
HK$46,000 and HK$46,000 respectively.

2020 Annual Report FERE

11.

EENSREEEME &)

(a)

EEME(E)
ez -

(a) FHREECRZTARTES A
—E-NFTAZt+ZBREER T
FMAEREZTANITESZAA
AEEET - FRFBEBEZHFHER
BR-ZZ-—NF+A=+=ZBE=F
—hWE+ZA=+—BHBEZFH -
RZZE—hFE—AF—BE=-F—NF
+A=+—BHH RHEAEEES
T2 & 458 A5 827,0007T

(b)) BEMNEECEZTARTES A
—E-hFE+A-t—BlER-

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=1+—HLF
B AR —MHTERRELLER
REHF £ DB 400,0007C ° A A
AT ITE BRI E - TRK

£ FEFREERBRMNCED RE
HEZHMe o5 A5%360,0007T
785 240,000 7T ~ 7 #5 240,000 7T &
240,000 7T °

HE-_T—NF+-_A=+—HLHF
€ ARRIMMNAITERRELER
ITRBRAEEEREETF O RINBE
800,000 7T K & 496,000 7T ° & A
AN EITEEREALE TRR
& EERAEERGRMNCEERE
HEEE=We o RI4/E%360,000T
Y55 240,000 7T ~ 7% 46,000 7T KB
46,000 7T ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2019: one) director of the Company whose
emoluments are included in (a) above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2019: four) individuals were as follows:

11. EEREREEEME @)

(b)

EEREHFMAL

AEERERSHFMALH  —F
(Z2—NF: —R)ARAEZNMH
ENEX(@)BARE - HTHA(ZT
—hFmE)ALZBEmT

2020 2019
— —TNF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other benefits e RkHEAmET 3,122 2,767
Performance-based bonus ER e 640 537
Contributions to retirement benefits R FIET B

schemes 72 66
3,834 3,370

Note: Kiet -

Mr. Li Shufang was appointed as executive director with effect from 22
October 2019. Mr. Li Shufang was employee of the Group before
appointment as executive director and he is one of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group when considered the remunerations to him for the
whole year ended 31 December 2019. As Mr. Li Shufang was the executive
director of the Company as at 31 December 2019, all his remunerations for
the whole year ended 31 December 2019 were excluded from the table of
five highest paid individuals.

The emoluments of four (2019: four) of the highest paid
individuals were within the following bands:

FHRAELEEREZERNTES B -F
—NFTAZ T RERER - FEHEREER
BEZERPTESZAALAEERT MK
EEBBE_F-NF+_A=T—HLE
BFEEzHME  RAXEEET —EHKD
FHEA BRFHFREER-FT-NF
TZAZ+T—HRARTRITES - KRB
EE-NFTA=T+-BLEEBEAFEZ
FEHM T ALBERHMALZINERA -

& (ZF—NF : OR)ZSHMA
TZMENFTHAR

Number of individuals

ABHE

2020 2019

—g-8F —T-hF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 BT T E 1,000,000 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 751,000,001 TTE B

1,500,000 7T 2 1

4 4
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11.

12.

128

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S 1
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
remunerations were paid by the Group to the directors or the
four (2019: four) highest paid employees as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

(c) Senior management’s emolument
The remuneration paid to the senior management (other than

the directors as disclosed in note 11(a) above) for the years fell
within the following band:

. BEENEAREEEME @

(b) EEERSHFMAL(E)

REE-_Z-_ZFR-_T—NF+=
A=+—RILFE rEEVERE
ERNE(ZE—NEF : IR REH
BilfE B T ERBS - (EREEIE M
AREBEREMAREER 2 52
B SKEAEBERZFIE -

(c) EREZEEMS
RER - MSREEE (B LXK
M@ EENERIN) HBEN T
T5I#E R :

Number of individuals

ABEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TTEBE

1,500,000 7T 1 1

DIVIDENDS 12. BB
2020 2019
—g-®F  —T-AF
HK$'000 HK$000
EBET T JBEEEFoT

Final dividend proposed of HK0.9 cent HEIRFREER0.9BIIFR

(2019: nil) per ordinary share HRE(ZZ—NF : &) 52,279 =

No dividend was proposed during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

The final dividend of HK0.9 cent per ordinary share proposed after
the reporting date for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil)
were not recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting date. In
addition, the final dividend is subject to the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

2020 Annual Report FE R
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 T -_TF+-_A=-+—HIEFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
earnings for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$121,372,000 (2019: HK$47,539,000) and on the weighted
average number of 5,796,985,000 (2019: 5,796,985,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased
by the Company for share award scheme.

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during
both years and hence the diluted earnings per share is the same as
basic earnings per share.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes. The Group participates in the MPF Scheme
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of trustees. Subject to a capped
amount, the Group contributes 5% of the relevant income for each
employee to the MPF Scheme, the amount of which is matched
with that contributed by employees. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Company’'s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
10% to 20% (2019: 10% to 20%) of payroll costs, subject to a
capped amount for each employee to the retirement benefits
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, contributions totalling of
HK$6,902,000 (2019: HK$9,423,000) were charged to the profit or
loss for the year.

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FRElRE R EB AR A 7

13.

14.

BREF

BREARFTIZFRARNQRES AN
BAE 121,372,000 (ZE—HF :
#47,539,00070) M FANBE T2 L@ (R
BEAQRBHEREMBE 2 LB
%) AN4E 19 #8 5,796,985,000 ) (—Z— 1
£ : 5,796,985,000 I%) At EHAE -

RWEFEIBRETENCBEREL R
B Bt EER N meREARNE
[7] °

R SERIE g
AR B S5 IBE B HORRABFIEHE o

AEERAERSEBRRSHEZEES
HERBR B ATRE A BIURGIRL 2818
EFtEl - BESHECEEDHIAEAE
WZESHE YEAEEZEENR -
AEBMBRABBALZE% (BLR) BEM
RERBESFEELHEHR  MEENA
e AR Z 3K - Mo &5 BI{E e H
HF AR R -

AREIREANBLARIZEEA—EFREK
FERZBRERREFFEIZKE - HB
NAlBETEKRANZ210%E20% (==
—NEF 10% E20%) (B LR) AEALE
BRRKEFGTEIMHR - XEEFRIKTE
FEBlzE—EERIEHIEEZHRK -

REBE-_ZE-_TF+_RA=1—HBILFE -
& HE#6,902,000 L (ZE—NF : B
9,423,000 7T) 2 R B FEEE RN °
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - HEKRE
Land and other
Furniture and Marine travel properties Machineries
office  Motor vehicles facilities and leased for ~ Construction- and
Buildings equipment  and vessels equipment ownused  in-progress equipment Total
BRR BLIE SRRty
g7 BORE  RERME  RERRE REMUERE EEIE  HBREE Gl

HKS$ 000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
bide ERTx ERTR ERTR ERFR e bide ERTR

Cost A
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-H 124,864 8,679 83784 7139 62,353 26,352 - 313,167
Currency realignment EriEg (3.984) 342) (2219 (188 (124 (229) s (8.204)
Additions E - 12,020 668 - 9,658 13,230 - 35,576
Disposals £ - (468) (4,89) - - - - (5,363)
Reclassified as held for sale  ESfAEAREHE
(note 37) (hi#37) = (917) = = (1633) = = 2.550)
Transfer g3 39363 - - - - 39,383) = =
At31 December 2019 RZE-NFTZA
=+-A 160,233 18,968 71338 6,951 69,136 - - 332,626
Currency realignment EiE% 11,548 1132 5119 501 3,09 - 7106 29102
Additions HE - 1,060 - - - - 123299 124,359
Disposals ik - (253) (10,068) - - - - (10321)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ (HEMBAT
(note 37) (Wit37) - (430) (775) - = = - (1,20)
Wiitten off i = = - - (1,354) - - (1,354
At 31 Decernber 2020 i
=t+-H mim 20471 71,614 1452 70,878 - 131,005 473,207
Accumulated depreciation Z3tHERFE
and impairment
At 1 January 2019 R-2-NF-B-A 2101 8,515 26,002 4393 16,223 - - 79234
Currency realignment EREX (749) (95) (860) (129 (791 - - (1912)
Provided for the year Endk 6479 1,260 5,967 917 5016 = - 19,639
Eiminated on disposals ~ HEBHEH = (39) (4576) - - - - (4.945)
Reclassifiec as held for sale B ABAEIRLE
(note 37) (Hits7) - (407) - - (617) - - (1.224)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NFTZA
=1-H 29831 8,904 26,533 5,181 20,343 - - 90,792
Currency realignment EiE% 2,600 38 323 392 340 - 124 7007
Provided for the year Emie 7197 2,065 5617 425 6,322 - 1988 23614
Eiminated on disposels ~~ HiEFEH - 041) 9219 - - - - (9460
Eiminated on disposal of ~ HiEHBA AR
subsidiries (note 37) (Hit37) - (370) (707) - - - - (1070
Eliminated on written off ~ H#KEH = = - - (1,354 - - (1,354)
Impairment (note (3) HEHE ) - - 19,012 - - - - 19012
At 31 Decernber 2020 i
S 39,628 10,686 44,459 5,998 25,651 - 212 128,534
Carrying amounts FEE
At 31 December 2020 RZEZFFTZA
=1+-A 132,153 9,791 21,15 1,454 45,221 - 128,893 344,673
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NFTZA
S 130402 10,064 50,805 1,770 48793 - - 241,834
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain vessels used in the
marine recreation services and hotel business has not been approved for
launching operation in the sea area of Hainan, the PRC. These vessels were
subject to further modification before using in the marine recreation services
and hotel business. The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of these
vessels and as a result the carrying amount of these vessels was written
down to their recoverable amount of approximately HK$15,663,000. As
such, impairment losses of approximately HK$19,012,000 (2019: nil) was
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

The recoverable amounts of these vessels are determined based on the
higher of fair values less costs of disposal and value in use calculation.

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amounts of these vessels have
been determined based on fair value less costs of disposal, which is arrived
at on the basis of valuation carried out by an independent professional
valuer. The fair value less costs of disposal of these vessels is level 3
recurring fair value measurement. The key assumptions to determine the
fair value less costs of disposal under income approach using present value
technique are discount rates and projected future revenue. The pre-tax
discount rate used is 13.05%.

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of

Bt 35 SR R B 5E

Pt ASt-ALEE

15. Y% - MERRE @)

izt -

HE_ZT_ZF+_A=+—HILFE F§
b R 38E AR S AE JE 3 S 1 R A0 B T MR AR
EEEREEREE TKEE - ZS MM
ERARE EIRERSIEEES TR H#E
Ti#E— R - NEBEFE &S MM AT IR
El& 5 - FAZSEmMaREERRE T
U 5] € BE 4975 85 15,663,000 7T © AUt @ JRE
Eﬂéf{]‘}%’ﬁﬁm 012,000 (=T —hF : &)
RERE WA R TER ©

ZEMMO AR SFEDERATEREE
RALREREENRREETE

RZZE-ZFE+-—A=+—H ZEMHED
AR E e EEREAFEBRBERA(ER
—EBUHEEGEMETHREMER)E
E o AT ERZ SN HER AR =ZRE
%\i{ FEFE- *ETJ%H&)\/HEEFHEEE&HI
EERAFERHERANIERRBRE
RIEFARKKE RANRARRES
13.05% -°

EREEE

ZAAMAERR B DO AEEENKREF

underlying asset is as follows: BT :
2020 2019
—BoEF —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Ownership interests in leasehold land held forown  ##{EEAMAE L 2 Fra#EEZ - RHBER
use, carried at depreciated cost in the PRC, with RITERARSIER - REAFRL
medium-term leases. 38,186 37,577
Other properties leased for own use, carried at HEEBRAZEMYE - RITERATER
depreciated cost 7,041 11,216
China Chengtong Development Group Limited REHEZREEGR AT 131
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15.

132

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. Y% - MERRE @)
Notes: (Continued) Hiat - (88)
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) (FERAEEEE

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or
loss is as follows:

RNIERTERAFEHEHENFRXER ZH N
T

2020 2019
—ECBE —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class of RIBEEEREFE D HERELSENTE

underlying asset: it

Ownership interests in leasehold land et Fra R 1,976 1,993
Other properties leased for own use HEEBRZEMYZE 4,346 3,023
6,322 5,016
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HEABEZ TR (HT8) 435 437
Expenses relating to short-term leases FHERBHE AL 790 3,870

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had no addition of
right-of-use assets (2019: additions of HK$9,658,000 and the additions are
non-cash transaction).

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
HK$4,446,000 (2019: HK$3,283,000).
Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 30.

(c) Machineries and equipment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group lease out all the machineries and
equipment under operating leases to generate rental income (2019: nil).
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AEEVEABEERREE(CE-NEF &
EBH 96580007t HZEAREAIIES
R5) °

BE-_Z-_ZF+_-_A=+—HULEFEMNHA
EMBE SR A ABE 4,446,000 T(=F
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. REWE

2020 2019
—B-EHE —ET-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BEF T

At fair value RAYE
At 1 January Rn—H—H 93,939 101,528
Currency realignment [EHEE 6,090 (2,538)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss ~ RBRPERZ AFEESH (11,125) (5,051)
Additions = 239 =
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 89,143 93,939

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above
represents properties situated in the PRC held under medium-term
leases.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31 December
2020 and 2019 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by Jones Lang Lasalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited, the independent qualified professional valuer.
Jones Lang Lasalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and possesses of
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations.

EXMRZEENMEZREERRES S
BARPEFE M -

REBERAREERNFENEIES K
FERNBERENMEERIERAATE
BAEE - YD BRINEREDE

AEER-_ZE-_ZEFR=-_F—NF+=A
=+ —RAZEREVEZAFEUBIEE
BEEHEMPEBTLETHEREHAE
RABIRZAMERZEEREEAR - (F
ERTLEGMREABRARATEINZ
MmEees  HESBEEW MHITEMH
R B 2 (A B -
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

16. REWHE (&)

Fair value hierarchy AEEER

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's investment TREVNNREPRELEEEELETEN
properties measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring AEBKEVMENRAFE  BEAEELH
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined BREEBFIBFLAFEAEEEN =R
in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair AFEER - ATFEAERENERLER
value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the EER AT FERANE A BRI BRI
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation MEZWBENT

technique as follows:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020

categorised into

R-E-ZEFE+-_A=1+—HWAFEFERES

Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
R=ZB=FF
t=RA=t—H”
—#® =& =% WAFE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Recurring fair value KREMATLE
measurement TE
Investment properties: WEME
Property units — the PRC ¥ % %7 — & - 11,044 78,099 89,143
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019
categorised into
RZE-NF+A=T—HAFEFEFER
Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
RZE—NF
+t=ZA=+—H
— % —® =& M RFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T BT
Recurring fair value BEMATLE
measurement TE
Investment properties: LEME
Property units — the PRC #2887 — - - 93,939 93,939
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. REWHE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEER(E)
Except for the tenancy agreement of an investment property of BRI E Y 11,044,000 T T E Wi
HK$11,044,000 was expired and hold for capital appreciation and EfEm s AREEREETAE A TESR
was transferred from Level 3 to Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, M=REAZRIN REBEEZZFT=ZF
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers TZA=T—HLEFE WE-RE-R
into or out of Level 3 during the year ended 31 December 2020 ZHEHMERIR=FNEAREL (=ZF
(2019: no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or —NF: UTE—RE K EAHEZ IR
out of Level 3). The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between ZHRMEAREL) - AEBERECRE T
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in RRMERARBENATFEERTSER
which they occur. 2 EREERE o
The fair value of investment properties is a Level 3 recurring fair WEMEZ AN FEB=REEE LT ER
value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair o FYIEFRQAFEHEHENOT -
value balance is provided below.
2020 2019
et —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T B F T
Opening balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) FVHEBE (ZREEERTFE) 93,939 101,528
Currency realignment MEHEE 5,051 (2,538)
Fair value change NEEEE (4,427) (5,051)
Additions NE 239 =
Transfer out of level 3 REARE T (16,703) -
Closing balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) ERGBE(ZREEERFE) 78,099 93,939
China Chengtong Development Group Limited HEHEZREEGR AT 135
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16.

136

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement — Property
units in the PRC

Fair value is determined by applying the income approach for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 and based on the
following significant unobservable inputs.

ToRFF_A=+—HLLEE

16.

BEYE @)
BEE=RAFEHEZEN— RATENY
B
HE_T-_ZTFR-_ZT—-—NF+=A

=+—BILFE  ATFELEREABERA
ERBBRATERTAIERGAMEETE -
Relationship of unobservable

inputs to fair value

TABREARBRERVEZBE

Significant unobservable inputs Range
EATABENAZE |
Term yield 3.0%-4.0% per annum

(2019: 3.0%-4.0% per annum)
FHEHE BF3.0%-4.0%

(ZZ2—NF : HF3.0%4.0%)
Expected vacancy rate 0%-7.0%

(2019: 0%-7.0%)
TEHZEEX 0%-7.0%

(ZZE—NF : 0%-7.0%)

Reversionary yield 3.5%-4.5% per annum

(2019: 3.56%-4.5% per annum)

B E R FH3.5%-45%
(ZZ2—N%F : 8F35%-4.5%)
Daily rent RMBO0.3-RMB4.0 per square meter
(2019: RMBO0.3-RMB4.2 per square meter)
BEHES BEFRKARKEOOIT-ARB 40T

(ZZ2—NF: BFHTRARKOIT-

ARBE427T)

The higher the term yield, expected
vacancy rate and reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value

FHEHE BHZEE X RBEERE

Al A HERE

The higher the daily rent, the higher
the fair value

FREZAR  MAFERS

Information about Level 2 fair value measurement — Property
units in the PRC

For the investment property which the tenancy agreement was
expired and hold for capital appreciation, it was valued by applying
direct comparison approach without any significant adjustment being
made to the market observable data. The fair value measurement
was classified as Level 2.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a property unit was
vacant upon the expiry of the tenancy agreement and the valuation
technigue was changed from income approach to direct comparison
approach following the vacant possession. The fair value
measurement of such property was reclassified to Level 2.

Other than described above, there has been no change in the
valuation technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value
of the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E =%

=

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

Brt 755 3B 3R B 5E

TE+Z A=+ —BILEE

17. Rt Qa2

FEMBRABFBMOT

Place of Particulars of Equity interest
incorporation/ paid-up capital/ owned by the
Company operations issued share capital Company Principal activities
HEMRL EHRER EABEBEZ
AT 2 B ERITRAFE i FEER
%
Directly held:
HEEREE:
Galactic Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Investment holding
HRMIREBR AT BE PE¥E2 T AR
Indirectly held:
BEESE
Chengtong Trading (International) Hong Kong HK$429 100 Finance leasing
Limited
HRE S (B ARAF B P 429 7T mMERE
Chengtong World Trade Limited  Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 51 Bulk commodity trade
BBttt T ERAF] B 7% 10,000,000 7T AREmE S
ERBEEEH AR AR The PRC RMB50,000,000 100  Property development
and investment
FRE AR 50,000,000 7T MEBRIKE
BEREHERRAR* The PRC US$40,000,000 100  Finance leasing and
operating leasing
+ 40,000,000 37T BMEHERKEHE
WRERESHERAR* The PRC RMB100,000,000 100  Bulk commodity trade
i A H 100,000,000 7T AREmES
R IR BB IRt SR Y The PRC RMB96,000,000 100  Provision of marine
BERAF]* recreation services
# AR# 96,000,000 7T DT FIRERK
BEREBEERHESGRALR* The PRC RMB8,000,000 100  Hotel business
A AR #8,000,0007T IS B IE

*  Alimited liability company established in the PRC

* —HERFERIZERAR
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The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and
liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 or at any time during the respective year.

The following table lists out the information relating to the
subsidiaries of the Company which have material non-controlling
interests (“NCI”) in the respective years. No NCI in 3B K2 /&5
Z£HPRAA) (unofficial English translation being Chengtong Dafeng
Harbour Development Limited) as at 31 December 2020 following
the disposal of Chengtong Investment Group Limited (“Chengtong
Investment”) during the year ended 31 December 2020 (note 37(b)).
The summarised financial information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

ToRFF_A=+—HLLEE

FRIHARREERRIEFELREH

FRAEEHITVRAEBRBHIEEREE
ZARRMBAR - ARREEERER

TEPTAR - LS E ALK AR 275 -

R-B_FER_F-NF+_A=1—
B R & F AR - IS D F
*ﬁ‘fﬂﬂ%ﬂ‘%?ﬁ% e

TRIMBBEARBREFEFBEEAF
TR ([ FFERER ) WARFNER
AMER - RBEE-_T_ZTF+_A
=t-BLFEHEHBREEEARA

A(HBERE] & R_F_FF+_H
St -RYERBBAEEERMEFRL

AR R (MIRE37() - U TN 2FZ
MBEERNRE SARFHER R RIBEHER 2
2 -

Chengtong World Trade Limited BEBEXEEE
HBHTEERAT HEERLT
2020 2019 2019
TEZEF —E-NEF —E-NEF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
NCI percentage EERERA DL 49% 49% 33.33%
Current assets MENEE 59,439 10,036 396,380
Non-current assets EmENEE 53 - 143
Current liabilities mEaE (48,003) (14) (80,939)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE = - -
Net assets BEFE 11,489 10,022 315,584
Carrying amount of NCI SRR SR BRI (B 5,629 4,911 105,184
For the year ended 31 December &HZE+-A=+—HLEE
Turnover e 440,667 = =
Profit/(loss) for the year iﬁqmﬂ/ (E8) 1,453 32 (6,362)
Total comprehensive income PHEW AR 1,453 32 (14,948)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI DS IR 2w F],
(E518) 712 16 (2,120)
Dividend paid to NCI B FEERER CIRE = = =
For the year ended 31 December &HZE+-—HA=+—HLEE
Cash flows from operating activities &&ESELZEESRE (9,736) (1) 3,779
Cash flows from investing activities HREEFHELAZRESRE (1,332) 20 (29)
Cash flows from financing activities RIEEHELZRESRE 23,020 10,000 -
Net cash inflows MERNFRE 11,952 10,019 3,750
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DEPOSITS PAID 18. Effi&E
2020 2019
TEDEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFIT
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plantand B EW¥ - BERREDNIES
equipment 700 -
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE/PROPERTIES 19. BHEHENE BRPWE

UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties held under development comprise leasehold land and
certain construction costs in the PRC under medium-term lease for
commercial use and long lease for residential use. The amount is
expected to be recovered within the Group's operating cycle, thus, it
is classified as current assets.

Upon completion of construction works, completed properties under
development will be transferred to properties held for sale.

BRTVEEEREBEAETHBOR
FERZRMBEONTRBENHEHEL
NETRERAR - ZHIEFEF BN AEH
REBHA%E - B mRsEE -

BRIBTIR TINBERTOERE
AFEHLEDE -

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 20. FFRRWE
The properties held for development mainly comprises leasehold RFERRVEXZZEEREBETRPEON
land in the PRC under medium-term and long leases without FEFBE - MARMBETHHEE T o %
commencement of construction works. The amount is expected to %\gﬁ%ﬁ%%_ﬁf?&?%i@gﬁm”&@ sl
be recovered within the normal operating cycle and therefore SIRRBEE -
classified as current assets.
INVENTORIES 21. 78
2020 2019
s —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BT
Bulk commodities NG 380 -
Merchandises and consumables 21 am MOB#E 4,376 4,036
4,756 4,036
China Chengtong Development Group Limited HEHEZREEGR AT 139



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 355 SR R B 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —Z _ZF+_A=+—HILtFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EFREMEWFIE
2020 2019
TEDEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade and bills receivables (note a) B O RIGRIE R EREE 37,165 710

(Kiita)

Prepayments to suppliers ) 4 FE P TR A SRR 1,521 84,746
Other prepayments and deposits EMFEMARIERZS 4,698 16,673
Other receivables (note b) Efb U ERIE (M7t b) 58,391 33,925
Total trade and other receivables B SR HA WG IE LR 101,775 136,054

140

Notes:

(a)

2020

As at 31 December 2020, the amounts mainly represented trade and bills
receivables of HK$34,277,000 from bulk commodity trade business and
HK$1,680,000 from leasing out owned machineries and equipment (2019:
HK$710,000 from marine recreation services and hotel business). 0 to 30
days credit period was granted to customers for trade and bills receivables
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: 30 days).

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers according to
industry practice together with consideration of their credibility and
repayment history. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management.

As at 31 December 2020, loss allowance of HK$5,000 (2019: nil) was made
against the gross amount of trade and bills receivables.

Annual Report FERE

izt -

MR-Z-_TE+-_A=+—0 ZE¢HEx
ZERAARTHADEIELENE ZEMKFIE
e IR 34,277,000 Tt kKRB E A
B R 1,680,000 (= —NF :
75 % 710,000 70 2K & 8 - R 382 AR 75 FUE JE 3
B R_T_TF+-_A=+—0 58S
BRZEREREENS  EFEETOE
0AREH(ZZT—hF :308) -

AEEBEREBEENFREEBEFHER
REREELS  ARERDEREMY - A%
B 7 s EOR W B 27 R SR R 4 5 R AR O 9
# - BE R RS REEEE RS -

R-ZBE-_TFE+-_A=+—H CHE5FE
W sk TE K B R AR B SR IR B B R B B
5,000 (= —N4F : &) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 —_Z_ZF+-_A=1+—HILFE

were made against the gross amount of other receivables.

T— N4 B%176,0007T) ©

China Chengtong Development Group Limited R ElREZ R EBEGR A A

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. EZRHEHMEWRIE )
Notes: (Continued) MiaE - ()
(a) (Continued) (@) €-))
The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables presented RBERARZEEBRAER B HEUGRIE
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. REWRER 2 BRER DT o
2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BETFT
Within 90 days 90K A 37,165 710
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables presented that are not RAERABEERECEFERTERERE
considered to be credit-impaired is as follows: BZREDSITAT -
2020 2019
—ECEHE —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEF T BT
Not yet past due i A< 780 Ef 36,893 =
Less than one month past due wELOR—EA 272 710
37,165 710
(b)  Asat31 December 2020, loss allowance of HK$185,000 (2019: HK$176,000) b RZF-TF+-_A=F—H EfHLE

W kI R TR R T IR B 18 B 5 75 #5 185,000 7T (=

141
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23. LOANS RECEIVABLE 23. EWERK
Loans receivable arose from the finance lease service business. JEWEFREMERERBGELR -
2020 2019
— —E-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: DWTERH®A R -
Current assets MENEE 634,378 442,135
Non-current assets EREEE 1,438,325 684,689
2,072,703 1,126,824
As at 31 December 2020, effective interest rates for the loans RZZEZZTF+-_A=+—H0 EREXR
receivable ranged from approximately 4.90% to 8.77% (2019: 4.90% EBRFERENT4490%E8.77% (=
10 8.99%) per annum. ZT—NF  4.90% £8.99%) ©
The loans receivable are secured by the leased equipment and JEU B FRATE SRR R R M A AT A 2

ER s TEAERR EREE
1,817,836,000t( — & — L F: B &

facilities and land from the related party of the lessee, of which
HK$1,817,836,000 (2019: HK$901,053,000) are guaranteed by the

related parties of the lessees. The lessees are obliged to settle the
amounts according to the terms set out in the relevant contracts.

Also, certain loans receivable are secured by deposits received from
customers of HK$149,289,000 (2019: HK$80,784,000) (note 28(b)).

The ageing analysis of loans receivable at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

901,053,000 7T ) A7 A 2 B E 7 IR o
AR BEBRBEESOMEAGIEE
FEFRIE -

oh ETREREFTRUDKREEHER
75 #149,289,000L( Z & — NLF : B
80,784,000 7T) {EHE 3 (B3 28(b)) °

N ERREBRERZ R DITOT

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

HK$000 HK$'000

EBMEF T BT T

Not yet past due i) 7 480 HR 2,050,574 1,119,054
Past due but not credit impaired E@%ﬁ HREERE

Within 3 months R=EAR - 7,770

Within 1 year R—FR 22,129 -

2,072,703 1,126,824
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 —Z -ZF+ - A=+—HItFE

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, loss allowance of HK$931,000 (2019:
HK$74,000) were made against the gross amount of loans
receivable.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED PARTIES

(@) Amount due from a related party

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of HK$36,404,000
represented the outstanding loan principal and interest
receivable from FEIZS%EEERAF], a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CCHG. The loan bears interest at 6% per annum
and will be repayable on 2 September 2021. The Group has the
right to request the related party to provide a security by
pledging certain office premises held by the related party at
any time before the full repayment of the loan.

As at 31 December 2019, the amount due from a related party
represented a short-term loan to FEESEEERAFA], a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHG. The balance bears interest
at 9% per annum and was fully repaid during the year ended
31 December 2020.

(b) Amount due to a related party

The balance of HK$23,592,000 represented the outstanding
loan principal and interest payable to China Chengtong
Investment Company Limited, a subsidiary of the intermediate
holding company of the Company. The loan is unsecured,
bears interest at 3.65% per annum and will be repayable on 18
February 2021. Subsequent to the end of the reporting date,
the repayment date of the loan is further extended to 18
February 2022.

23.

24.

W E R (5)

m_7_7¢+ B=+—08 " 2sEk
RABREE B 1R B B 6 931,000 (=
%—hiz%%upmﬁ%

FEW FEAS BAE T3 5K TH
(a) FEW—HBIESHE

R-ZBE-ZTFE+=-_A=+—80 %%
75 36,404,000 THEEKRFEHES
E@ﬁﬁﬁ m&u szié%E
DRENZAEBEEZAERFE - &
&ifrwi(a%ﬁ%' B = ?
*—inﬂ BEE - REBEER
BRERESER Z AT R R Bk
EREERARRESEEZETHA
MIEREIER -

—hWFE+ZA=1—H EK
— BB RBEEETTEEEEE
BERAR (BBERz2EMBAR)
Z%EHHEM‘) & B R F 9%

CWERBE_ZT_ZTFF+_A
f-i— B FERBEE -

(b) EN—BEELRER

#4 %23,692,000 7% T 38 FE 15 AR B 3
BIREBRAR(ARRARNIZERA
ﬂZW%Qﬂ)Z%E@%m$i&
FE - BERDEREME  RFFHEK

365%FtE  WEBR -_TE-—F— H
+\BEE - NFEEHRE - BER
ZEERHE—HSERE_T_—

—A+NB-
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25.

144

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

25 HhemEE

2020 2019
TEDEF —E-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
btaE BT BEFT
Non-current: FERE :
Financial assets measured at FVOCl AR EFAHEMEZEKEZS
(non-recycling) MEE (FAEAERL)
— Equity investments — EmiRE 11,200 4,267
Current: TR
Financial assets measured at FVOCl AR EFAHEMEZEKEZS
(non-recycling) MEE(FAEAERZ)
Equity investments TR E
— Shares listed in Hong Kong REB EmrRG, 62,992 134,620
Financial assets measured at FVPL A FEABEEREE
— Shares listed in Hong Kong — REB LTS 1,639 1,040
— Unlisted investments — ELTIRE (a) 35,775 204,139
Financial assets at amortised cost LR EAABRNEREE
— Structured bank deposits with — ERERE08% (ZZT—H
interest rate of 0.8% (2019: 3.5% F :35%%E3.9%)MHE
t0 3.9%) per annum ERMERITER 7,330 205,017
107,736 544,816
Note: Hte -
(a)  The balances represented the trust products and wealth management (@) ZEERRTRECRITREMBEREE

products managed by PRC banks and financial institutions which invested in
underlying assets without open or active quotations.

2020 Annual Report FE R
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DEPOSITS IN OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

On 29 December 2017, the Company entered into a financial
services agreement with China Chengtong Finance Corporation Ltd.
(“Chengtong Finance"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHG,
pursuant to which Chengtong Finance agreed to provide the Group
with a range of financial services, including the deposits services, for
a term from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. Details in relation
to the financial services agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have deposits with
Chengtong Finance (2019: current deposits of HK$2,157,000 with
interest ranged from 0.42% to 1.62% per annum).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

(a) Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits

26.

27.

REAL S BER TR

RZE—+F+-A-+NH A FHE
BBMEAERSEE AR ([HEMK])  #
BIERZ2EWB AT T2 /RS
OB BEMERERALEBEREES—
RIS MRS BIEERRYE  FHE=
T-NFEF-—A—BE-_Z_ZETF+_-A
=+—ALl- FESBREHEZFBEH
RAARBSAE-—E—+F+=-_A=+H
Az A% -

RZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H A&E£EEL
EERRN B ENTER(ZE—NEF  F
HATF B H 2,157,000 © FEFENF0.42%
Z£1.62%) °

BITEERREUR B EFRIT
FRRkEMRSREEHR

(a) BITEFRESURSEFRITER

2020 2019
—BEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Bank balances and cash SRITEFERES
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERS 859,618 732,356
Pledged bank deposits BIRFRITIER
Deposits pledged against banking facilities — FtiE FIRBA ZRITRIEEIF 2
granted to mortgagors TR 4,169 4,189
Other secured deposits HEMIKHER 1,387 273
5,556 4,462
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27.

146

27. RITEERBASUREBERRIT
FREEMBESREER (5

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits (a) SHRITEFRBESURCEARTER
(Continued) (8&)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, bank balances
deposited in Hong Kong banks carry interest ranged from
0.01% to 2.85% (2019: from 0.01% to 3.02%) per
annum.

Bank balances deposited in PRC banks carry interest at
benchmark rate offered by The People’s Bank of China.

Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits held
by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries and deposited with
banks in the PRC amounting to HK$410,020,000 (2019:
HK$415,921,000) were denominated in RMB, which are
not a freely convertible currency in the international
market. The RMB exchange rate is determined by the
Government of the PRC and the remittance of these
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the Government of the PRC.

As required by the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource
Bureau, the property development company of the
Group is required to place in designated bank accounts
the pre-sale proceeds of properties to finance the
construction of the related properties. The deposits can
only be used for purchases of construction materials and
payments of construction fees of the relevant property
projects when approval from the PRC State-Owned Land
and Resources Bureau is obtained. The directors
considered these bank deposits form part of the Group's
normal operating fund, which was included in “bank
balances and cash”, and was presented as part of cash
and cash equivalents.

The cash deposited in the designated bank accounts for
the aforesaid specific usage as at 31 December 2020
amounted to HK$16,844,000 (2019: HK$24,325,000).

2020 Annual Report FERE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BHE_Z2-_F+-_A=+—
ALIEFE  REBRITZRIT
EIFOFEMENF001%2E
28% (= —NLF: N T
0.01% £3.02%) °

Mok B2 81T 2 SRIT AT R
B AR AR 1T M 2 BB % 5t

B o
B

ARBIZHPEWBRRAES
5 A7 410,020,000 T (=&
— N4 : ¥ 415,921,0007T)
ZHRITHEFE RS AR EA
BITERUARESNE - W17
MR EZRIT EARETR
AREETSEERER AR
w7 ERAPBEBAEE M
BEFEENERESATTHR
BB e .2 SNE B HIFTARRR ©

RIFPEE L+ ERBAOMRE -
AEBYEERARAREE
RITPOBEAMEREMEH
IR ERBEGZEBMENE
& RERETRIEBERE
MR R B+ BRI
HEMEFRERINEEER
R-BF2RR ZFRITEK
BRASE-—REEESHN—
WD XEFATRITERTR
RAe | RMEARERRESEE
M —EDHIRR

R—E—_EF+-_A=+—
A EEERITPOGFRIEEL
MEFETRABRZESABE
16,844,000 L( =& — L F :
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27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Other cash flow information

27. RITEERBASUREBERRIT
FREkEMARSREER @)

(b) EHMREREBER

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BMEEBEEMNEBLE
Amount due to Lease Bank
a related party liabilities borrowings
EB—%
BE S A HESE RITEE
(note 24) (note 30) (note 31)
(Bfat24) (Ktet30) (Bta£31)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T BEFT
At 1 January 2020 RZEBE_TF—H—H - 10,881 277,700
Changes from financing cash RKEBERSREN
flows: #E) -
Proceeds from new loans FERAMSHRIE 69,064 - 373,040
Repayment of loans BEEXR (45,784) - (323,516)
Interest paid 2RFE (786) - (9,241)
Capital element of lease rentals 2N E 2 EARLLD
paid - (4,011) =
Interest element of lease rentals & 2 F 855
paid - (435) -
Total changes from financing REBMERESREN
cash flows bl e 22,494 (4,446) 40,283
Exchange adjustments PE H AR - 170 10,227
Other changes: Hib &g :
Interest expenses FERX 1,098 435 6,679
Capitalised borrowing costs BERLEERA - - 3,531
Total other changes HiEs)iass 1,098 435 10,210
At 31 December 2020 RZT_ZFE+_H
=+—H 23,592 7,040 338,420

China Chengtong Development Group Limited R Bl iE 2 R
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27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND PLEDGED 27. BITEERBREESURCIKMEIT
BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW FRREMBEREER @)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Other cash flow information (Continued)

(b) HitREREEH (E)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BMEETBELEMBELEE : (B)
(Continued)
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings
HEEE RITIEE
(note 30) (note 31)
(Kt5£30) (Kta£31)
HK$'000 HK$'000
B FT BT

At 1 January 2019

Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans
Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid

Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest element of lease rentals paid

Total changes from financing cash flows

Exchange adjustments

Other changes:

Interest expenses

Capitalised borrowing costs

New leases

Reclassified as liabilities associated with
assets classified as held for sale

Total other changes

At 31 December 2019

RZE—NF—A—H 5,040 274,100

KERMERSRENZE :

FRITE B RIE - 79,100
BEIIRITER - (73,450)
EfFIE - (9,729)
ENAE 2 ERILY (2,846) -
ENAEZFIEZLD (437) -
REMER S RENSEEE (3,283) (4,079)
PE W Fa % (124) (2,415)
Hib &g
FMEMAX 437 5,570
ERCEERAR - 4,524
e 9,658 =
ENOEABESEABEREZ

BEMEE8E (847) -
e shiasm 9,248 10,094
R-Z—hE+-A=+—H 10,881 277,700
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28. EZRHMENKIE

2020 2019
—ECEF —ET-NEF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Trade and bills payables (note (a)) B RN ZE K EAZEE
(Mt (@) 19,887 14,153
Other payables and accruals H fth FE A< 5RIE R FERT 5RIE 89,507 40,560
Deposits received (note (b)) B S (Fat b)) 149,289 80,784
Accrual of construction costs BT TI2ER 90,841 38,151
349,524 173,648
Notes: B
(@  As at 31 December 2020, bills payables were secured by pledged bank @ N-ZF-BFF+-_A=+—H BNEEH
deposits of HK$1,280,000 (2019: no bills payables). BB ITIF B 1,280,000 (=T —A,
F: BEMEIR) (FEF -
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables presented based on the RBERREZBERAHE2ROEH RN KR
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RENERZREROMOT
2020 2019
—E-EHE —T-NEF
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Within one year —FRA 19,887 11,306
Over one year but less than two years BR—FRLHRME - -
Over two years but less than three years HBBRMFRIR=F - 2,847
19,887 14,153
(b) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, deposits received arose from loans (b) RZBZZFR_ZT-NF+ZA=+—

receivable customers (note 23) as security deposits. The deposits will be
returned to the customers upon the settlement of the principal of loans
receivable and the interest accrued by the customers under the contracts.

B Bl RaREEFER (i 23)(F
AREL - FRABREFENENT ZRK
BB REANSRRETER
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29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. EHEE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract AEEDHER TIREEBEOEE
liabilities:
2020 2019
—B-2HF —T-NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEF T
Contract liabilities related to property sales EAMEHENSNEE 120,311 123,832
Contract liabilities related to bulk commodity trade BEATERZESHANAE 4,109 10,805
124,420 134,637

The following table shows the revenue recognised for the year relate
to carried-forward contract liabilities:

TREIFARRNEGEEANRERH
sk

2020 2019
—ECZF —ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BMF T
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of EHBERERFAERNFENA
recognising revenue during the year that was aRaREz WEmR S
included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (87,255) (151,114)

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of HK$124,420,000 (2019:
HK$134,637,000) represented unsatisfied performance obligations
arising from property sales and bulk commodity trade, of which
HK$37,011,000 (2019: HK$70,625,000) was expected to be
recognised as income after more than one year.
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES

31.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of
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the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the years:

30. HEEME

TREIAEEHERBENRFROHBTE

HEMIER

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-NEF
Present value Present value
of minimum Minimum  of minimum Minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEEEMNRK BEEE SEBEEMNK ®EHEE
ZHRE IEEN ZB1E NE7
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T BT BT
Within one year —FR 3,729 3,983 3,528 3,938
After one year but within 2 years ~ —F&ERRER 3,311 3,372 3,892 4,146
After one year but within 5 years ~ —FEEREFA = = 3,461 3,625
7,040 7,355 10,881 11,609
Less: total future interest B AR RFI B RS R
expenses (315) (728)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 7,040 10,881
Analysed for reporting purposes DIIE2HA %
as:
Current liabilities mEaE 3,729 3,528
Non-current liabilities EREBE 3,311 7,353
7,040 10,881
BANK BORROWINGS 31. IRITIEE
2020 2019
—2oEH ZENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Bank borrowings RITEE
Unsecured AR 160,000 277,700
Secured BHELH 178,420 =
338,420 277,700
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31. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 31. BITEE®E)

R-E-ZETF+-A=+—H AEHE
T 1B #) 7 178,420,000 T (= E— hL. 5 ¢
MR TEERBERASERTEEY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings with carrying
amount of approximately HK$178,420,000 (2019: nil) were secured
by charges over loans receivable of the Group with an aggregate

carrying amount of approximately HK$199,993,000 (2019: nil) and 75 #£199,993,000 L (ZF — N F : ) K

was guaranteed by the Company (2019: nil). FEMESRERR  YHAQRER(ZE
—NE M\

As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowings of HK$178,420,000 R-ZE-_ZFF+_A=+—8 " RITEE

178,420,000 c(ZE— NG : £)B
SHRERERER  AUHEREARDAE

f& e

(2019: nil) contained repayable on demand clause and therefore have
been classified as current liabilities.

The effective interest rates of the bank loans ranged from 2.11% to AZEZTFEFZA=+—H ' ZFRT
4.50% per annum at 31 December 2020 (2019: 3.04% to 5.66%). EXRNBERFFNENT2.11% E450% (=
T—NF : 3.04% ?:5.66%) °

32. UNSECURED OTHER LOAN 32. BERHEMER

F=hRMHEEMEME T SRR
ARBEREERRE -

Unsecured other loan from third parties is unsecured, repayable on
demand and interest-free.

33. DEFERRED TAX 33. RILEBIA
EEBIAAE

Deferred tax liabilities

RAFERNEFEEL ZERNRLEREA

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and movement

thereon during the current and prior year: BERESEHHIINT :
Revaluation of Undistributed
investment profits of PRC
properties subsidiaries* Total
a1 N
REMESR &R 5 BLFIHE * @st
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T BB
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N\F+=A=+-8 36,621 15,173 51,794
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss (note 9)  M1Ba R (FFA), /R (K1:F9) (1,263) 3,131 1,868
Transferred to current tax payable BV S EMNAEHIA = (9,462) (9,462)
Exchange differences EHER (941) (206) (1,147)
At 31 December 2019 R=—Z-hE+=-A=+—-8 34,417 8,636 43,053
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss (note 9) Bz (:FA),/Hk (A1:9) (2,781) 3,211 430
Release upon disposal of a subsidiary & — KB A RIA #RRR - (45) (45)
Exchange differences fE X Z8 2,309 817 3,126
At 31 December 2020 R-E-EE+-A=+—H 33,945 12,619 46,564
* Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends * BIBPRECEMRERE B-ZEENEFE—AHA
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC entities to a non-PRC holding — B Y B A T TR M I Bl A%
company from 1 January 2008 onwards. NRTIRAE S TEMF -
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33. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 33.
Deferred tax assets

The Group has estimated unused tax losses not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as follows:

JESERLTR ()
BEBEAE

AEBARGE W BHER P ER AR
BABAEBEFHIIOT

2020 2019

—2oEH ZENEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Estimated unused tax losses et KRB ABIEEIE 131,562 150,265

No deferred tax asset in respect of the abovementioned estimated
unused tax losses have been recognised due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised estimated unused
tax losses are losses of approximately HK$58,670,000 (2019:
HK$73,577,000) that will expire on various dates within five years
from the reporting dates. Other estimated unused tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

HEFAB AR EEEEN RETEN A B
M A ER E AT RS A BB
REEBIBEEE - RERMGFTREAIE
E5i8 B 3 4978 1 58,670,000 T (ZE— A1
F B 73,577,000 7T) &R FRE H H#EE!
AERTEBHE S ZEE - Habstx
BT IEE B ER A -

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
AEEREAT
2020 2019
SE —T-NE
Number of Number of
shares shares
BB E EnE 2 ¢E!
‘000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$'000
FR BT T FA BT T
Issued and fully paid: BERITREHE :
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BR+=-A
=+—H 5,808,735 2,185,876 5,808,735 2,185,876

China Chengtong Development Group Limited REHEZREEEGR AT 153



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 355 SR R B 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &2 T -_TF+-_A=-+—HIEFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME

154

(a)

Share option scheme

The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 27 June 2013. The purpose of the Scheme is
to provide incentives or rewards to participants thereunder for
their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-caliber employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any invested
entity.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include (a) any employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive director
but excluding any non-executive director of the Company) of,
or any individual for the time being seconded to work for the
Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity"”) or any
employee or officer of the controlling shareholder of
the Company; (b) any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any
subsidiary or any Invested Entity; (c) any suppliers of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (d)
any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any
person or entity that provides research development or other
technological support to the Group or any Invested Entity; (f)
any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued or proposed to be
issued by any member of the Group or any invested entity; (g)
any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
the Group relating to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and (h) any joint venture or business partner of the
Group who have contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group. For the proposes of the
Scheme, the offer may be made to any company wholly
owned by one or more eligible participants. The Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the date it was adopted and will end on 26 June 2023.
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35. BBRETEIR KRG EREE

(a)

fBREST A

RARAFEN—_ZE—=FA=-++H
AR iR 21 ([5T8l)) - 5Bl &
SRR ALEEL TRz 2 A
BN REREBEREREESE
ZEBUNRBAE A EE M IMARE
EEMEBEEZANER -

FENMEERSEERE@ART
AEE WM ERRRARENE
KB ARIFEEARENER (R
EEEDNEMER (2B
BRERARBREMNNTES  BETEE
EAIERITES) B RFIKE A
NE - AEBENEAHEQRHIRE
EROAL - AR EIERBIRME
EEHETRAR: b)ARA - F
AT B /8 X R S AT IR A B B Y (E (AT 3F
WITES (BRBIIFRNTES) | (0
REBEMKBRRHEIREER
B B SRR LR ¢ () A%
BEREMREEENEFETS : (e
AAEE R EFIRE BRI ESL
HA TSRO EREALERE ()
AEBEMKEARSEARERR
M ERBRRAKBEMKE AT
EREEREITHRBETNENE
HFOEMFEA (@ AKEEAK
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme (Continued)

An offer of the grant of an option under the Scheme (the
“Option”) may be accepted within 21 days from the date of
grant together with a remittance of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof. An Option may be
exercised during such period as the board of directors may in
its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall
not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. The
maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes adopted by the Group shall not exceed 30% of the
share capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

The subscription price for the shares on the exercise of the
Option shall be determined at the discretion of the board of
directors which shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company's shares (note). Holding period
will be determined by directors upon granting.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
Option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Scheme. There was no Option outstanding as at 31 December
2020 and 2019.

Note: Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, which came into operation on
3 March 2014, the shares of the Company have ceased to have
nominal value.

BRET SR RO RBEE (#)
(a) EERAEEE ()

SRR TR RRERE ([ERE ) T
RERE 2z Bi#21 B ARE X PR
B i B R 1R BB SRS B 6 1.00 T 1R
AR HBRAENREMRERR - 8
BN EFSAREBHRBERTE
TTERBAE - HEZ M NS EBR
HEI10%5F - FREREBFSIRAEE
RANTAEGERETESEETM
W ARATRE RO AR S IR BB AR 1T (R AR 7]
HECH R BETHRDRABBENSE
BARB TR ETNEHITRA
30% °

RITEBBEENRNRBERHE
zelisEE - B TRERTII=%F
ZEEE () ARBRORE LA H
EMRX AR RERABRIKHE :
(i ARRARIBEOREZRR G AR
B 5 AEBZ IS RRERARZ
FHRTHE  Ri)ARARG 2@
B(ME) EFEBRRLREERE
HAR -

REBE_Z_TFR_F-NF1+=
A=1t—HLLFE - BEBREEZ
FHEIT B - 176 - BUBRKRM »
R-ZB_ZEFR-_FT-NF+-A
=+—B  BERRITENBRE -

Hrat - RER -_ZB-—NFEF=A=ZHERZR
AGS - ARARHTIBAEEE -
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (Continued)

156

(b)

Share award scheme

To provide a means to (i) recognise the contributions by any
full-time employees and directors (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors) of the Group selected by the board of
directors (collectively, the “Selected Employees”) and to give
incentives to them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (ii) attract suitable personnel
for the growth and further development of the Group, the
Company has adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme") which became effective on 1 July 2017 (the
"Effective Date"). Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the board of directors, the Share Award
Scheme remains valid and effective for 5 years commencing
from the Effective Date.

The board of directors or the trustee shall not make any further
award of shares to the Selected Employees which will result in
the total number of shares awarded by the board of directors
under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 1% of the total
ordinary shares in the issued share capital of the Company as
at the Effective Date.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
ordinary share of the Company was purchased by the trustee
for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme and no award of
share was granted to the Selected Employees under the Share
Award Scheme.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the trustee held
11,750,000 shares of the Company for the purpose of the
Share Award Scheme.
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(b)

R RBEE

REBRETRNRBEFSETN
AEBEEAE2RBEERER (BHEH
TEF FATEFNEIIFNTE
%) (bl [RBmBBET DFAFHEME
Bl YR ARENFELE RBERR
BET: RilAAEEERRE—
FERBSIGEAR - ARFERMA
fetn 2@ T8I ([ RD BB &) -
“E2+tFtA-HUTERBHDE
X e Brfn SREhAT B B ARk B H RS
TERBERER  EEEGIRER
Al FIALL I

EFERAXAATERALHEE TR
HEMEESNER I - R EHES
SRBA ) BBEAT BIPTIR R A 1) 48
AN EMAHRARE D HTHRA
B AR %

REBE_Z_TFR_FT-NF1+=
A=+t—HLEFE  XFEALERLK
DB EBEAR ﬁjti%ﬂ& - B
BERERDREFINCBEETR
BRI

RZTE-_EEFER-_ZT—NF+=A
=t+—HB8 ' RO EBFEmE -
St A A KR E]11,750,000 % A%
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RESERVES
THE GROUP

Details of changes in reserves accounts of the Group are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 76 and 77.

Notes:

Capital reserve

It represents the difference between the consideration paid for and the fair value of
net assets acquired by a former subsidiary of the Group from a company beneficially
owned by a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Statutory reserve

It represents the Group's share of statutory reserves of the subsidiaries in the PRC,
which is based on 10% profit for the year of these subsidiaries. Such statutory
reserve is non-distributable and shall be used to (i) make up prior years' losses or (ii)
expand production operations.

Shares held for share award scheme

Shares held for share award scheme is comprised of the consideration paid for the
shares held for the share award scheme.

Employee share-based compensation reserve

It represents the cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share-based
compensation to the employees over the vesting period.

Other reserve

It represents the difference between the consideration and the carrying amount of
the net assets attributable to the additional interests in subsidiaries being acquired
from non-controlling equity holders.

Exchange reserve

It comprises all foreign exchange differences arising on translation foreign operation
to presentation currency.

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FRElRE R EB AR A 7
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36. RESERVES (Continued) 36. f#fE (@)
THE COMPANY bINNET|
Employee
Shares held  share-based
for share compensation Exchange Accumulated
award scheme reserve reserve profits Total
ARG EBT URGIAW
EREZRD EEMERE B Sk E-S il Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFor BT BEFT BEFT
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-N\F+=H
=+-AH (6,494) 702 (104,701) 86,028 (24,465)
Loss for the year and total FREELFAZH
comprehensive income W& #AEE
for the year = = = (19,598) (19,598)
At31December2019 R=Z—hF+=A
=+-H (6,494) 702 (104,701) 66,430 (44,063)
Profit for the year and total FREH X FARLMH
comprehensive income W 4EEE
for the year - - - 112,161 112,161
At31December2020 R=-ZT-ZF+=A
=t+—H (6,494) 702 (104,701) 178,591 68,098
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSETS 37. HEMBLAR DERRELE

37.

158

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/LIABILITIES
ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

(a)

On 23 December 2019, an ordinary resolution was passed in
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company to approve
the disposal of 41% of the equity interest of #REERER AR
A\ (unofficial English translation being Chengtong Energy
Guangdong Company Limited) (“Chengtong Energy”) at cash
consideration of approximately HK$27,377,000. The purchaser
is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CCHG, the ultimate
holding company of the Company. The disposal was completed
on 28 February 2020 and Chengtong Energy ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company. The Group recognised a gain on
disposal of a subsidiary of approximately HK$7,477,000. Upon
completion of the disposal, the Group retained 10% equity
interest in Chengtong Energy and accounted for as financial
assets measured at FVOCI in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020.
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RZZE-NF+ZA=Z+=H ' &R
AIRIREFRI A RB T R ER
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSETS

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/LIABILITIES
ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

37. HENBAE, 2EARBELE
REE /B BEAREHESE
HEZzEEw®

(a)  (Continued) @ (&)
Chengtong Energy was principally engaged in the domestic HBEREEARERERREME
trading of coal business under the reportable segment of bulk SMEDETHIRNERE S
commodity trading in the PRC. The details of this transaction ZRXHGHBHENRARABAHRR T
have been set out in the circular of the Company dated 6 —NEFETZANBZEBK -
December 2019.
The net assets of Chengtong Energy as at the date of disposal BEERENEEAHZEEFED
were as follows: T
2020
—s-%%
HK$°000
BEFT
Property, plant and equipment e 1,326
Trade and other receivables &5 Rk H A EWFIAR 33,411
Bank balances and cash RITHETFRRE 47,813
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A FE FRIE (32,674)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE (45)
Lease liabilities HEafk (710)
Net assets disposed of EHEEETE 49,121
Total consideration — satisfied by cash BRE — ReIH 27,377
Gain on disposal of Chengtong Energy HERBRERZ WS
Consideration RIE 27,377
Non-controlling interests eIl O 23,795
Net assets disposed of BEHEEREFE (49,121)
Fair value of equity interest retained in Chengtong Energy REBRERRE 2 =N TE 6,312
Amounts paid to the purchaser in respect of the loss incurred ?ﬁzﬁ%ﬁﬁé%i@zﬁﬁﬁ BEEEGD
during the transition period borne by the Group EEENER 2 HIE (1,499)
Release of exchange reserve R IE SR B 613
Gain on disposal HERBKE 7,477
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of Chengtong Energy: ﬁ%?ﬁ@ﬁéﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
R
Cash consideration ReRE 27,377
Deposits received BUIES (2,738)
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHERTEFERRS (47,813)
Amounts paid to the purchaser in respect of the loss ?ﬁ$%@ﬁﬁ?¥<ﬁ§%@if§§ﬂ?ﬂﬁ%lﬁ
incurred during the transition period borne by the Group REBBENER 27 (1,499)
(24,673)
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSETS 37. HEWBAR, DEARAFELHE
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/LIABILITIES ZEE/HoBRABELEEE
ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HEzEE®
HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

(a)  (Continued) (@) (#&)
Note: BisE :

(i) Partial cash consideration of HK$2,738,000 was received during the i) D IR & RE AN 2,738,000 TRE

year ended 31 December 2019 and included in other payables as at E_T-hF+_A=+—HLEEE

31 December 2019. The remaining consideration of HK$24,639,000 AWE AR —HhhE+=A

was received during the year ended 31 December 2020. =+—BHEMEMNKEN - TRE

124,639,000 TRNBE-T=TF
TZA=+—BILFERIRE -

As at 31 December 2019, the assets and liabilities attributable R-E—NE+_A=+—08 " #HE
to Chengtong Energy were classified as assets classified as R EERBEEDREISZAD
held for sale and liabilities associated with assets classified as EABEHEZ EERBSEAFE
held for sale respectively and were presented separately in the HEZEMBZB8E  UHRESITE
consolidated statement of financial position. RARDBIZY o

At 31 December

2019
R_ZT— &
t=A=+—H
HK$'000
BT T
Assets classified as held for sale: PEABELHEZEE !

Property, plant and equipment Y BB MKEE 1,326
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A FEUGRIA 19,992
Bank balances and cash WITHEGE RS 57,317
78,635

Liabilities associated with assets classified as HoBEABEHEEEEABZ

held for sale: 8&:

Trade and other payables B 5 R HAERNFIA 8,876
Contract liabilities AHEE 10,310
Lease liabilities HE&E 847
Taxation payable FERTRRIE 16
20,049
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSETS

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/LIABILITIES
ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

(b)

On 26 June 2020, an ordinary resolution was passed in the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company to approve the
disposal of 100% of the equity interest of Chengtong
Investment at cash consideration of approximately
HK$267,716,000. The purchaser is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CCHG, the ultimate holding company of the Company. The
disposal was completed on 24 July 2020 and Chengtong
Investment ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. The
Group recognised a gain on disposal of a subsidiary of
approximately HK$42,752,000.

Chengtong Investment and its subsidiaries (“Chengtong
Investment Group”) were principally engaged in property
development in the PRC under the reportable segment of
property development. The details of this transaction have
been set out in the circular of the Company dated 10 June
2020.

The net assets of Chengtong Investment as at the date of
disposal were as follows:

37. HENBAE, 2EARBELE
REE /B BEAREHESE
HEZzEEw®

RZZE-ZTFA=Z+B A2
NGRS PN SRR S b = Vi
AR EHBEE100% B BER
B4 A1 267,716,000 ° BER A
BB EBRENBE R M
BT A AR R REIERAE] » H
EEHER_TE-_ZTFLA-+WHAR
RABBIRETBARATNHBR
A AEERRLE—RWBARZ
W4 B8 HE 42,752,000 7T ©

HWERENENBAR ((HABRESR
B EENTENEYFRERSBAE
BEDETHMERBREAT - B
BEHRARARBBRR-E_ZTFA
THZBE -

WBRENLERRCEEFAEN
T~

2020
SE i
HK$°000
BET T

Property, plant and equipment
Properties held for sale
Properties under development
Properties held for development
Trade and other receivables
Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Trade and other payables

Net assets disposed of

Total consideration — satisfied by cash

YESN N
RIEMEDME
BERBYE
FIFRRME

H 5 R EA YRR
EHEMBITER
RITHEEFENRE

B 5 R EAN RN IR

EHEEEFE

BRE — ARSI

128
78,914
56,459

260,661

198

37
358
(83,049)

313,706

267,716
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSETS

162

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/LIABILITIES
ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS

HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

(b)

37. HEWEBAR, DEAFEHE

ZHE/BABAREHERE
MEz&E @

(Continued) by (&)
2020
—EB-EF
Note HK$'000
HiaE BEFT
Gain on disposal of Chengtong Investment HEHBREZWE
Consideration RE 267,716
Non-controlling interests R 103,531
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (313,706)
Release of exchange reserve f R & (5,822)
Directly attributable cost BEEEEAAR (6,322)
Amounts paid to the purchaser in respect of the LA S B PR B AR S B
loss incurred during the transition period borne BERENERZHKIEA
by the Group (2,645)
Gain on disposal HE S lEs 42,752
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of Chengtong ~ H&HBREEAENREHATF
Investment: B
Cash consideration received BURESRE 267,716
Amounts received from the purchaser in respect MBBREEBERANEE S
of the amounts owed by Chengtong BEKERNERE
Investment Group to the Group (i) 79,069
Bank balances and cash disposed of BHERTEGFRES (358)
Amounts paid to the purchaser in respect of the PN B P AR RE BRI 51 2R
loss incurred during the transition period borne HEBENER A
by the Group (2,645)
343,782

Note:

(i) Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement dated 5 May 2020 entered (i)
into between the Company and the purchaser in respect of disposal
of 100% of the equity interest of Chengtong Investment, the
purchaser would settle all outstanding loans and interests accrued
thereon owing by #BALEEFREHFMR AT (unofficial English
translation being Chengtong Dafeng Harbour Development Limited),

Kt -

a subsidiary of Chengtong Investment, to a subsidiary of the

Company immediately before completion of the disposal.
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)
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38. BEAFRS

Transactions and balances with related parties (a)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
during the year, the Group had also entered into the following

HEEL RS REH

BRI EREME DR EES - F
A AEETRETIRETETAT

significant transactions with the following related parties: BEARS
Nature of
Name of related parties transactions/balances 2020 2019
BES B Re/iEHE —EB-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT T
The wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
ultimate holding company:
REAERATIZZEMBAT -
FEEESEEARAT Interest income 2,329 1,151
FLEMA
Other receivables 355 410
H b e IR
Loan to a related party 36,404 34,431
BT —BEEFHNER
Chengtong Finance (note 26) Deposits - 2,157
BT (M7t 26) T
Interest income 2 18
FEUA
China Chengtong Hong Kong Company Limited  Interest expense 461 -
PEHBESERAR FERX
Chengtong International Limited Interest expense 38 =
HBEERESBR AR FERZ
Management fee expenses 429 -
EEETH
China Chengtong Investment Company Limited Interest expense 599 =
PEEEIRE AR AR FERXZ
Loan from a related\party 23,592 -
RE—BBEEFHNER
China Chengtong Coal Investment Limited Guarantee income - 258
PEEEE IR EER AT PRI
Associate of the ultimate holding company
of the Company:
ERAFBRAERATRZHE AT !
BEHIRENEHERBRAA Loans receivable 39,869 -
JEWE R
Interest income from loans 2,176 -

receivable

U E 2 FI B U
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, other balances and transactions with
related parties at the end of the respective reporting dates or
during the respective years are set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position and notes 24 and 37.

ToRFF_A=+—HLLEE

BEERRS @

(a)

HEREL RS K& ()

B EXPIIREEIN REWME AR
HEABEENERES 2 bR
RGN A MM EIA KK T
24 %37 °

Transactions and balances with other government-related (b) HEHMBNEEERIRZRERH
entities
The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies $%@E%%EPII7I&F*E&E£”§
controlled by CCHG (CCHG and its subsidiaries are referred to B 1 2 B 1 A% (FRam 2 iR K LY
as the “CCHG Group”) which is a stated-owned enterprise BArr&TE fﬁﬁr‘ﬂﬁ%.J)ﬁﬁT—
under the direct supervision of the State Council of the PRC. AR ARSEE 2 —FD o Eﬁlﬁi’u
The management consider that the Company is ultimately B AARZH BT EREIES -
controlled by the government of the PRC and the Group REEE A a@ﬁﬁlﬁﬂ’l%ﬁgf&iﬁﬁq]
operates in an economic environment currently dominated by B BT S - B A1 %'J‘Xﬁiji?/a
entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced ZER((BRFBREER)
by the PRC government (“government-related entities”).
Apart from transactions with CCHG Group, the Group FrEZEGAIERER 2 X 5N - REEH
has transactions including but not limited to the leasing EEREMEARNSEEEEETR
arrangements and bulk commodity trade with other relevant % BREETERAEELZERARE
government-related entities. mE5 °
Details of the transactions with relevant government-related BEEBNEEER RS 2 FIEH
entities are set out below: Han
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E—NF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T B F T
Transactions with other relevant HEMBRERAREEE
government-related entities: B
Interest income from loans receivable B ERZ FBMA 96,921 50,224
Consultancy service income from finance B EFE L HE 2 A ARG A
lease arrangements 41,736 23,559
Rental income under operating leasing in EHBEMHMEREZKEHE
respect of owned machineries and H NS WA
equipment 4,606 -
Revenue from bulk commodity trade AREmE S 2 BA 104,669 =
Purchase for bulk commodity trade RRBmE S 2R 195,871 380,530
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances with other government-related
entities (Continued)

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including other purchases and operating expenses with
other government-related entities. In the opinion of the
management, except for the transactions disclosed above,
other transactions are considered as individually and
collectively insignificant to the operation of the Group for both
years.

The Group also has bank deposits, loans receivable, financial
assets investments, trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables, lease liabilities and other general banking
facilities with certain entities and banks which are government-
related entities in its ordinary course of business. The
management are of the opinion that those government-related
entities do not have the power to govern or participate in the
financial and operating policies of the Group and the
transactions with these entities are conducted in the ordinary
course of the Group's business. The Group believes that it has
provided, at the best of its knowledge, adequate and
appropriate disclosure of related party transactions as
summarised above.

The remunerations of key management personnel, which
are the directors and senior management, during the year,
were as follows:

38. BAE

(b)

(c)

Brt 755 3B 3R B 5E

ToTFF_A=t—HLEFE

8755 5 ()

HEAMBARERER X5 REH
(%)

BEAN - AEE TR EAEMBRREERR
ETZERS  BREMRENIEE
X - EEERR BREXEENR
25 KR 5 (EARIRAREE) &
AEEMEFENEEMFTLTE
N

AEBETN B EERBEBIED EBBUA
MEERCE ?Eﬁ%&iﬁﬁ‘iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

Tk BRER  eRMEERE
%&Eﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁl R %ﬂ%&ﬁﬁﬂfgﬁ

PR HERENEM—RRITRE
AR BEERAR  RERNHAEE
BB A iR 2 B A [ M B K
MEERE - MBEZEERNRSZ]T
RAKENHERGRRTET - A
SEBE - W EXER - RERTR
Mo HERHERRENEREERES
RPZBE

FRTEEEAE(NESRERE
HE) 2FH#uT

2020 2019

—E-EHF ZE-NF

HK$°000 HK$000

BT T B F T

Short-term employee benefits HEEEET 3,425 3,421
Post-employment benefits BB 18 12 A 36 36
3,461 3,457
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39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. EXERER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group AEENEAEREERRASEANE
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the BANRELE  RANEABLCERRR
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and REBRBRRFRLKEROR - B L—FE
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged R AREE BB R TE -
from prior year.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total debt to total REBENAGHERERAEE L RER
assets ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total HEER bk RIZRBEHEBERNEEE
assets. Total debt is calculated as amount due to a related party, ETH - BEBBES R ANE24 - 31 K32
bank borrowings and unsecured other loan disclosed in notes 24, 31 BREM—HEEFIRE BOEERE
and 32 respectively. EIREAME K -
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a AR ESSRFELEHERNERETT
continuous basis. As part of this review, the directors of the BET e R TIE2 — BRI A RRIESY
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with BARKARESHEERNVEARRETER
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of BBEARRZEZNHBRERZ  A5HKE
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure BRARE - BITHR - BEARRMD A KB
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy- THES - FREEREERS TS -
backs as well as the issue of new debt.
The total debt to total assets ratio at the end of reporting period was RIRERARNEFEREBEE 2 LEDN
as follows: N
2020 2019
—BEC-EHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEF T
Bank borrowings RITEE 338,420 277,700
Unsecured other loans R E A E R 600 600
Amount due to a related party FEfT — R BEE T 3RIE 23,592 =
Total debt (EvrGE 362,612 278,300
Total assets BEE 3,906,747 3,600,661
Total debt to total assets ratio B AR EBEE 2 LR 9.3% 7.7%
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Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
currency risk, price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Currency risk

As at 31 December 2020, except for the following, the Group do not
have significant financial assets or financial liabilities denominated in
currencies other than their functional currencies at the end of the
reporting period.

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5 75 L B ' 2
Categories of financial instruments SRIASE
2020 2019
TEIEEF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Financial assets TREE
Other financial assets measured at FVPL BAFEFTABENEMS R
BE 37,414 205,179
Other financial assets measured at FVOCI EBAFEGFAHMEEKER
Hih e mEE 74,192 138,887
Measured at amortised costs: RE#ENANETE -
Other financial assets EMemERE 7,330 205,017
Loans receivables FEME K 2,072,703 1,126,824
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H bW IR 96,817 47,066
Amount due from a related party FEUW — R BEETT FIA 36,404 34,431
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITER 5,556 4,462
Deposits in other financial institution RE M RIS T 5K - 2,157
Bank balances and cash RITEGFRRS 859,618 732,356
3,078,428 2,152,313
Financial liabilities cHEE
At amortised costs: RS
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMEN IR 349,524 173,648
Bank borrowings RITIEE 338,420 277,700
Amount due to a related party FEfS—RBEET FIA 23,592 =
Unsecured other loan EEREMER 600 600
Lease liabilities HEARE 7,040 10,881
719,176 462,829
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEEEREE

TRTAFBENEMERE -BZEFDR
TEARMRREeREERR  ERRER -
MEER FERREADHESRER -8
RN PR K% F B R M BURBIIN T -
AEEEREEEENMEEZETER - A
R BB REVE E 1

BEERE

RIE-_ZTF+-A=+—H BRUTAH
SN - NEER RS H R EAEINE
%Eg%z%%%@z&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ

China Chengtong Development Group Limited HEHEXREBEGRAT 167



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 355 SR R B 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 2 —Z _ZF+_A=+—HILtFE

40.

168

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the

respective group companies as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are
as follows:

BEREE®)

B EBEEEERBCR(E)

EHmEE (E)
RIB_BER_T-NEF+_A=+—
B AEEUASEEARINEEEUIINE

WtEZeRMEENBREZEEERS W
T

2020 2019
—E=%E T NF
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT
Assets BE
RMB AR 173,972 204,248
United States Dollar (“USD") EAE-> )] 331,815 219,371
Liabilities BE
usD E£7T 54,073 11,151
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy AREEB R EINEH ABE  BEERE
but the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will QERINERK  UHERBELEREEY
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the EE AIMNERR o
need arise.
Sensitivity analysis HREE DT

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, financial assets denominated in
USD and RMB belongs to the group companies of which their
functional currency is HK$. As HKS$ is pegged to USD, the Group
considers that the currency risk arising from transactions in USD is
not significant.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in RMB against HKD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in the exchange rate between RMB and
HKS$. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding RMB
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
reporting date for a 5% change in exchange rates. The analysis
illustrates the impact for a 5% strengthening of RMB against the
HK$ and a positive number below indicates an increase in profit for
the year. For a 5% weakening of RMB against HKD, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit for the year.

R-ZE—ZEFR-_F-—NF+=—A=1+—
B UWELTRAREHEZEHEETE
REBERR MENEEEEEE - AR
BEEEIE T AEERE  UETE
ARGMELEZEERRITTERK -

TRALAEEARE S BEAEREE
5% MEURE - 5% BRAIEZEEABE NI
ERIMNERBEEMANGRELE - A
EREHARBERSE ZHERNSER
BEEEBNTG RESMEBREDAE
WA AAREAHENEEIBR  YRIER
A ERIRIE R IR 5% S e E T AT -
ZOMBM T AR N EEFAELI% B
2 MTIRNESRAFAREF B INEE -
MAREHBERES%  AIFERENES
FIEHEERNTE -

2020 2019

—E-%F —FNF

HK$°000 HK$000

BT T BT

Impact to the profit for the year HENRNOTE 8,699 10,212
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Price risk

Certain of the Group's other financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting date with reference to the quoted
prices. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price risk and the
management of the Group will monitor the price movements and
take appropriate actions when is required.

Sensitivity analysis is performed by management to assess the
exposure of the Group's financial results to price risks of listed other
financial assets at the end of each of the reporting period. If the
prices of the respective instruments held by the Group had been 5%
(2019: 5%) higher/lower as at 31 December 2020, the profit for the
year and other comprehensive income would have been
approximately HK$82,000 and HK$3,150,000 (2019: HK$52,000 and
HK$6,731,000 respectively) higher/lower respectively.

Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to the Group's
variable rate deposits and bank balances, loans receivable, other
financial assets and bank borrowings. The fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to these respective instruments. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The Group has exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate. The directors
consider the interest bearing instruments are with maturity within 1
year and their interest rate risk is not significant as these financial
assets are within short maturity period and thus it is not included in
sensitivity analysis.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates after considering the impact of the interest
expenses being capitalised as properties under development at the
end of the reporting period. A 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

As at 31 December 2020, if interest rates on interest bearing
instruments with maturity over 1 year had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all of other variables were held constant, the post-
tax profit would increase/decrease by approximately HK$2,109,000
(2019: HK$1,249,000).

MEEREEEEREE(E)
% mpE

REBETHEMEREEDZRRE I
Tﬁ%i&iﬁﬁ}ﬁiz ?TEEE% o EE - A
‘Vﬁ* 2B &iﬂlﬁéﬁ%ﬁqﬁéﬂxi‘@% i o

EREHETHREDNIATER S RS
RAEBYBEENARZ EMEMSR
BENESRRR - R-_ZT_FTFE+ -4
=+—8" WK%IhEE’J%IEIHEﬁE‘i
BIE I, H 5% (—F— 4 :5%) - 8
Eﬁmﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁu&z $H5 5 B AR
D497 % 82,000 7T M 8 ¥ 3,150,000 7T ( =
T— 14 : B 52,000 7T R 6,731,000
JL) ©

FlI 2 = B

REMEF KRR T ZHAREEFEF X
ZIERREBITET  BRER - Efhem
BERBITEERH AVFEMNERRE
EMEBTHARR - NEERREF R
A o A - AEEBTREEGERME
[RBG - AT A% B R R B KR K
[B\Bg e

RIMITMGNERE) - AEBEEKRRDR
ENEZRAR EERA FEIRAZER
HE—FUAA - BﬂFEZ%%EﬂééJ%%E%
RE - EMEERTEBEA - B R
HANBREDHT

B HT

TEBEED Tﬁﬂﬁﬁ\ﬁﬁﬁﬁuuz%‘ﬁ [
YEEBREHAFETHER L ABE
EP#%%Z%@ o Bk z bR 850 AR
(T —NF G0ERZ)RKREEEY
FIRZ BEAREEE) 2 7114 -

m7777¢+ A=+—08 " 4288
FRiB— ‘f’gIﬂZﬂTi—l—/%@JSOﬂ
ﬁﬁ ATA H 4B 8 R TE - AIBRH
B RG0SR 4978 12,100, 00075(_
T—NF : B¥1,249,0007T) °
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, loans receivable, other financial assets, amount due
from a related party and bank balances. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has reviewed the
recoverable amount of each aforesaid individual assets at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management of
the Group considers that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

Impairment and provision policies

The Group's policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition.

The Group's impairment requirements are based on an expected
credit loss model. The Group applies simplified approach to measure
ECL on trade and bills receivables; and general approach to measure
ECL on deposits and other receivables, loans receivable, other
financial assets at amortised cost, amount due from a related party
and bank balances. Under the simplified approach, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
Under the general approach, financial assets migrate through the
following three stages based on the change in credit risk since initial
recognition: Stage 1: 12-month ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full; or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate. The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Information such as failure to make
payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates, an
actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor and an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if any) will be
taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

MEEREEEEREE(E)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

For other receivables and loans receivable, the number of days past
due ("DPD") and loan-to-collateral value (“LTV") will be used to
determine significant increase in credit risk.

The ECL are assessed by the Group on semi-annual basis. Based on
DPD, LTV and internally derived credit ratings, deposits and other
receivables, loans receivable, other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, amount due from a related party and bank balances
are classified into 3 stages.

When estimating the ECL on loan and advances to customers, the
Group has incorporated forward-looking economic information
through the use of industry trend and experienced credit judgement
to reflect the qualitative factors.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, other than those financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum exposure to
credit risk, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group arising from the amount of
financial guarantees provided by the Group is disclosed in note 42.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets, except
that the credit risks associated with loans receivable as disclosed in
note 23. The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the leased equipment
and facilities, land from the related party of the lessee and
customers’ deposits held as collaterals, with reference to the
estimated value of the collaterals at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets with credit risk exposure

Trade and bills receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the industry or
country in which the customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

Loans receivable

Before accepting any new lessee under leasing arrangement, the
Group assesses the credit quality of each potential lessee and
defined limits for each lessee. The Group also demands certain
lessees to provide corporate guarantees from their respective
shareholders or related parties or other assets as collateral to the
Group at the time the leasing arrangement is entered into. In
addition, the Group has reviewed the repayment history of leasing
payments from each lessee to determine the recoverability of the
loans receivable. Also, the Group takes into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. As at 31 December
2020, except for the balances of HK$22,129,000 from one debtor
(2019: nil) which was overdue for more than 90 days and considered
as an significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but not
credit-impaired and the loss allowance of which is measured at
lifetime ECL, the loss allowance for all other loans receivables are
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL (2019: the loss
allowance for all loans receivables are measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL).

Bank balances and other financial assets at amortised cost

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group has bank balances
and cash, deposits and other financial assets in certain corporations
and banks in the PRC and Hong Kong. The credit risk on these
deposits and other financial assets is insignificant as the
counterparties are financial institutions with high credit-rating or with
good reputation.

Amount due from a related party

For the amount due from a related party, the management
considered the related party does not have significant credit risk due
to the past payment history and also taking into account of the sound
financial performance and position of its holding company to meet
contractual cash flow obligation. No impairment had been provided
under 12-month ECL assessment.

The average expected loss rate applied is approximately 0.05%
(2019: 0.02%). Movement in the loss allowance account during the
year is as follows:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

BEERER &)

MEBREEEERBEE(E)

Credit risk (Continued) =ERE (1B)
2020 2019
—ECRF —E-NF
HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT T
At 1 January n—A—H 250 298

Impairment losses provided/(reversed) during RERFHE (BB ) ZRERAE
the year:

— Trade receivables — B HRBGIE 5 =
— Other receivables — HAb R GRIE 9 (1)
— Loans receivables — EWER 810 (45)
Exchange difference fEH =58 47 (2)
At 31 December N+—A=+—8~ 1,121 250

The origination of new trade and other receivables and loans
receivable net of those settled resulted in an increase in loss
allowance of HK$824,000 (2019: decrease in HK$46,000) during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has concentration of credit risk
with (a) two customers from bulk commodities trading, with
aggregated amount of trade and bills receivables of HK$34,277,000;
(b) amount due from a related party of HK$36,404,000; and (c) 24
lessees from 29 leasing arrangements, with aggregated amount of
loans receivable of HK$2,072,703,000.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has concentration of credit risk
with (a) amount due from a related party of HK$34,431,000; and (b)
17 lessees from 20 leasing arrangements, with aggregated amount
of loans receivable of HK$1,126,824,000.

To monitor the credit risk exposure, the management of the Group
has reviewed the recoverability of each debtor periodically. As at 31
December 2020, except for a debtor for loans receivable with
balance of HK$22,129,000 which was overdue for more than 90 days
and considered as significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired, there was no significant
increase in credit risk among these financial assets (2019: no
significant increase).

I8 5 K H B U FR I LA K e U B R (0
KRELEHID) EREHE_T-_TF+_A
T+ —BLEFEZEBEBELNEE
824,000 7C (ZE— N4 : JFL 7 % 46,000
JT) °

RIE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H A&EEZ
FEERBREFPR (@) BFEEFE 2 KRB m
B BOERWFEREWRERBERS
#34,277,0007C  (b) FEU —BEAET 2 3K
TH 7% ¥ 36,404,000 7T K (c) B2 =+ PH & &
FAAZ2BHELRH  BUERBELES
#2,072,703,000 7T °

R-Z—hAE+_A=+—8 AE£EZx
EERBESR (@) BN —BRES 2708
7B5#534,431,0007T ¢ X (b) BB+ Z&AMEA
Z20EMHEELTH BRERBRBAER
1,126,824,000 7T, ©

AEREERR  AEBEZEREEE TH
B SBEBAMRERZ JREKFE - B
ZEZEF+ZA=1+—H BREYLE
RIARBE R BO0 B W B AEERB A
B LEF Y EERRENRERERN—
ZAETE A BRFEB 22,129,000 L5 + 3%
EERMEEPIECERBRARBLA(ZZ
—hF  WEREEHA)
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 40. BrimEBsEIE (50)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) HMH¥EREEEERKE (£)
Liquidity risk B E R
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and RRDESCRREEMS ~A5EEES
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by FEeEEBMETERRBERELEEE
the management of the Group to finance the Group's operations and BEORABREARTEEEERHES R
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management BIERR S RERETERFERKE - K
of the Group monitors the utilisation of bank loans and ensures SEEREEEBRITERNER - IR
compliance with loan covenants. GERREY) -
Liquidity table REETFH
The following table details the Group's remaining contractual TRAMBIASENETESREER
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed BREEEFHMNBRTELHEH - TRIDIBE
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the AEERAFEEREENTRFAHANESR
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest BERUBRBRERNERE - ZXBENE
date on which the Group can be demanded for repayment. The table EAXESHESRE °
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-TF+=-A=+—H
Weighted
average Within  After 1year After 2 years Total
interest rate 1 year or but within  but within undiscounted Carrying
perannum  on demand 2 years 5years  cash flows amount
MEFH —-ER® -FHER WERER  AERRE
FF= RER MER BER REST RHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETTT BETTT
Trade and other payables BHREMEMNTA = 349,524 = = 349,524 349,524
Bank borrowings BITEE 3.10% 348,901 - - 348,901 338,420
Unsecured other loan EERALER - 600 - - 600 600
Amount due to arelated party BN —REEH B 3.65% 24,453 - - 24,453 23,592
Lease liabilities MEBE 4.47% 3,983 3372 - 7,355 7,040
721,461 3,372 - 730,833 719,176
Financial guarantee issued BIEAZEBER
Maximum amount guaranteed EERESLE 212,924 - - 212,924 -

2020 Annual Report FERE
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity table (Continued)
At 31 December 2019
Weighted
average Within
interestrate 1 year oron
per annum demand

miE¥ —FR%
LIRS REX

40.

BEREE®)
MERREE B EREE(E)
TEEEEE ()
RBED X (B)
R=ZB-AF+=HA=+—H

After 1year  After 2 years Total

but within but within  undiscounted Carrying

2 years 5 years cash flows amount

—FRER  MERER KRR

MER nERA mEE RaE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB BB BT
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE - 173,648 - - 173,648 173,648
Bank borrowings RITfEE 3.97% 288,733 = = 288,733 277,700
Unsecured other loan EERALER - 600 - - 600 600
Lease liabilities HEERE 6.69% 3938 4,146 3,525 11,609 10,881
466,919 4,146 3,625 474,590 462,829

Financial guarantee issued BIEAZHBER
Maximum amount guaranteed ~ CERESLE 207,145 - - 207,145 -

Taking into account the Group's financial position, the directors of
the Company considered it is unlikely that the banks will exercise its
discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the
Company considered that the bank loans will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled payment dates set out in the loan agreement
which are summarised in the table below:

At 31 December 2020

Weighted
average Within
interest rate 1 year or

perannum  on demand

il S —FA%

REBAKEWF BN ARREER
RIIT IR BE R 1T{EE B IS BRI B
B ARREERR RITERBRE
EXmEMSCEEERRESR  RT
Rt :

R-BE-ZHF+=-A=+—H

After 1year After 2 years Total
but within ~ but within undiscounted Carrying
2 years 5years  cash flows amount

—FRER WERER AERARE

MER nER e RAEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFR BEFT BETT BETR

FF% RER

HK$'000

BETT

Bank borrowings RITEE 3.10% 210,723

47,184 98,226 356,133 338,420
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40.

41.

176

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2019

40. IEERERE @)

MEBREEEERBEE(E)

mEEm R ()

R-ZE—-hE+=-A=+—H

Weighted

average Within -~ After 1year  After 2 years Total
interestrate 1 year oron but within but within  undiscounted Carrying
per annum demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount

T —FR%k  —FRER MEEER KEREE
FH% REX MRER RER i=FH) REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB BB BEFT BEFT BB
Bank borrowings RIIfEE 3.97% 288,733 = = 288,733 277,700

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Financial assets measured at fair value
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

Level 2 valuations: Inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

2020 Annual Report FE R

41. E@MITAEZA¥E

(a)

BRAFEARNERMEE
(i) RPEER

TREINFEMRIZEREE
EEAENASESRTAN
DNFE - BERBBYBHRE
ERE1BF[AFEAEIE
BEH=MRFEEL - RFE
AERBANERK2EMER
ERERNEABBNIEER
HREZEETNT

—AREHE ABRIRE RNE BT
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 41. ERMIREZAFE®

(Continued)

(a) AR FEARNEMEE(H)

(a) Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued)

RFEER(E)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i)

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020

RZBZBE+ZA=T-ANATEHE

Fair value
as at 31
December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
R-B-ZF
+=A=+-
—& =t = HHLAYHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT  BYEFT  BEFT  BETT
Recurring fair value measurement KEMATETE
Financial assets: SREE:
Other financial assets: HemEE
Financial assets measured at FVOCI BATEFAEMZENG
(non-recycling): SREE(TITEAER)
— unlisted equity investments — L RERE - - 11,200 11,200
— shares listed in Hong Kong —REBLWORN 62,992 - - 62,992
Financial assets measured at FVPL: BATEMAEBRZ EREE
— shares listed in Hong Kong — REBLWHRR 1,639 - - 1,639
— unlisted investment — FETRE - - 35,775 35,775
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019
RZZ-NE+ZA=+—BHLFETE
Fair value
as at 31
December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
R-Z-NF
+=A=+-—
—4 - = BMATE
HK$'000 HK$'00 HK$'00 HK$'000
BEFr  BETT  BE¥FT  BEFr
Recurring fair value measurement REMATETE
Financial assets: SREE
Other financial assets: HiteEE -
Financial assets measured at FVOCI BATEGAEMZENE L
{non-recycling): SREE(TAEARR):
— unlisted equity investment — EEMRERE = = 4,267 4,267
— shares listed in Hong Kong —REBLWHRR 134,620 - = 134,620
Financial assets measured at FVPL: BATEFAESZSHEE -
— shares listed in Hong Kong —REBLTHRR 1,040 = = 1,040
— unlisted investments —FLTRE = = 204,139 204,139

There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy during both years.

RREFEARFESRN K —HR

=R R EES -
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41. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 41. SRITEZAFE®
(Continued)
(a) Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued) (a) HAAFEARNEBEE (H)
(iij)  Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair (i) =MAFEBEFEES
value measurements EREAE
Significant

Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
EEA®E BERATAEEZWMAYE &E

Financial assets:

SREE:
Other financial assets:
HitemEE !
— financial assets measured Discounted cash flow Discount rate and Discount rate: 16.57 %—
at FVOCI: discount for lack of 19.70% (2019: 17.1%);
unlisted equity investments marketability Discount for lack of
marketability:
10%-20% (2019: 20%)
—RAFEFAEMEEKE MRELSRE BIRE RRZ 5 BHERE : 16.57%-19.70%
ZEMEE TENMEBEIR (Z2—NF 171%)
FELETRRERE Bz SR EALIR
10%-20%
(ZZ—NF : 20%)
— financial assets measured Discounted cash flow Expected yield and Expected yield: 9.49%
at FVPL: discount rate (2019: 3.06%-9.11%);
unlisted investments Discount rate: 9.49% (2019:
3.93%-9.50%)
— RATEFABRZER BIRRERE TREAE ) R B3R & TEEREIHR © 9.49% (ZZF—A,
BE: F :3.06%-9.11%)
FELTI/E BRIRE 1 9.49% (ZF—AN,
F :3.93%-9.50%)
(b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at other (b) RAFEUIMIENESREERERE
than fair value WATE
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying ARAEERE R _ZTFR—
amounts of the Group's financial instruments not measured at E-NF+_A=+—BAEEL3E
fair value are stated approximately to their fair values as at 31 EAFEFENSR TAMNREESR
December 2020 and 2019. HAVERE -
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 42. FREE
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had contingent liabilities in AT ZZEFF+ZRA=+—H ' A&EEH
relation to guarantees of approximately HK$212,924,000 (2019: FHERMBEEANODIXABENBE
HK$207,145,000) given to banks in respect of mortgage loans 212,924,000c( = & — h F: B &
granted to purchasers of certain property units. 207,145,0007T) * EREZRRITRAETY
XBMNERE TRIBER MRS
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage RBRRIER - BREERBRIZBER
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the AEEBEEARRTEEENERKREE
outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued interest WiREARE - ERERE TSNS
and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks, and the MAEEBEEEEREMENEEERER
Group is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the FRBHE -
related properties.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the financial impact RAAREERE  REELAMBERES
arising from providing the above financial guarantees is insignificant M EMTRE M RKEZSTH
and accordingly, they were not accounted for in these financial WMERA AR ©
statements.
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group was not involved in B’\\_ T EFER_E-NF+ZA=1+—
any litigation or arbitration of material importance and there was no C AREE Y R EARFARTE -
litigation or claim of material importance known to the directors of Zli RIEE NI AEBBEMEKRT4 jZH—r
the Company to be pending or threatened against the Group. HEAEEMRELHERFRIRE
COMMITMENTS 43. &I
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAEIE
2020 2019
—BCEH —hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T B F T
Contracted but not provided for: EETAR AR -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEW¥ - WE L& E 1,633 250
(b) Operating lease commitments as lessor (b) EAHBHEAZEESHLNRIE
The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future REEDEBFEIA » RKRFIEEUK
minimum lease receivables: HEamT
2020 2019
—ECEF —hF
HK$°000 HK$000
BT T BT
Within one year —FR 1,566 2,245
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEZENF (BEEERSE) 3,662 6,125
Over five years BidAF - 278
5,228 8,648
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years HAMEZHEANTF—E2+E(=
(2019: one to ten years). E—NF:—FE+F) -
China Chengtong Development Group Limited HEHEZREEGR AT 179
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

44. AR B BMBARR R

COMPANY
2020 2019
—E-EHF ZE-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
btaE BT B FT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MKRE 4,828 7,682
Interests in subsidiaries NB AT 2R _ B
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSB S A B ROR 177,229 173,044
182,057 180,726
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments and ~ HAth B FIE « FARFKIBNIZS
deposits 2,488 2,561
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE WLFfT BB A B FRIE 2,221,813 2,064,163
Bank balances and cash RITHEF MR ® 229,506 293,361
2,453,807 2,360,085
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables H b e R IA 8,014 2,856
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,599 2,267
Bank borrowings RITIEE 160,000 200,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTBEB A 7508 209,323 188,843
379,936 393,966
Net current assets MBEEFE 2,073,871 1,966,119
Non-current liabilities kFRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBRE 1,954 5,032
Net assets BAEFE 2,253,974 2,141,813
EQUITY =
Share capital b3 34 2,185,876 2,185,876
Reserves & 36 68,098 (44,063)
Total equity B 2,253,974 2,141,813

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26
February 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Bin
R3E
Director

EF
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Yang Tianzhou
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Director
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Principal Properties

EX-2ES

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A. REYE
Group's Approximate
effective  Approximate gross Category
Location 12 interest site area floor area Usage of lease
5B BH BRegE
EERER HEEE AR AR HHER
(sq. m.) (sq. m.)

(F5K) (F7K)

Phase I, Chengtong Xiang Xie Li, RREREET 100% Note (a) 4,849 Commercial  Medium-term
No. 1 Mizhou West Road, Zhucheng City, ~ ZVHFER—5 15 (a) mE lease
Shandong Province, the PRC BREHEE 4 FEIRRA

Phase Ill, Chengtong Xiang Xie Li, MBI LR ENT 100% Note (a) 2,716 Commercial  Medium-term
No. 1 Mizhou West Road, Zhucheng City, ~ ZHFR—% Hit(a) [EE lease
Shandong Province, the PRC BAEHEE = RETRL

Hanan Building No.5 Guoxing Avenue, HEEEABOT 100% 27,590 1,339 Commercial ~ Medium-term
Haikou City, Hainan Province, the PRC BB 55 (RS lease

BEAE HERRA

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT B. BEDYE

Group's
effective  Approximate Category of  Stage of Expected
Location % interest site area Usage lease completion completion date
rEEY B
BERER WEEE Rz GRSk TRER AitTRAH
(sq.m)
(FHAK)

A parcel of land designated  # Bl LR & 4 100% Note (a) Residential  Long lease Phase lll Phase lll is expected
as No. 01213003 and TN AR Hfite) EE REREL work in progress  to be completed
located on the i ZHTRRESS in year 2023
northern side of (B &S = TR
Mizhou West Road 012130035 ZRIZERER
Eastern Section,

Zhucheng City,
Shandong Province,
the PRC
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Principal Properties

EX:3ES

C.

182

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

C. HFHEW

northern side of Mizhou West Road Eastern Section, Zhucheng City,

Shandong Province, the PRC, total site area is 146,006 sq.m.

2020 Annual Report FE R

Hb (4 % 47 5% 55 01213003 5% ) 2 — 38 %
155 146,006 F 5K ©

Group's Approximate
effective  Approximate saleable gross Category of

Location it 2 interest site area floor area Usage lease

rEB2 BH BAERE
BEER REE HE RBg HRER

(sq. m.) (sq. m.)

(Frk)  (FHHK)

A parcel of land BEREERT 100% Note (a) 37,624 Residentialand ~ Commercial —
designated BN R R ER AL R Hi7% (a) commercial Medium-term lease
as No. 01213003 and 2B FEREE Residential —
located on the (MR Long lease
northern side of £012130035%) BE — FHEY
Mizhou West Road € — KHAHED
Eastern Section,

Zhucheng City,
Shandong Province,
the PRC
Note (a): Part of a parcel of land designated as No. 01213003 and located on the Hist(a): BRBEIUEAHENTEMNARERILA Y —E+

AR



A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the last four financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and reclassified
as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not form part of the

audited financial statements.

RESULTS
Turnover

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Investment properties

Deposits paid

Loans receivable

Other financial assets
Available-for-sale financial asset

Current assets

Properties held for sale
Properties held for development
Properties under development
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Loans receivable

Prepaid land lease payments
Entrusted loan receivables
Other financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-for-trading securities
Short-term investments

Tax recoverable

Structured bank deposits
Pledged bank deposits

Deposits in other financial institution
Bank balances and cash

Amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Amount due from a related party
Assets classified as held for sale

Total assets

ES
S

ARAEE AEBEF

EERAE

ERBDEE

nEx - BER&&RE
BN LBEENR
EM*
BERERE
FEWER
HitemEE
AfHESREE

RBEE
REHEME
ER(EERYES
BERTYE

FE

B 5 R B AR
FEER

RS LHHEMNK

HiteREE
HHESREE
BEEEES
KA

AR ERRIE

R IERITE
EEMRITER
RE & B AT
RTEFNRE

FEA—FRM B & B — R IEEmR

BERFA
RN — R BB T TR

NERFIEHEZEE

BEE

45 B B PB4 2 B T S8 R 5

BEZEE  TEEEZ

I L
== 4K
~J I%I

BERMBHRAD

EHBEEZEHN DR - WRHEBITERZEFLE
B BEmR L —ABD °

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
SBORF ZTNF ZFN\F ZTL£F ZFRF
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BMTRT  BETT BETT BETT  AEETT
931,688 1110598 1020892 1,353,119 716,559
121,372 47539 113,440 23,363 63,804
344,673 241,834 187,803 202,715 158713
- - 38592 196,781 188,949

89,143 93939 101,528 63,816 58,934
700 - - 4,966 37,027
1438325 684689 245700 383902 353,654
11,200 4,267 4,984 - -

- - - 5,246 -
180,364 128655 202,005 251,688 159,716
- 260661 281,386 296,196 276,450

90,325 205688 152,233 109,824 241,042
4,756 4,036 15,970 4,281 6,145
101,775 136054 186706 129,040 97,879
634378 442,135 421,236 358359 309,545
- - 2,011 5,665 5,287

- - - - 7,840
107,736 544816 840,612 - -
- - - 700231 513,130

- - - 1173 1,279

- - - - 13,440

1,794 1,846 2,119 3,004 -
5,556 4,462 3815 4,006 1,640

- 2157 112,338 86,200 428,186
859,618 732356 791,265 749,708 929,903
- - - 18,000 21,318

36,404 34,431 - - 36,823

- 78,635 - - -
3,906,747 3,600,661 3590303 3,574,801 3,846,900
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Financial Summary

B 5 22

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“B-BF “T-NF ZT-N\F ZT—+F ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETrT BETFT
Current liabilities k=X
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMENTIE (349,524)  (173,648)  (120,726)  (156,869)  (127,834)
Contract liabilities BHEE (124,420) (134,637) (207,096) - -
Deposits received from sale of HEME B BIES
properties - - = (128,921) (72,920)
Taxation payable FERTRLIR (31,318) (25,877) (38,843) (5,929) (3,148)
Lease liabilities HERE (3,729) (3,528) = = =
Bank borrowings RITHEE (338,420)  (277,700)  (274,100)  (214,400) (77,280)
Unsecured other loans EEREMER (600) (600) (600) (600) (600)
Corporate bonds NEMEH - - - - (667,219)
Amount due to a related party [N —BBE R RIE (23,592) - - - =
Liabilities associated with assets DEABIEHEEERRZ
classified as held for sale aE - (20,049) - - -
Non-current liabilities FnRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE (3,311) (7,353) - - =
Deferred tax liabilities BRERIERE (46,564) (43,053) (51,794) (81,635) (73,088)
Total liabilities =Yt (921,478)  (686,445)  (693,159)  (588,354) (1,022,089)
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